Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@

oy A
CouncilZ

Cabinet Member for Localism and Enforcement
Agenda

Date: Tuesday, 1st July, 2014

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: Committee Suite 2/3 - Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach,
CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 2
items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on the
agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART 1 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for
members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relating to the work of the body
in question. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24
hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three

clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will
enable an informed answer to be given.

4. Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares (Pages 1 - 280)

To consider objections to the proposed variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares.

For requests for further information

Contact. Cherry Foreman

Tel: 01270 686473

E-Mail: cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Cabinet Member for Localism and Enforcement

Date of Meeting: 25" June 2014

Report of: Miss Kim Evans — Licensing Team Leader

Subject/Title: Consideration of objections in relation to the proposed
variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

Portfolio Holder: Clir Les Gilbert

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 To determine the Table of Fares applicable in each of the Council’s Hackney
Carriage Zones in light of the responses received following the publication of
the statutory Notices.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the Portfolio Holder considers all the relevant information including any
alternative suggestions made by objectors. The Portfolio Holder may:

i. Consider relevant objections to the proposed Table of Fares and
determine that no changes are necessary and the Table of Fares as
published should become effective on 4" August 2014.

or

ii. Consider relevant objections to the proposed Table of Fares and
determine that amendments to the proposal are necessary. To set out
those amendments and to determined that the amended Table of Fares
should become effective on 4™ August 2014.

2.2  If the Portfolio Holder determined that significant changes to the proposals are
appropriate, consideration should also be given to further publication of
Notices rather than determining that the changes become effective on a
nominated date. This would allow further opportunity for comment on the
changes to the proposals.

2.3 The Portfolio Holder has the opportunity to deal with the Table of Fares in
each zone separately. This would allow the Portfolio Holder to amend the
proposals differently in each of the zones if this is desirable.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with the Local Government (Functions and Responsibilities)
(England) Regulation 2000, any amendment to the Table of Fares is an
Executive function. The Council’s Constitution makes provision for decisions of
this nature to be made by the relevant Portfolio Holder.



4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

7.2

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 2

Wards Affected

All

Local Ward Members
Not applicable

Policy Implications
None

Financial Implications

There was a requirement to advertise the variation to the fares in at least one
local newspaper. As the Borough is also split into 3 sub-districts (know as
zones) each fare card was individually advertised. This resulted in nine notices
being placed in the press.

The Notices were also placed on the Council’'s website and copies placed on
the notice board at the Westfields Council Offices and at the Contact Centres at
the Town Hall Macclesfield and Delamere House Crewe.

Legal Implications

Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
gives the Local Authority the discretion to set the maximum fares payable in
connection with the hire of a Hackney Carriage vehicle. The fares must be set
out in a table referred to as the ‘Table of Fares’.

Section 65 also provides that the following is required when varying a table of
fares:

i. publication of a notice setting out the variation to the table of
fares (specifying the period within and manner in which
objections can be made) in at least one local newspaper
circulating in the district; and

i. deposit of the notice for the period of fourteen days at the offices
of the Council (for public inspection).

If no objection to the variation is made within the relevant fourteen day period
(or if all such objections are withdrawn) the variation comes into operation on
the date of the expiration of the period specified in the notice (or the date of
withdrawal of the last objection (if any)). If any objection is made and not
withdrawn, a further date (not later than 2 months after the first specified date)
shall be set on which the table of fares shall come into force with or without
modifications as decided after consideration of the objections.



8.4

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Page 3

A Hackney Carriage Proprietor is permitted to charge less, but not more than
the maximum set by the Licensing Authority. The case of R v Liverpool City
Council ex parte Curzon Ltd (1993) has confirmed that if the proprietor is using
their own version of the Table of Fares or continues to use a previous Table
set by the Local Authority, the taximeter should reflect the fare being charged.
There is a requirement for the Table of Fares set by the Council to be
displayed in the vehicle.

Risk Management

Full and thorough consideration of any responses received following the
publication of the Notices is necessary to provide a reasonable and
appropriate decision. This would also mitigate the risk of challenge to any
decision taken.

Background

In June 2011 the Licensing Committee instructed Officers to prepare a report
providing information on the potential harmonisation of fares across the
Borough.

Following the presentation of that report in January 2012, a decision was
taken to move the Congleton and Macclesfield Zones to the Table of Fares
operating in the Crewe and Nantwich zone. It was thought at this time that the
Crewe and Nantwich zone Table of Fares was the more generous, but this did
not take into consideration that the fares are calculated differently. It was
therefore not a straight increase, as although the day rate was more generous
the other rates (including evening and bank holiday’s etc) were less generous
than the other zones. Following publication of the statutory notices a number
of objections were received and those proposals were abandoned.

The Licensing Committee requested that further consultation be undertaken to
ascertain the views of the trade and seek to find common ground. The
Licensing Team has conducted consultation with the licensed trade in the
Macclesfield and Congleton zones. However, the licensed trade in the Crewe
and Nantwich zone did not attend the meeting on the 27" July 2012.

Following the consultation and the meeting held on 27" July 2012, agreement
with the Congleton and Macclesfield Zones was reached on the following:

i A harmonised structure based on a fixed rate for first mile or part
thereof

i, The subsequent mile rate to be £0.22 per 1/10" mile or part
thereof

iii. Tariff 2 to operate from 9pm to 12am at the flag rate plus a set
percentage

iv. Tariff 3 to operate from 12am to 7am at the flag rate plus 50%

V. Soiling charge to be £50.00

Vi. Additional agreements have been reached regarding Sundays,
public holidays and Christmas and the rates that are applicable



10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Page 4

At its meeting on the 5" November 2012, the Licensing Committee considered
the agreement and consensus reached and resolved the following:

i That the Cabinet Member for Communities and Regulatory
Services be recommended to approve further consultation on the
agreed structure with a flag/first mile rate of £3.50 and Tariff 2
set at the flag rate plus 20%;

il That, in view of the extensive consultation that had already been
undertaken, the Cabinet Member for Communities and
Regulatory Services be recommended to approve a reduction in
the consultation period to six weeks.

On the 7" January 2013 the Portfolio Holder considered this matter and the
information presented and aﬁproved that formal consultation should be
conducted in line with the 5" November 2012 recommendation from the
Licensing Committee.

The Licensing Team then consulted with the licensed trade in March/April
2013 by writing to each licence holder providing a copy of the proposed
variations, 1201 letters were sent prior to the consultation commencing, and
by placing the proposed Table of Fares on the Council’s website.

On the 28™ April 2014 the results of this consultation were reported to the
relevant Portfolio Holder. A decision was taken to publish Notices of the
proposed Table of Fares without amendment. The report and appendices for
this meeting are available on the Council’s website and the decision notice is
at appendix 1 with the proposed Table of Fares.

Before any Notices were placed in the newspaper, offices or website, Officers
confirmed that the ‘call in’ period applicable with Executive decisions expired
without being engaged.

Following publication of the Notices a significant number of responses
commenting on the proposals have been received, including 2 petitions. The
Notices allowed a 21 day period for comments to be made (the legislation
requires not less than 14 days be given).

The proposals will affect each zone differently and this has influenced the
content of the responses from each zone. The responses have therefore been
divided into separate appendices:

Appendix 2 - Congleton Zone responses

Appendix 3 - Crewe and Nantwich Zone responses
Appendix 4 - Macclesfield Zone responses
Appendix 5 - Trade organisation responses
Appendix 6 - Public response

Appendix 7 - Petitions

W W W



Page 5

10.12 The decision-maker should decide how much weight is appropriate to give the
petitions received. There are also responses from two trade organisations:

1. Cheshire East Licensed Vehicle Association, which was formed in
April 2014 and a list of those represented by this organisation is
provided at appendix 8. Some members have also provided individual
responses.

2. Cheshire East Taxi group formed on 28" May 2014.The Licensing
Team does not have any information confirming who is represented by
this group.

10.13 The decision-maker should carefully consider the content of the responses
and should consider any alternative proposals. The proposals can be varied if
it is deemed necessary.

10.14 The results of the proposed change on the zones was reported in the
information presented on the 28" April 2014 and this is attached again at
appendix 9. The following table gives a national and regional perspective on
the effect of a Tariff 1 fare (the information is collated by PHTM magazine and
is provided in the June edition):

National average flag rate £2.72
North average flag rate £2.44
National average one mile fare £3.76
North average one mile fare £3.50
Proposed flag rate £3.50
Proposed one mile fare £3.50

10.15 Similarly, a comparison with Cheshire West and Cheshire and ‘Nearest
Neighbour Authorities, areas with similar characteristics to Cheshire East, is
set out below:

Proposed CEC £5.70
Cheshire West and Chester zones

Chester (last rise — 2011) £5.50
Vale Royal (last rise — 2011) £5.25
Ellesmere Port (last rise —2011) £5.20
‘Nearest Neighbour’ Authorities

Bath and North East Somerset (last rise — 2014) £6.40
Central Bedfordshire (last rise — 2012) £5.50
North Lincolnshire (last rise — 2012) £5.40
North Somerset (last rise — 2012) £5.70
Shropshire (last rise — 2013) £5.50
South Gloucester (last rise — 2010) £6.40
Swindon (last rise — 2008) £6.10
Warrington (last rise — 2014) £5.20




10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

Page 6

A number of responses from the Congleton and Macclesfield zone have
commented that the increase to £3.50 is excessive and are concerned the
impact this increase will have on their business.

In the Congleton zone the comparison table shows that any journey of one
mile or less would be an increase of £0.60. This is because the flag rate and
first mile rate are currently the same in this zone. The increase also becomes
greater as the journey lengthens.

Consideration should also be given to the legal implications section, which
confirms that the Licensing Authority sets the maximum charges rather than
setting a fixed rate. Some commentators have raised their concerns around
charging less than the maximum and the effect this may have on public
perception and any unintended harm to the safety of drivers and the public
that may be caused by any confusion. There are three ways that a reduction in
the maximum charge can be given:

1. The hirer negotiates a lesser amount before the journey commences.
This can be negotiated over the phone or at a taxi rank.

2. The driver decides to have an alternative table of fares at an amount
below the maximum set by the Licensing Authority. The driver's meter
should reflect their own table of fares as required by the decision in
case law set out in para 8.4. The official Table of Fares set by the
Licensing Authority must be displayed in the vehicle.

3. The driver can give on the spot discounts. An example would be
where the meter read £4.50 and the driver asked that £4.00 be paid.

A number of Macclesfield responders have expressed their concern that the
rates will increase by £0.80 on the flag rate. However, the increase at the first
mile marker would be £0.20 and a two mile journey would increase by £0.40.

Some responses from the Crewe and Nantwich zone are critical of the
proposal as it is seen as a decrease. There would be a decrease in fare for
journeys of over half a mile and it would not be until a journey was over 4
miles that drivers would see an increase if the proposed Table of Fares
(without amendment) were to be implemented. However, there would be an
increase on the flag rate of £1.10 and an increase on a half mile journey of
£0.10. Shorter and longer journeys will therefore increase and mid length
journeys will decrease. A number of responders have provided information on
their ‘average’ journey for consideration. All other tariffs would be increased.

Some responses from the Macclesfield zones support the changes providing
waiting time is reinstated and some have provided information at what level it
should be set at. Responses from other zones have also asked that waiting
time be reinstated. The current waiting times in each zone are:



10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

11.0

11.1

11.2

Page 7

Congleton £26.40 per hour
(ie £0.44 per minute

Crewe and Nantwich £0.33 per minute or each part thereof
(ie £19.80 per hour)

Macclesfield £0.10 up to every 24.8 seconds
(ie £14.52 per hour)

A number of responses raise the potential for the variation to have a
disproportionately adverse impact on some people with characteristics that are
protected under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. Some protected
characteristics are specifically referred to in the objections, such as disability
and age etc. The Council’'s duty under Section 149 is to have due regard to
the matters set out in relation to equalities when considering and making
decisions. This would include decisions on the maximum fares that may be
charged for journeys in hackney carriages.

In 2003 the Office for Fair Trading conducted a market study titled ‘The
regulation of licensed taxi and PHV services in the UK’. Pages 60 to 72 dealt
with the regulation of fares and provides informative detail that may assist the
decision-maker. This report is attached at appendix 10. The section on fares
clearly states that Councils should be encouraged to set the maximum fare
and to encourage a competitive market under that maximum. It also confirmed
that for taxi drivers to work the fares need to be set at a level that allows them
to earn a sufficient amount. The report also makes the case that increasing
fares, increases provision.

The Best Practice Guidance produced by the Department for Transport on
Taxi and Private Hire licensing (March 2010) is attached at appendix 11. The
setting of fares is dealt with at para 52 — 54.

Also provide at appendix 12 is a timeline of events that have taken place,
summarising the consultations and meetings, in relation to this matter.

Summary

Taxis play a vital role in ensuring our night-time economy is safe by making
sure patrons to licensed premises leave a town centre quickly and efficiently
and arrive home safely. Similarly, in areas where there is reduced public
transport provision, taxis can fill this gap ensuring those who need to attend
their GP practice or do their weekly shop are able to do so.

The proposed ‘mid-evening rate’ had been included because some members
of the trade suggested that a stepped increase to the night-time rate would
benefit the public, ie there would not be such a large increase from the day to
night tariffs. It was felt that drivers who are working unsociable hours and
dealing with members of the public, who may have enjoyed the evening
economy, should be able to charge a greater amount than the day rate.



11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

12.0

Page 8

The table of fares should be set to enable:

§ Sustainable income for drivers. It is therefore important that the public
and trade recognise that the Council sets the maximum fares payable
rather than a fixed rate.

§ Future investment in vehicles to ensure they remain safe and suitable
for use as a working vehicle

§ Clear and simple maximum charges that minimise the opportunity for
overcharging or confusion

It should also be borne in mind that the Council has no power set the fees in
relation to private hire vehicles. This type of hiring should be negotiated when
the journey is booked. In respect of these fares, the market finds its own level.
Similar, the Table of Fares set by this Authority would not be applicable to any
vehicles licensed by other Local Authorities, but working in the Borough. In
those instances the driver can charge as much or as little as the customer
agrees to.

Following any amendments to the Table of Fares the meters in licensed vehicle
may need to be recalibrated. Either to the Council set maximum or to the
drivers own Table of Fares. The cost of this process would fall to the proprietor
of the vehicle and can vary depending on the type of meter used and the
company carrying out the change. However, the cost would be in the region of
£25.00 per change.

Currently, the Council has two appointed testing station that carry out our
vehicle test. These test include testing that meter does not exceed the set
maximum. As a result of the Table of Fares being different in each zone, the
Congleton and Crewe & Nantwich zones have their tests conducted in Crewe
and the Macclesfield zoned vehicles are tested in Macclesfield. If the Table of
Fares were to be set the same in each zone vehicles could be tested at either
Testing Station. This would alleviate any booking pressures at peak times and
give the option to wait or have an earlier test.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report author:

Name: Miss Kim Evans

Designation: Licensing Team Leader
Tel No: 0300 123 5015

Email: kim.evans@cheshireeast.qov.uk




Page 9 Appendix 1

Cheshire East)).
Council?"

DECISION NOTICE

Notice is given that the following decision has been taken under the Provisions set
out in the Council’s Constitution

Decision maker: ©  Cabinet Member for Communities and Regulatory Services

Date: 28 April 2014

Decision in the Variation to the Hacknhey Carriage Table of Fares

matter of:

Decision: 1. That the Licensing Team Leader be authorised to take all necessary

actions to implement the draft Hackney Carriage Table of Fares for
each of the Council's zones including writihg and advertising the
Statutory Public Notices.

2. In the event that any objections are received, that a further Portfolio
Holder meeting be arranged to consider those objections.

3. In the event that no objections are received, that the Table of Fares
for each zone advertised in accordance with the requirements of
Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 automatically come into force on the date specified in the
Public Notices.

Background: Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
gives the local authority the discretion to set the maximum fares payable in
“connection with the hire of a Hackney Carriage vehicle; it also provides that
any variation in the fares be advertised and the opportunity given for
objections to be made.

The Licensing Committee requested that informal consultation be
undertaken to ascertain the views of the trade, and to seek to find commeon
ground, regarding the harmonisation of the Tables of Fares across the
Borough. The Licensing Team has conducted consultation with the licensed
trade in the Macclesfield and Congleton zones and agreement was reached
regarding the necessary changes. The licensed frade in the Crewe and
Nantwich zone did not, however, engage in the process.

The Licensing Committee therefore resoclved that a' further consultation
period of six weeks be undertaken. As a result a straight increase in the
fares in the Macclesfield and Congleton zones whereas in Crewe and
Nantwich, because the fare and any increases are calculated differently,
there is a reduction in the tariff 1 fare for the first and second miles.

Background - Can be inspected by contacting the report author.
Documents:



AA571T
Typewritten Text

AA571T
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1


Ahproved:

Date:

Advising Officer:

SIGNEd oo T T
Councillor Les Gilbert (Cabinet Member for Commun
Services)

28 April 2014

Signed ... T
Kim Evans (Licensing Team Leader)

ities and Regulatory




Page 11

Proposed Fare Card — Congleton Zone, Crewe and Nantwich Zone, and
Macclesfield Zone

S

Hackney Carriage Table of Fares - Operative from =

(insert date) Cheshire East)))

Council?

MAXIMUM CHARGES - IN THEIR OWN INTEREST, PASSENGERS ARE
REMINDED TO CHECK THE FARE DEMANDED WITH THAT SHOWN ON THE
TAXIMETER

I. TARIFF 1
If the distance does not exceed one mile for the whole distance £3.50
For each subsequent 1/10th mile or uncompleted part thereof £0.22
Il. EXTRA CHARGES
(i) For hiring begun between 9pm and Midnight Tariff 1 + 20%
(i) For hiring begun between Midnight and 7am Tariff 1 + 50%
A (iif) Sundays and other Public Holidays/Bank Holidays Tariff 1 + 50%

(iv) For hiring begun between 6pm and Midnight on Christmas | Tariff 1 + 50%
Eve and New Year's Eve
(v) Christmas Day and New Year's Day Tariff 1 + 100%

B | Where the carriage or seating is soiled £50.00
Any comment about the Vehicle or Driver should be sent in writing to Licensing
Department, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach, Cheshire, CW11 1HZ. Quoting

either the registration or plate number of the vehicle and/or driver’s badge number.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

Appendix 2

Congleton Zone Responses



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

R, - Fareways Taxi Service
SRS

20..47 2

Fareways

18" May 2014

Dear Kim Evans,

Regarding the proposed table of fares, there is no waiting time, this is an essential part
of the fare structure. '
To give an example when I take a disabled passenger 0 Macclesfield Hospital for a
hospital appointment it is normally cheaper for the customer to pay waiting time than
pay a return fare. This is only one example of many, that 1 could give but it helps to
illustrates the need for waiting time.

Until the waiting time issue is resolved and we know how much it may be, it is
difficult to discuss the proposed table of fare further.

Yours faithfully



Page 16

ECEvER

-3

iJ;

i
Kim Evans 20
Licensing Officer YAy 2y
Cheshire East
Westfields
Middlewich Road
Sandbach
Cheshire
CW11 1HZ

oo

QUE-CABS

Monday 27" May 2014

Dear Ms Evans

I’'m writing to you regarding the proposed changes to the harmonisation of
taxi fares over the 3 zones in Cheshire East. 'm a taxi owner with 5 Hackney
taxis in Congleton and find the proposal totally unacceptable!!!

I find it very hard to believe that these proposals have been put forward
without any input from the trade. You’ve stated in the Congleton Chronicle
that’s this has been done with consultation of the trade but at no point has
anyone asked my opinion or other drivers regarding their income and there
lively hoods!

We would like to know who these people are when these meetings took
place. Because at no stage any information has been put forward to the
drivers or owners has to their thoughts on the matter.

There are many reasons why this proposed table of fares are unjust and
totally unacceptable! I will name 3 of the main reasons and hopefully you will
see that this harmonisation should be put on hold for 12 months and a panel
should be put together from the trade involving all 3 zones. | know Congleton
drivers have set up an association which is called CELVA and my son sits on
the committee which they had a constructive meeting with you only a few
weeks ago. That way every driver/owner would be able 1o put their thoughts
forward and hopefully together we can sort this mess out!

The first objection is the omitting of waiting time from the meter. | hope this
is just an oversight on Cheshire East part? The waiting time is vital when
taking customers to the bank, shopping or the doctors etc. and on many
occasions the customer will ask the driver to wait while they do their daily
business, this mainly effects elderly and vulnerable customers, without the
waiting time element it will discourage drivers from waiting for customers
who request them to do so this will result on drivers going away and coming



Page 17

S

back for the customer for which they will be charged a new fare which will
result in a more expensive journey which will inevitably upset the customer.

Second objection is the increase of the fares from £2.90 to £3.50 we as
drivers feel with the reducing of transport services i.e. bus routes these
increases only add unreasonable costs to Cheshire east residents getting
about they only have limited amounts of disposable income, | feel that if we
need to increase the fares across the borough then it should be done over a 5
year period maybe like a 10p rise each year then that would help residents
budget and not be made to feel like we are robbing them. It would also help
us drivers with the problem of out of town taxis who are coming into our
town touting for trade and under cutting us and by Cheshire East putting our
fares up to will only play into their hands. | was told at your meeting with
CELVA a few weeks ago you said these new rates were only a max amount
we could charge but this will make a joke out of Hackney taxis and the
expensive meters we have fitted and maintained because you will have the
public very confused and upset at the variation in fares from taxi to taxi.

Third objection is the 20% increase after 9pm this short time span between
then and midnight is totally unjustified and we believe could lead to drivers
being subject to abuse. There is no need what so ever for this fare rise and
should be changed ASAP!H

In addition to the mentioned objections listed above | can see no financial
benefit to Cheshire east council all the financial implications are levelled
against the companies and our customers, it must seem strange to you us
voicing our objections to these fare increases as under normal circumstances
it is us as owners who are approaching you to allow us to increase our fares
but | sincerely hope our objections demonstrate our deep concerns of our
customers being overstretched financially and with the greatest of respect
we know our customers better than you do.

Even we as owners are being financially stretched with increase in license
costs etc. one major help for us would be changes to the six month additional
tests for older vehicles you said at the recent meeting as a council you gained
nothing financially from these additional test fees and surely as these are
only interim tests outside the annual tests these tesis could be in the form of
a general m.o.t at an authorised VOSA station this one simple change would
go some way of reducing our costs, it can be in no one’s interests that costs
reach a point were companies start to cease to trade this in its self reduces
the councils revenue.



Page 18
5/3

| hope you see my comments as constructive as they are sincerely meant to

Just an additional observation at a recent meeting in Macclesfield which was
attended by some local councillors but more importantly

Fiona Bruce the Macclesfield M.P were she expressed amazement to what
had been going on as it was all news to her, can | respectfully ask who the
M.P you have referred to as making the decision to agree to the licensing
fares and conditions changes was..

27th May 2014.



Page 19

RECEIVEL

oo TAXIS vorr

A7
RELIABLE FRIENDLY SERVICE 12 NAT 1%

Airport - Long Distance - Contract Services

206 ~5- 14

D ewn Myss Eoans,

i g @uj 00\ \Ll \Le \‘“Cr U‘Ok\ c?s-\f l"‘u \\\/\ @ P V\air\ms @Q

| paran AN \"*Cr (vv\ o O Z,O‘/\-Q ‘
[\Leu:: ‘T&uﬁ 0& l:c.nwc; I‘L\ul: l"\»\f: Cﬁm‘—\\ k V\ L&

O omert | D dwers
\"w Muo‘.L\fo.S &)““-3

Ob&aﬁ"«\:tu “ J—'« éwam J:Q‘C{D ‘—0‘ }.:9) "SO {S ‘#&#‘ ‘
) ‘ \/u:\w& \oer hewe

Tha veress
. \c»:.u WA S

]M.w-c:_ lr)e»av\ C_ul” ; vvxuv\7 V\ %Dr\é? il \ Q \_ Lowe cons

- . L ) gc\,\wmi S ve ﬂl.‘c/ ese pecite 2o

CLasey 5 #ﬂ:ﬂ“ s UU‘Y‘W«B - 14 ‘ aé— \M‘\e av  Se . A\,_ \mc;i-‘?_&ls(‘:
} s Jawwua—( y BV 1 borts

hny ey C s il e suve \

!é o\kwu—k\ 20 % Es ;ﬁ\éQiLul wjl '\1@- \\\ CJ-\?COV'-G‘«[: G;:"ovt‘.“ P l"u&cd GO “l— :> Lo e

 low
PN “‘— C’Lkbcr sinoer :
ST L M poblie Ple7 . -
é‘ o © ( W Fowve S e e mm“’"““’“\\m Ce dhes
La..\r\"--‘ Ed e = Sl . L bt €0
rﬂ“‘e’ ce 7 ‘:0‘,,._ '\—\/\e \cu;lr %"ﬁ'»\’“"’ 7( B (—2,‘" Qv‘\
l’)tﬁ """“u"g\e‘ i k ; Q c)é_ GQL&‘-\“@ na '
;Lmv-%e e | ‘Ls @_K—. Wewe \‘eS"J ,é:bw a{z{ 9\ /&_ '
! e a6 a2, [ 3 - o, Ot o be A
0e-en (j%l\ D\ . \é:_ ):40@ A PN howe be \3\ E y E/r e
U W e B 3 v 7
LR o w\/\d-\" \—\/Li v @V ! CQ ‘-—L
i ol jogud e S e wdhore v and The
I ' Py e C R .
o TR A R e
Dpiver own ghowlen o @
‘n v \n%& e & l‘u—
0 b ’éé?..t,t/‘-[rﬁ's’\ _;"’\ wc \L :A __‘__,_‘___,,," e “j F&L\U’-\lf &maacﬂq\\ﬁu\’lf}
nh—TLe YE2 WV O S O 03 % r\eCQL. k.!';'w\eb P'bu.\,\.@_v\ ca ‘ £ 2 w&\\f

PPN C‘*é

o=y b Fmnes 2 e ey
U_’\w(ﬂ_\(‘ba> éé 30 d(‘O W‘V\>!’%\} ¢Q0¢ o \JuVX’LS c:\(‘(‘

) c l“”"c‘h.lﬂ--(& o . 'L

()C,Lu\"v\'e7 CVT‘V_\\AW me{:&Q l"ou;u o | R S \r\osra , A \/ | Q Glo .&IA
e &\LO e,.,.\7 P S L\aﬁ tan O w\7 q c-a\’ O e e
X “ v\s‘cx:\t‘ %@ L2 l“\z\ AN, ¢ O v C.*Q \ Vm\lé\.«t‘ c‘n_leQ

B.g o s & A, LC&.%i [E 381

.
L e CED

[y o 2 [

Cexyd e X
& lessev

ey - s @ VT
G

TR = T han

sowm e ‘—’5



Page 20

RIVERSIDE

oo TAXIS T

RELIABLE FRIENDLY SERVICE

Airport - Long Distance - Contract Services

L\,\g} ‘ o\w& O\‘\'\Eiv \“cwa; a&v‘:wews Ve 0\‘&\/ Ctb\flE’cQ\ \cr ﬂuh

- Les e Aeo \
n Lk‘ ek 3\,\°¥\V\Ma o ‘m_\m u~ Y\vegc_r‘\u\\\ ; \\ L vx i/\

Q\\c,\-eﬁ L\Jau\‘\v«.o \\w\e
\_,c,u.‘\g \:)-c—: cﬂ\_&u.&uaw\ U-%QQO ‘/)ec_mm,s;a, aé /W v\ O - \LQ

'\ \/(' 1— CAL_MQ o c;..u/\ \Oﬁ?-tm,u.sé’ \\"‘S . vl o
5 UC‘?.,,V"7 lV‘\/\Y\ 6

O aR e \ &g Sun <
‘o g\_\c_ ,%0 k\, V\B\w\*j 4 Lﬁr | \f‘L‘

a_v\;Q LLc. 05
~ b (‘“\’\ ﬁ’u‘-\‘“ wf}t\\"\"\% o {vk
\\/\:\I\r ;) QJ; S v e v"L-L\ CQ\GJ'\, C \I“Uh b\) G;BL '\@'M\C;L\ /a\~
N ~ \F—\T}wm @l
J\V - ﬁrm - COV\ kmk | S e \T“ \"‘“‘-L\\ ﬁ
wl/\e:vx t\" C:MA-\LQ k““ LL€ 40 PRTEILE VLQ Lc W\ L U“Qe(ﬂ

U\g&_\& w—u‘,o k el €

: v-):"D becuwse 70 e, &"‘Q W“g'
l“rﬁ%\i&?}@ koQ PV@\D \0\“/ GQ&.:,\:V\A? AN %2 é—
L\,\em Y eV bad (0 LA

\"‘\mﬁ New Sﬁ:ﬁ\ra)

" e .
‘,(’f 3 e “"Y\ ‘OU»M'\Q953 &WQ o ee ﬂ-%ﬂ.\*‘\

GO G LV l"l‘.) M? gt \~voeh ez
IC:G’CJ ‘Q l Claq tf\e C.%Du—«?c_\ LLV\OQ \"{.LV\Q L‘”‘\\e, L Qg s \v
5w

how lovagh ¢ s

7(3’0——"\" ¥

" e.\'“ev" i \“

o

o

& P e 7



Page 21

e e g

77 MAY 19U A B Private Hire
F.A.Q. . '
Kim Evans,
Licensing Team Leader,
Cheshire East Council,
Municipal Buildings,
Crewe,
CwW12BJ

RE: Proposed Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

OBJECTIONS

Dear Miss K. Evans,

I hereby exercise my right to respond and object to the “Proposed Variation to the
Hackney Carriage Table of Fares” Notice for Zone 1 issued by letter on 14™ May 2014.

I am a Taxi Owner/Driver in Congleton and have been operating as a taxi driver since
September 2005, If the proposed variation of fares is brought in then I believe this will
have a detrimental effect to my business and potentially prevent me from operating as a
taxi driver within the Borough for the following reasons:-

e Daily Rate Increase — Substantial Loss Of Customers/Income

The new proposed fares show a staggering 20% increase or more on the existing
Rates for every journey which is just too high.

As the majority of my customers throughout the day are low income travellers
without their own transport, this will inevitably increase pressure on them to take
fewer taxis where they can. I believe that this is too bigger rise and such a rise in
Congleton needs to be staggered over a number of years allowing the public to
adjust gradually.

Note: The Councils argument with respect to the “maximum fare displayed on
the Hackney Meter being the maximum amount the driver is allowed to charge
and therefore a lower amount can be charged if desired” does not work in
practice. The meter protects both the customer and the driver. If a situation arose
where a taxi driver had to charge an amount less than the price displayed on the
meter this would lead to bartering and arguments on every journey. Al drivers
would interpret their own fares and rates and the customers and driver would no
longer be protected by the meter, rendering the taxis meters useless.

s Loss of Waiting Time — Substantial Loss Of Income

The new proposed fares show the removal of Waiting Time which is
unacceptable.

Waiting Time comes into effect during every journey when driving below 12mph
(ie. waiting at traffic lights, junctions and also in slow moving traffic). Therefore

{Continued....)

Page 1 of 2



Page 22

{....Continued)

the removal of waiting time with the proposed new Table of Fares will have a
dramatic effect on my earnings, especially in peak times of traffic where
Journeys take much longer.

Also there are many journeys each week that involve taking the infirm, elderly or
disabled. These customers are generally picked up at home taken to the bank
and/or shops and then returned home all in the same journey. These trips can
often take up to 30 minutes and the distance travelled is rarely over a mile,
therefore there would substantially less income received from these time
consuming jobs causing taxi drivers to refuse these journeys often requested by
phone.

Note: I know of no other Borough that has a Hackney Table of Fares with no
compensation for waiting time.

Competition From Other Boroughs — Loss Of Income

Over the last twelve months there has been a steady increase in competition from
other taxis coming from neighbouring Boroughs such as Staffordshire and Stoke-
on-Trent. The proposed new Table of Fares will definitely lead to more and more
business being lost to other Boroughs. This again will only have a detrimental
effect on my business.

All in all I am opposed to the new Proposed Table of Fares and believe that the
decision to increase the fares in Congleton way over inflation and the cost of
living rise together with the removal of waiting time is only going to harm mine
and many other businesses. These changes if approved will have a major impact
on my business and could potentially force closer on some taxi firms.

Yours Sincerely

A B Private Hire

Page 2 of 2



Page 23

oy £
F.AO. 22y gy

Kim Evans,

Licensing Team Leader,

Cheshire East Council,

Municipal Buildings,

Crewe, 20/05/2014
CW12BJ

RE: Proposed Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

OBJECTIONS

Dear Miss K. Evans,

[ hereby exercise my right to respond and object to the “Proposed Variation to the
Hackney Carriage Table of Fares™ Notice for Zone 1 issued by letter on 14" May 2014.

1 am a Taxi Owner/Driver in Congleton and have been operating as a taxi driver since
August 2010. If the proposed variation of fares is brought in then I believe this will have
a detrimental effect to my business and potentially prevent me from operating as a taxi
driver within the Borough for the following reasons:-

¢ Daily Rate Increase — Substantial Loss Of Customers/Income

The new proposed fares show a staggering 20% increase or more on the existing
Rates for every journey which is just too high.

As the majority of my customers throughout the day are low income travellers
without their own transport, this will inevitably increase pressure on them to take
fewer taxis where they can. I believe that this is too bigger rise and such arise in
Congleton needs to be staggered over a number of years allowing the public to
adjust gradually.

Note: The Councils argament with respect to the “maximum fare displayed on
the Hackney Meter being the maximum amount the driver is allowed to charge
and therefore a lower amount can be charged if desired” does not work in
practice. The meter protects both the customer and the driver. If a situation arose
where a taxi driver had to charge an amount less than the price displayed on the
meter this would lead to bartering and arguments on every journey. All drivers
would interpret their own fares and rates and the customers and driver would no
Jonger be protected by the meter, rendering the taxis meters useless.

e Loss of Waiting Time ~ Substantial Loss Of Income

The new proposed fares show the removal of Waiting Time which is
unacceptable.

Waiting Time comes into effect during every journey when driving below 12mph
(ie. waiting at traffic lights, junctions and also in slow moving traffic). Therefore

(Continied....)

Page 1 of 2



Page 24

(....Continued)

the removal of waiting time with the proposed new Table of Fares will have a
dramatic effect on my earnings, especially in peak times of traffic where
Journeys take much longer.

Also there are many journeys each week that involve taking the infirm, elderly or
disabled. These customers are generally picked up at home taken to the bank
and/or shops and then returned home all in the same journey. These trips can
often take up to 30 minutes and the distance travelled is rarely over a mile,
therefore there would substantiaily less income received from these time
consuming jobs causing taxi drivers to refuse these journeys often requested by
phone.

Note: I know of no other Borough that has a Hackney Table of Fares with no
compensation for waiting time.

Competition ¥rom Other Boroughs — Loss Of Income

Over the last twelve months there has been a steady increase in competition from
other taxis coming from neighbouring Boroughs such as Staffordshire and Stoke-
on-Trent. The proposed new Table of Fares will definitely lead to more and more
business being lost to other Boroughs. This again will only have a detrimental
effect on my business.

All in all I am opposed to the new Proposed Table of Fares and believe that the
decision to increase the fares in Congleton way over inflation and the cost of
living rise together with the removal of waiting time is only going to harm mine
and many other businesses. These changes if approved will have a major impact
on my business and could potentially force closer on some taxi firms.

Yours Sincerely
— A

Page 2 of 2



Page 25

Appendix 3

Crewe and Nantwich Zone Responses



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27

| A-T. TI' aVel ou c N

A.T. Travel

¥ ®
A.T. Travel

Reliable On Time Service

Dated 14th May 2014

Dear Miss Evans
Re: Proposed Variation to hackney carriage Table of fares.

A.T. Taxis welcomes a harmonising of fares across East Cheshire, and to the change from yards to 1/10 miles which is
much more up-to-date way of charging (and one that most people will understand)

However you seen to make no allowance in the new tables for waiting time at all? We would like to see this set around
£0.40 per minute (or part of) or £24 per hour which is a fair price for having a taxi and driver standing by. And we
believe well below that of the professional service we provide or could be taken if working an hour.

Point 2: for our sake and that of the traveling public, who very often have no or very little.change on then, we would
very much like to see all the fares round down/up to full ten’s or .5 of ten’s e.g. £0.20 /£0.25 which would make pay-

ing for, or giving change a lot more easy and there for less likely to mistakes being made and the need to have a bag of
copper always to hand.

Yoyrﬁ’\/ l

24/7 Taxi & Private Hire Service 365 Days a year Professional Helpful Drivers Clean and Tidy Vehicles



Page 28 A

(8 Seater Taxi with Full Wheelchair Access)

09 June 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern: ,
I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

Our last increase was 3 years ago, the increase was proposed, accepted and implemented by yourselves,
since then our overheads have risen and trade in general has decreased due to the increase in the number of
hackney vehicles. In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our
current charges and we would have to complete a journey of 4.5 miles to equal our current rate, as most of
our fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Last week I only worked
part-time and I carried out a survey which resulted in the following facts. Between Monday and Friday I
averaged 9.3 fares per day of which 97% of those were under the 4.5 mile breakeven point, each fare was
re-calculated to the proposed new tariff the result being I would have been £23.46 down in revenue. If 1
would have worked a full 6 day week it is not inconceivable to say I would have been more than £50 down
in revenue, which of course is £2500 per annum which cannot be sustained. The result of this would be
older vehicles and less maintenance which both are not acceptable to yourselves, myself and most
important the general public.

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is too much, no other borough in
the UK implements 3 tariffs in a 24 hour period. If you work nights in industry a lot of firms now work 4
nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To say that you can always
charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell them a true
takings of their drivers, 90%+ of passengers at night time have consumed alcohol and we must have
consistency to avoid conflicts for our and the passengers sakes. To maintain consistency we need things to
be as they are now, all taxi meters running on the same tariff. Passengers do not argue when they can see
the fare displayed on the meter. If the new proposals were implemented there would be open warfare
resulting in trouble which nobody needs.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% 1s also far too much,50% is more than adequate. All these
proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying
5-8 passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle. For example a

new & seat wheelchair friendly vehicle costs between £30k-£38k and you can purchase a new car or 4 seat

wheelchair vehicle from £15k.

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local
boat yards for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase
provisions this can often take 20mins+. A week last Saturday I picked up 6 people from America at Crewe
railway station and took them to Wrenbury boat yard they asked me to stop at a supermarket which I did



Page 29

and it took them 37 minutes to complete their shopping, what would their reaction be if I said no and
dropped them and their suitcases off and told them I could not wait? People returning home often decide to
have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. There are countless
other situations when passengers ask us to wait and nobody will do unless they are being paid for it.
Waiting time must remain otherwise the amount of bad feeling and aggravation 1t will cause is
immeasurable.

The proposed drops at 22p are impractical, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why
not make it 20p per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result and set other tariffs pro rata.

Having asked the opinion of countless other taxi drivers in Crewe and Nantwich the general consensus and
my personal opinion is that even though it is 3 years since our last fare increase considering the economic
climate I would like to propose that in the Crewe and Nantwich Zone we leave the fares as they stand at
present for the next 12 months and then maybe discuss a rate increase.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally
disregard, THE CUSTOMER.

If I can be of any further assistance please do not hesitate to contact me.
I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 30

Miss Kim Evans
Licensing Team Leader
Cheshire east council

Municipal buildings
Crewe
CW1 2BJ
Badge no
Dear Miss K Evans

1 am writing in response to the variation of the hackney carriage table fares
That the cabinet members for communities and regulatory services have proposed I as a taxi
driver in the Crewe and nantwich zone feel that the rate 1 is unfair as we are taking a fare
decrease on that rate up to the first 4.9 miles so in respect to my daily takings as up to 75% of
our work Is less than a mile 20% is less than 4.9 miles and the remaining 5% is over so on &
average week my takings will be down the taxi trade is saturated with to many taxis as it is
without having to take a rate decrees .
I also feel strongly that there should not be 3 rates on a daily basses I feel 2 rates are enough
and 3rd rate on bank holidays Christmas day and new years day .
I feel the 3% rate on a daily basis is unfair to the passengers They should not have to pay
such extreme rate to get home at a later time and feel this will encourage people to either
drink and drive or walk home in a unfit manner and may cause danger to themselves or other
road users | feel a single rate is fair enough to run from 9pm till 7am

Yours faithfully

Signature

Cheghire EASLE

o

-\



Page 31 .

Name:

Address: R

I

A NS
”‘nim'».‘v,,.,; VﬁlD

2 0apy a0n

Badge No: 1< 3] |

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom 1t may concern: :

I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
then a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer gréed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat vards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions thig can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to bave a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door ficence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem o totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 32

Name:

Address:

TDANEL danvis

Badge No: |y v/ G(Q: T2

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tariff Z,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work mights
in industry a Jot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause 1s unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent vears trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration 1 propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic clunate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I tock forward to your response with inferest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 33

Name:  \Solay  TTepch
Address:

Badge No: %QQ @ %

15 May 2014
Provosed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?7?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can atways charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offSet the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount),

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause 1 unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 34

- . / -
Name: ////ZGM}:Q J- /&7@£.
Address:
dee No: <
1 Badge No 2306
15 May 2014

Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom 1t may conceri:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%"7

The extras listed should be Tarift 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pra at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
i industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who empioy drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrymng 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is upmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our taniff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 35

| Name: |

T, e \e\%m\\;‘tom Q\J*\ wy
Address:

' Badge No: ’5 "33“3 C\

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

{ would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

T the new proposals the charge for the furst mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 eic not extras.

Hiring from Opm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount}.

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and N antwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20minst without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must rematn
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
ner 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & MNantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the cuirent economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 36

\‘Name: l ‘,;'Bfw}ﬂ} Eorovercc 7 | —1

ﬁidress: - -

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concerit.

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new eable of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this wiil have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tariff 2.3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stapid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates 10 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,350% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especialty when you are carrying 3-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys o the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is avaitable
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers Sram our tariff, why not make it 20t
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept i1 mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem 1o iotally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

{ ook forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 37

Name: Peiv)h v AHMeD %

Address: AV

Badge No: 239 2,

13 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom 1t may concern!

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

Tn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant offect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%"7

The extras listed should be Tarift 2,3 et¢ not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead 1o an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especiafly when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with mterest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 38

F,N ame:
Address:

T Bepu Den €

Radge No: ] 6 CM”

15 May 2014
Proposed Hacknev Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

fn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have & significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extrais fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can atways charge fess does not work as propristors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter o tell
them a true takings of there diivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,30% is more than adequate.
All these proposals coutd lead to an increase in drink driving,

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the arnount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you 10 call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
ofien take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is soing to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years (rying to climinate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase {0 help combat the current econoniic climate. )

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 39

Name:

i Micpact WaLks]
Address:

Badge No- ':% (_':3 é ...ﬁ

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whorm it may conceriu:

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mite will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights ‘nstead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less Goes not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% 1s more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving,.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat vards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcobiol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to elininate coppers from our tariff, why not make 1t 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration [ propose that the other two areas go onfo the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current econormic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,




Page 40

Name: | @xs  CROYRTLE
Address: -

Badge No: DQ\/ L{.‘7 (G b

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasoins.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us & 20% reduction on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%? ‘

The extras listed should be Tarifl 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both areedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 3 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carTying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody s going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door ticence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration T propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

Al my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with integest: -~

Yours trtx@)ﬁfl‘l’f,ﬁ -

T ot



Page 41

Name: JE H;CK:&C}N o
Address:

Py

Badge No: | DN [ 665

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom 1t may concerm;

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a trae takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% s more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us io cali at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tanff, why net make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem fo totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,




Page 42

.

| Name: LD i S e AR E E
L CSRias CSTURERS |
i Address: |- - |
—
" e
S i
: T
i :
| Badge No: 2 !

i

15 May 2014
Provosed Hackney Carriage

To whom it may congen:

1 would like to most strongly object o the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

{n the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction ot out current charges, as most of our
fares are shost journeys this will have a sigmificant effect on our earnings. Which other firmis do you know who drop
their charges by 20%a?

The extras listed should be Tariil 2,3 ¢S not exiras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra s fair but 1o charge 30% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, ¥ you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that vou can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter {0 tedl
them a true takings of there drivers, and also i« would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and Mew Years Day at 1009 is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals sould lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than | person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 3-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cusi involved in purchasing a farper vehicle

(approximarely double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you fo call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for, People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at 1 off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
74/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 s this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting fime must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeagureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are supid, we spent years frying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration { propese that the other 1wo areas go onio the cucrent Crewe & Mantwich tanff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current aconomic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

[ loolk forward to your regponse wifh inferest.

Yours truzhiully



Page 43

Name: | MUSTAN ARMED
Address:

Badge No: \"; 2.0

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concerm:

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras lisied should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from Spm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a Jot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not wotk as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route 5o they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at & off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
2477 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.,

1 ook forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 44

Name [ MOyBOAMAD Lo e/
Address: ‘

Badge No: D o ”;; }0

15 May 2014
Proposed Hacknev Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will giveus a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for move than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrymg 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mming+ without waiting time nobedy is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remair
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 2Zp are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration [ propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 45

Name: | Aniseny KoRuEe

Address: .

Badge No: 846 S

15 May 2014
Broposed Hacknev Carriage Table of Fares

Teo whom it may concern;

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. W hich other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Taniff 2.3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry & lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to puschase aleohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



WA

Page 46

Name:

Address:

Razomik  Rabew ML i

Badge No: ’b VU LV L

£5 May 2014
Pronosed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern;

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares far the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tarniff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter o tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for alt and only lead to troubie.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
Al these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

{(approximaiely double the amount}.

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the focal boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromiptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting lime must remaim
otherwise the amount of bad feeling if will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich taritt. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economie climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfGlly, //



Page 47

Name: Zﬁ ﬂ_\.w(\ & q\‘\mc.,n“—\fwf
Address: ‘ -

Badge No: 2 QME’,?C““

13 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasens.

Tn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our cuarent charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7 |

The extras listed should be Tariff 2.3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only tead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys 1o the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at & supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration ] propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase fo help combat the current economic chimate.

All my proposals hive kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

1 look forward to yourresponse with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 48

Name:

Address:

Mowamal &) SAMICL LY Ao

Badge No: i 370 g

15 May 2014
Proposed Flacknev Carriace Table of Fares

To whom 1t may concern:

I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%"7

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, i you work mights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter 1o tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink dnving,

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount}.

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is umeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying fo eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to belp combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,




Page 49

Newe:  Jieosty S olear skl
PR PR A At

Address:

BadeeNo | Dy /95 ]

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom 1t may concern:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

Tn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on cur cusrent charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%°?

The extras listed should be Tarift 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if’ you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 3 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christinas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especiaily when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vebicle

{approximately double the amount}).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask vou to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5~10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.,

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfylly,



Page 50

Name:

Address:

MO HAMMED _DELGIAL  HOSSAIA

Badge No: ?0 /4

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than | person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount}.

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make 1t 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tanft. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 51

Name: \< Hazi 2 MWNaHmen D

Address:

| Badge No: L* (_“} } % |

15 May 2014
Proposed Hacknev Cargage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tanff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who emplov drivers depend on the taxt meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adeguate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps 1o offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat vards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a mipromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence o purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent vears trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tarnf¥. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the carrent economiic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look torward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfitllke



Page 52

Name:

Address:

Abdus  Samadk

Badge No: | R14Y

15 May 2014
Pronosed Hacknev Carriace Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the foliowing reasons.

in the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduetion on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2.3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% {rom midnight is both greedy and stupid, if vou work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble,

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this 1s needed especially when you are carrying 3-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alechol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will alse stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause 1s unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent vears trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration T propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 53

Miss Kim Evans
Licensing Team Leader
Cheshire east council
Municipal buildings
Crewe

CW1 2BJ

Badge no

T

Dear Miss K Evans

I am writing in response to the variation of the hackney carriage table of fares
That the cabinet members for communities and regulatory services have proposed I as a taxi
driver in the Crewe and nantwich zone feel that the rate 1 is unfair as we are taking a fare
decrease on that rate up to the first 4.9 miles so in that respect my daily takings will be down
as up to 70% of our work Is less than a I mile 20% is less than 4.9 miles and the remaining
1% is over so on a average week my takings will be down the taxi trade is saturated with to
many taxis as it is without having to take a cut in the day rate.
1 also feel strongly that there should not be 3 rates on a daily basses I feel 2 rates are enough
and 3rd rate on bank holidays Christmas day and new years day .
I feet the 3™ rate on a daily basis is unfair to the passengers They should not have to pay
such extreme rate to get home at a later time and feel this will encourage people to either
drink and drive or walk home in a unfit manner and may cause danger 10 themselves or other
road users 1 feel a single rate is fair enough to run from 9pm till 7am set at a rate that wont
cost the customers to much extra

———

Yours faithfully

Signature

e

-~



Page 54

Miss Kim Evans
Licensing Team Leader
Cheshire east council
Municipal buildings
Crewe

CW1 2BJ

Badgeno .5 I “ G

Y - s Lm0 -
CEan SRS

Dear Miss K. Evans

I am writing in response to the variation of the hackney carriage table of fares
That the cabinet members for communities and regulatory services have-proposed I as a taxi
driver in the Crewe and nantwich zone feel that the rafe 1 is unfair as we are taking a fare
decrease on that rate up to the first 4.9 miles so in that respect my daily takings will be down
as up to 70% of our work Is less than a 1 mile 29% is less than 4.9 miles and the remaining
1% is over so on a average week my takings will be down the taxi trade is saturated with to
many taxis as it is without-having to take a cut in the day rate.
I also feel strongly that there should not be 3 rates on a daily basses [ feel 2 rates are enough
and 3rd rate on bank holidays Christmas day and new years day .
1 feel the 3 rate on a daily basis is unfair to the passengers They should not have fo pay
such extreme rate to get home at a later time and feel this will encourage people to either
drink and drive or walk home in a unfit manner and may cause danger to themsetves or other
road users 1 feel a single rate is fair enough to run from 9pm till 7am set at a rate that wont
cost the customers to much extra

Yours faithfully

Signaturé



Page 55

Name: TAN  SPEUCEN
Address:
Badge No: \ 7O

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concer:

¥ would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reascns.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will bave a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tariff’ 2.3 eic not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could fead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this ts available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same resuit.

Taking ail into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & MNantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem o totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

I look forward to vour response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 56

it MName: : S . C&’DR’:’L[&\

- Address: .

B UV

i
TP S SR —
: 1
1 3
i
i

Radae No: &Y 3“} i

15 May 2014

Proposed Hackney C

To whom it may congern:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction o ouv curfent charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this wijl have a significant effect on our earnings. Which ather firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras lsted should be Tarifl 2.3 2tc not exiras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 30% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if vou work mghts
in industry a jot of firms now work 4 mghts nstead of § but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter 1o tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% 15 more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than | person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 3-8
passengers as this helps to ofiset the extra cost nvolved in purchasing a larger vehicls

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get joumneys to the local boat yards
for holidaymaleers, they always ask you fo call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for, People returning home often
decide to have a imprompru party and often ask ns to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
34/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 ming this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time nwust remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasuveable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result,

Taking all into consideration [ propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich taniff. That
would give them a raie increase to help combat the current eCONOc cHmare.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing. which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

[ look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 57

Name: EEQWAN‘D‘igKFDH?W\
Address:

Badge No: 3 L[_ ] “I

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

I would like to most strongly object 1o the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

Tn the new proposals the charge for the first mile wilt give us a 20% reduction on our curvent charges, as most of cur
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Taritf 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weelkly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer areed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home cften
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to calf at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation, Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unineasureable,

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tanff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & MNantwich tanff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current gconomic climate.

Al my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totaily disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

Ilook f o your response with interest.

You -



Page 58

Name:

ame chmb léguﬂ}tb -
Address:

Badge No: 3224

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

fn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction op our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras Histed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Firing from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adequate
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en youte so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home otter
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad faeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20
per 1711 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration ] propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

Alt my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER, |

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 59

Name:

| Address:

\ EN U é Gl TS

Badge No. |~z -
= :),_)6(_-#

i s

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carnage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

I would like to most sirongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reducrion on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tariit 2,3 efc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is botlr greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights imstead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi mefer to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 3-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home otten
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door heence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause 1s unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per /11 of a mile giving the same result,

TFalking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER,

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 60

Name: f/\')?sf@y CC:C:;{?Q’('
Address:
Badge No: L DRV %75' i

Proposed Hackney Carriaze Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:
I would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

Tn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%?

The extras listed should be Tarii¥ 2.3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work mghts
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 3 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors whe employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving,

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

{approximately double the amount}.

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a imprompiu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase aleohol, this 1s available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make 1t 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration T propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the cwrent economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.,

I look forward to vour response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 61

mN’amet Dﬁ Vi ' >3 \/’fo“’ ) !? }
Address: ’

Badge No: ! é Lt 7

15 May 2014

Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.
In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction or our current charges, as wnost of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop

their charges by 20%7
The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is Tair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights

in industry 2 lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of
Y 54

5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To

say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more thar 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8

passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involve

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and
g pp

d in purchasing a larger vehicle

Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards

for holidaymakers, they always ask you to cail at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions tis can

often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is got

ng to stop without being paid for, People refurning bome often

decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting fitne must remam
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

'The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not malce it 20p

per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result,

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase (o help combat the current sconomic climate.
Alf my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,

THE CUSTOMER,

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 62

Address: - T B
Badge No: ey .
, = SN EN B

13 May 2074
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern.

T would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

in the new proposals the charge for the first maile will give us & 20% reduction on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Taritt 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of § but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% exira. 1o
say that you can atways charge less does 1ot work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter (o tefl
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for alf and only Jead fo trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity, 50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could jead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the AMOUNL).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody Is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home oflen
decide to have a impromptu party and often. ask us to call at a off doar licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 muns this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tarifl, why not make 1t 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onio the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase o help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totalty disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



Page 63

Name: A
Address:

w

|
|
|

|
|
|
|

|
|
|

NN USRS NI St

Badge No:

L

NRNZ S B

15 May 2014
Pronosed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concesn

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.
In the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on out current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra ‘s fair but to charge 50% from miidnight 13 both greedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates o 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge 1egs does not work as propirietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
Al these proposals could Jead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed espectally when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys 10 the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remain
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20¢
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same Tesult.

Taking all into consideration I propose ¢hat the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic chmate.

All my proposals have kept 1n mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,

THE CUSTOMER.

1 took forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully, .



Page 64

Address:

Badge No. | >3 3

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carnage Table of Fares

To whom it may concer:

1 would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

Tn the new proposals the charge for the first mile will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges. as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a significant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras,

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both areedy and stupid, if you work nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 3 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that you can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter 10 tedl
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause 2 free for all and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carrying 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a targer vehicle

{approximately double the amnount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys (o the local boat vards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you 1o call at a supermarket en route sO they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going 1o stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a tmpromptu party and often ask us 1o call at 2 off door licence to purchase alcohol, this 1s available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation. Waiting time must remaif
otherwise the amount of bad feeling it will cause is unmeasureabie.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent years trying to eliminate coppers from our tatiff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose ¢hat the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & MNantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate mcrease 0 help combat the current gconomniic climate.

All my proposals have kept n mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

1 look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,

]
[Neme' | S s Ao,




Page 65

Name:

Address:

Badge Ne: | 32)‘{{,0

15 May 2014
Proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

To whom it may concern:

[ would like to most strongly object to the proposed new table of fares for the following reasons.

In the new proposals the charge for the first mite will give us a 20% reduction on our current charges, as most of our
fares are short journeys this will have a signiticant effect on our earnings. Which other firms do you know who drop
their charges by 20%7?

The extras listed should be Tariff 2,3 etc not extras.

Hiring from 9pm at 20% extra is fair but to charge 50% from midnight is both greedy and stupid, if you worle nights
in industry a lot of firms now work 4 nights instead of 5 but at the same weekly wage, this equates to 20% extra. To
say that vou can always charge less does not work as proprietors who employ drivers depend on the taxi meter to tell
them a true takings of there drivers, and also it would cause a free for alt and only lead to trouble.

Christmas Day and New Years Day at 100% is also nothing but sheer greed and stupidity,50% is more than adequate.
All these proposals could lead to an increase in drink driving.

The extra charge for more than 1 person has been dropped, this is needed especially when you are carryig 5-8
passengers as this helps to offset the extra cost involved in purchasing a larger vehicle

(approximately double the amount).

Waiting time has also been dropped. In the Crewe and Nantwich area we often get journeys to the local boat yards
for holidaymakers, they always ask you to call at a supermarket en route so they can purchase provisions this can
often take 20mins+ without waiting time nobody is going to stop without being paid for. People returning home often
decide to have a impromptu party and often ask us to call at a off door licence to purchase alcohol, this is available
24/7 at certain garages taking 5-10 mins this will also stop causing more aggravation, Waiting time must Feram
otherwise the amount of bad {eeling it will cause is unmeasureable.

The proposed drops at 22p are stupid, we spent vears trying to eliminate coppers from our tariff, why not make it 20p
per 1/11 of a mile giving the same result.

Taking all into consideration I propose that the other two areas go onto the current Crewe & Nantwich tariff. That
would give them a rate increase to help combat the current economic climate.

All my proposals have kept in mind what to me is the most important thing, which others seem to totally disregard,
THE CUSTOMER.

I look forward to your response with interest.

Yours truthfully,



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

Appendix 4

Macclesfield Zone Responses



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69

Kim Evans Tim Sumner
Licensing Officer Top Cars Uk Ltd
Cheshire East . R STy
Westfields

Middlewich Rd

Sandbach

Cheshire

CW11 1HZ

18/5/14

Dear Mrs Evans,

| refer to your recent letter advising of revised Hackney carriage tariffs in the
Cheshire East Area.

Yet again proposals have been put forward that do not take in to account the
present state of the economy, the views of the drivers and the views of Cheshire
East Council tax payers . Do you really think that the general public want to pay
considerably more for their taxis ? We have the supermarkets in a price war where
Sainsburys are trying to get their prices closer to Aldi and yet the licensing authority
seem to think that these financial constraints don’t apply to the taxi industry. Well
they do?

You say that these proposed tariffs are to harmonise the price structure over the
three regions. You have glibly ignored the fact that both Crewe and Congleton differ
from Macclesfield massively in that they are regulated and we are not .That to my
mind is a far bigger issue and only heightens the lack of strategic thinking within
Cheshire East Licensing.

Just to give a simple overview of how I think the rates should be set follows but I will
go on to deal with the detail later.

People do not trust taxi drivers. They know there are different tariffs but they don't
know when they start or what % increases there are. Confusion and uncertainty are
the two main reasons why people don’t buy. During the week the business traveller




Page 70

just jumps in the cab and there is usually no enquiry about the price because their
company is paying. Friday and Saturday nights are normally so busy that nobody
cares. Sunday is the best indicator of how the public uses taxis. On the rank at
Macclesfield station on a Sunday morning there are normally only four or five cabs
till mid afternoon. We are very rarely busy on a Sunday as locals know that we are a
third dearer than most private hire companies so they will be much busier at our
cost.

People , who arrive at the station will either be picked up by friends and relatives or
because they are not business travellers will have pre-booked a private hire vehicle.

it doesn’t matter whether it is a third or a half extra our income will not increase and
will probably go down.

| would scrap Sunday rates, Bank Holiday rates, with the exception of Xmas and New
Year leaving them as they are now. All | would do is increase the minimum fare i.e

flag rate to
£ 3.50 and keep the pence per mile the same.

| can see NO reason why anyone should pay extra for a cab on a Sunday or Bank
Holiday, as you would not pay extra for anything else at those times, drinks food etc,
Our industry is part of a bigger industry and should be viewed as such.

To give you an example of how the Sunday tariff would affect us.
From the rank to Whaley Bridge £ 30.00

Cab Co £21.00
These rates are a Xmas present for the private hire companies ! | ask myself WHY.
The argument for increases on Sundays and Bank holidays was originally that you
wouldn’t get enough drivers out. This no longer holds true as drivers are being

licensed in record numbers and there aren’t the number of customers anyway!!
Putting prices up will make matters worse,

As | understand it one of the main points of your proposals is to scrap waiting time ?

Firstly there is no other council in the UK that has that policy 1]
Why do you want to be the first ? Again it clearly shows that you do not understand
how the taxi business works in Macclesfield ! |

Let’s take a typical Monday morning off the station rank.There will probably be as
many as 20-25 trips to Middlewood Ct AZ at Hulley rd and these will be done in rush
hour traffic so the waiting time can easily be a £ 1.00 or more ! | have never had a
customer complain about waiting time.




Page 71

Do you seriously expect us to stop at cash tills, takeaways, toilets, launderettes,
private houses etc etc etc and not get paid for that time. Would you work for
nothing???

Waiting time payments are an essential part of a driver’s income and should be
retained. '

| have dealt with Sundays and bank holidays in that the intended price rises should
be scrapped or as a positive step reduce them to the flat daily rate. Your proposed
increase from a third to a half represents an increase of 12.5 % on the existing rate.
Do you know the current rate of inflation? This is hardly a competitive move is it?
The majority of people are struggling with their household budgets in the worst
recession for 70 years and you want to increase the prices at 4 times the rate of
inflation.

And finally , well not quite |! Why do you want to create mare confusion and
mistrust by introducing a mid evening rate?

I have no idea of the reasons behind these proposals ?? It should be remembered
that all licensing whether it be taxis, utility supplies, communications etc etc came
after the business not before. All decisions connected with pricing should be
business driven not the other way round.

This document looks as though it could have been written with the help of the
private hire companies because the they are the only ones that will benefit from it.

The public will not benefit and neither will the Hackney carriage drivers in the
borough.

In your efforts to HARMONISE you will created total discord.

The public don’t want these changes and neither do we {!

Regards -




Page 72

Kim Evans Tim Sumner
Licensing Officer Top Cars Uk Ltd
Cheshire East I e S
Westfields

Middlewich Rd

Sandbach

Cheshire

CWi11 1HZ

23/5/14

Dear Ms Evans,

I refer to your email to me of the 20" May in which you outline your timescales on
this consultation.

Initially put to the Licensing Committee on the 5™ November 2012 { what an
appropriate date !! } and the Cabinet member on the 7™ january .

So this process of consultation was started over 30 months ago ?7? !

The Oxford English dictionary defines the word Consultation as “ the act of
consulting “ 27 a conference for discussion or the seeking of advice “.

At no stage have me or my colleagues been asked for advice either individually or
collectively and it would seem that a number of councillors, who know nothing of
these proposed fair increases, have not been asked for advice either.

The definition of the word Objection in the Oxford English Dictionary is “an
expression or feeling of opposition or dislike “

Now this | have been asked to do but | only have a couple of weeks to do it as do the
Macclesfield Tax Payers.




Had the Macclesfield tax payers been made aware of this via their local councillors
you would have had a resounding “No “.If | said to you tomorrow “oh by the way
we’re putting your grocery bill up is that OK there would be an overwhelming no.

As David Rutley said at his meeting with us on Wednesday that very few people read
the public notices in the Macclesfield Express so the number of objections you
receive is clearly not a true reflection of public opinion.

These proposals will affect the income of the Hackney Carriage drivers in the
borough and will be welcomed by the private hire operators. To the general public
there is no difference between these two sectors. It’s just a smart phone a Google
search and a price.

I am a member of Unite , you may well be also ? If there was a proposal to lessen
your income would you expect to be consulted as to why it was necessary ? Would
you accept such a proposal ? Clearly not ! So why should we ?

The majority of the drivers are self - employed and each ,in varying degrees, is a
small businessman completely reliant on his own abilities to make a living. There are
larger companies like GT Tours who serve the school transport sector . Your
proposals will affect our businesses.

We work the streets; we know that the Taxi business is a good barometer of the
economy.

You have notconsulted us or the general public properly when you have clearly had
enough time to do so and it is clear that you are trying to railroad these proposals in
through the back door!

We will not let you do that.

We have not had an acceptable explanation as to why this increase is needed ?
There is not massive unrest on the rank about an increase but we would welcome
some proper discussions on how the rates operate.

You use the word HARMONISATION as the reason for the proposals.

As a business person | understand that to mean that these proposals will result in
cost savings to Cheshire East or efficiency benefits. In which case have you informed
the licensing committee of the actual savings as a figure? If so can you tell us what it
is 7 It’s not obvious to me or most of the business people I've spoken to how
substantial a benefit these proposals might bring ?

I suspect that this is a cosmetic idea with little substance which might make admin a
bit easier and a bit cheaper !!




Page 74

I hope you are costing the time that you are now having to devote to sort this mess
out?

If these proposals are to standardise rates across the three towns so that everybody
pays the same then that is utter nonsense. Will a person from any of those three
towns, who on the odd occasion uses ataxi in a different town worry about the
different price, even if they notice ? Of course not I

People in Crewe , Congleton, and Macclesfield do not pay the same for their housing,
groceries, entertainment, meals drinks fuel etc, etc, They are separate economies
with different demographics.

It would be laughable for say the Regional Director of a supermarket chain or indeed
any retail business to write to their store managers in the three towns and say “ just
to make the spreadsheets easier to read we are going to have the same prices in all
the stores. It would not happen because sales and profits would go down 11

Yet you, without consultation are proposing to do just that !
You have a “ B “ in your bonnet about this but it happens to be the wrong “ B “.

I met with you a while ago to discuss issues affecting taxis in Macclesfield and |
know that | NEVER mentioned a tariff increase but | will highlight those issues which |
did talk about then. The Macclesfield public and drivers both have a poor deal .

There has nevereen an enforcement officer on any of the ranks in Macclesfield on
a Friday or Saturday night as far as i or any of the other drivers are aware. | have
asked you tell us the date of any such visit that might have been made. | have never
had a response. They would be able to address the following issues.

1) Overcharging . This happens regularly and could easily be resolved by an
enforcement officer or mystery shopper.

2} Private hire taxis from out of town waiting for jobs at the station after
dropping off.

3) Private hire taxis from out of town ranking up on Mill Street.

4) Private hire taxis ranking up by the Medical Centre.

5) Hackney carriage drivers from out of town doing private hire work in the
town, a loophole in the regulations which 1 am told by a licensing officer from
Stockport they are trying to close.

N.B if you are up to speed with the Law Commission’s interim report on the industry
you will have noted that they have changed their mind on de-regulation.Originally
they were intending fo implement it but have now done a 180 degree turn and are
proposing to have councils regulate the number of plates. Macclesfield has no
adjacent boroughs that are fully de-regulated as we are.




Page 75

6) Drivers being allowed to work in the borough without sufficient local
knowledge

These are more reievant issues than the Harmonisation of tariffs but Licensing
has done virtually nothing to sort these matters ou !
We do not accept these proposals which shouid be deferred for 6 months and a

proper consultation process begun.

Cheshire East has had it's INCINERATORGATE, WASTEGATE, REFUSEGATE or what
you will. It's about to get it’s TAXIGATE.

Regards,

Tim Sumner

Houses

Grocereies




Page 76

Tim Sumner
Top Cars Uk Ltd

23/5/14

Dear Licensing committee member,

Obviously the furore regarding the proposed increase in Hackney Carriage tariffs is
gaining momentum,

This is unfortunate because this is taking up valuable time of both the council and
Hackney drivers who are trying to earn a living.

There is some question as to the legality of the proposal concerning the removal of
waiting time? The National Taxi Association are taking legal advice on this and |, at
present have a QC reviewing it through my union.

These are all unnecessary wastes of time and money.

| feel that the Council, by it’s own short-sightedness has backed itself into a corner
which might mean that this will go down to the wire.

There wiil be an article in the Macclesfield Express on Wednesday, as there was in
the Congleton Chronicle last week and our campaign to collect support will begin
through an extensive social media campaign, the physical collection of signatures on
a petition and the support we have enlisted through a number of councillors.

There is a way out of this for you which though it will not completely leave you
without egg on your face will show you in a better light as a caring council that has
the interests of it’s tax payers at heart in these difficult times.




Page 77

Simply say that when these proposals were first mooted in November 2012 that you
took advice on what the state of the economy might be when they were to be
introduced in May 2014.

Reiterate that advice was taken in January 2013.

You now withdraw these proposals accepting that whilst the economy is moving
slowly upward that for those people at the lower end of the economic spectrum and
those who depend on short taxi journeys on a reguiar basis that your proposed
increases would be an unfair extra burden to their budget.

Fam sure that you can find someone to write this properly.

Agree that you will review this situation in say October and will CONSULT with
appropriate parties.

This will include representatives of the Licensed Hackney Carriage drivers!!
The publiic don’t want this proposed new tariff and neither do the drivers.

Finally, we are pretty sure we know the reason why you have introduced these
tariffs!! Couldn’t possibly be a hike in our License fees coming could there?

These tariffs will not increase our incomes!! That surely must be clear to you now!!

You would do well to concentrate on the law commissions report that councils
should regulate the number of plates before looking at badge increases.

Regards,

Tim Sumner




EVANS, Kim

From: Tim Sumner @ - S |
Sent: 29 May 2014 07:33

To: EVANS, Kim

Subject: Answer the questions.

Hi Ms Evans,

the problem is Ms Evans is that you never answer the questions which have been posed and you
contradict yourself.

You say that there has been extensive consultation with the trade ?
Please be good enough to tell us how many representatives from the trade you have met with and who
they are ? We have formed the Cheshire East Taxi Group which will encompass the three towns involved

and none of the members { about a 100 on the first day ) has any recollection of being invited to a
meeting to discuss these proposals nor have we nominated any person to represent our views.

Did you invite certain persons to consult with you ?
I am forwarding an email to you reference a meeting that took place on the 26th April 2014.

You say that this was widely debated in the council so how come that at least five active councillors knew
nothing about these proposed increases ?

You say that the public were aware of the proposed increases by way of information on your website. How
many people do you think would look on your website to see if their taxi fares were going to rise ?

You say that these tariff rises are to create harmonisation yet you have added another tariff band ??
You are proposing to alter the double time timings on Xmas and New Year yet the general public do know
and accept that that has been the case.

Again | repeat the question WHY are you proposing to scrap waiting time when no other council in the UK
has ever considered or proposed such a thing ?

In your email you say that we can charge less than the meter price ?

On the Taxi Fares sheet which we display in the cabs it says " The fare shown on the meter is the fare to be
paid "

That will cause more dis- harmony with passengers as they will almost certainly think that you can charge
more than the meter as well . This is hardly standardisation is it ?

Are you saying that in the unlikely scenario of you rail roading these changes through we can keep our
meters as they are now if we want to ? If so your're pursuing a pretty pointless exercise.

You fail to answer the the precise question put to you in a previous email. What are the actual costed
savings of these proposals and have they clearly been demonstrated to the Licensing committee and the
leader of the council. Can we see these figures ? Do they exist ?




Page 79

Were these proposed changes your idea or one particular licensing committee member ?

| am not sure how many people from the trade support these ideas but | am assuming that as a democratic
country if the number of objectors exceeds those in favour then the proposals will not be carried ? Or is
this purely arbitrary on the Councils part and you can do what you like ?

We are a hundred strong and growing.

We have representatives from each of the three towns and insist that to give you a true reflection of the
trade's views we meet with you, the licensing committee or both ?

| have asked David Rutley to arrange a meeting between ourseives and Michael Jones.

Please Ms Evans answer the questions honestly and fully and look at your diary.

Regards,

Tim Sumner




Page 80

EVANS, Kim

From: Tim Sumner - v
Sent: 01 June 2014 22:04
TO: R N L
Subject: ToAE A Pl .

Ms Evans,

you continue to tell us this is about harmonisation yet nothing could be further from the truth,
You say that these rates would help help the public understand better !|
| have not had one person in the 4 years | have been doing this look at a tariff card I

What they obviously do Ms Evans is look at the meter and they understand that " the fare on the meter is
the fare to be paid " but you have even confused this issue now by telling us in your last email that we can
have our meters with our own individual tariffs |

How can the public trust such inconsistencies ?
The public does understand that rates go up at 11-30 to time and a half.
The public does understand that Xmases and New Year are at double time.

Your proposed change to 20% after 9pm will come as a shock to passengers and those people who have
been on shots prior to being taken to clubs etc will be a problem for us. The private hire operators will
benefit from this immensely as it will force business their way. '

Your business naivety shows through when you say that because a person hold a joint private hire/
hackney badge your consultations are relevant.

Rubbish. The true Hackney drivers work the ranks have flag-downs and build there own customer base.
They do not pay over a £ 100 per week to the likes of Silvertown etc which because of this arrangement
means they are beholding to that operator,

Upset the boss and get your radio taken away. That will hardly give them an impartial view when your
consulting with them.

An experienced licensing officer would never have put themselves in a position such as you did at
Westfields.

I wonder if the police are aware of some of the consequences of removing waiting time or have you
thought about them.

If we can't charge waiting time do you think drivers will be the same on the roads. { don't know . Would
their driving habits change ?

Have you made the police aware of the difficulties that will arise when in the early hours of the morning a
passenger wants to stop for whatever reason and the cabbie says you will have to pay now and get

another cab. Is it unreasonable for a driver to wait for an indeterminate amount of time for nothing.How
1




Page 81

long would you suggest he waits before reporting the incident to the police as a non payer Have you
consulted with the police on these issues. | would suggest you do. S

Similarly what do we do with older people who maybe go shopping, collect thelr prescnptions etc Ask
them to pay and order another cab ?

People picking their kids up from Schools nurseries and it's raining " can you wait 10 mins driver " No you
will have to get another cab .

These are scenarios which we deal with everyday and whilst the waiting time is not a lot { and a lot less
than Congleton ) the drivers do deal with these situations sympathetically.

Back to this wonderful word Harmonisation enabling the fare paying public to understand the tariffs
better.

When you took over this role ! came to see you to talk about the issues that were of common interest to
both the drivers and licensing enforcement.

| suggested that at the earliest opportunity you would make yourself known to the rank by visiting it on a
Friday or a Saturday night to learn first hand what goes on.To my knowledge you have not done so. What a
golden opportunity missed to form a working relationship with us.We do have the same goals Ms Evans. A
well regulated rank gives the public peace of mind in terms of safety and fair prices.

You say you feel the tariffs would be easier to understand.Have you physically been on the street talking to
people who use taxis ? That's the way to understand what the public thinks. I invite you, sometime in the
next few days to spend some time with me talking to ALL sectors of the Boroughs council tax payers ? This
is the real world !

Nearly finally.You have still not provided what the actual cost benefit is to the Council. Has this
information been logged with the Chief Finance officer or is it as we all suspect just

HAVING THE SAME WALLPAPER IN EVERY ROOM

Stop the implementation of these proposals and meet with us properly in October and we will have proper
proposals for you.

After all Ms Evans you have had since 5th November 2012, with all the resources of Cheshire East at your
disposal and access to fine minds and still managed to come up with a DOG'S BREAKFAST OF A PROPOSAL.

BOTH THE PUBLIC AND THE DRIVERS WILL BE WORSE OFF WITH THIS PROPOSAL AND YOU HAVE STILL NOT
EXPLAINED WHAT THE BENEFIT IS TO CHESHIRE EAST. IT MUST BE MINIMAL AND CAN NOT BE WORTH
DOING.YOU HAVE NOT CONSULTED PROPERLY .

NOBODY WANTS THE SAME WALLPAPER IN EVERY ROOM
Regards

Tim Sumner

Cheshire East Taxi Group




Page 82

EVANS, Kim

From: LICENSING (Cheshire East)
Sent: 16 May 2014 14:16

To: EVANS, Kim

Subject: FW: Kim evans

From: Christopher Hall |
Sent: 16 May 2014 14:1+4

To: LICENSING (Cheshire East)
Subject: Kim evans

I object to the new proposed tatiff as its unfair on drivers no waiting time and a big reduction in wages




P Pagess
Tom  Asttwocty

Ve

/-9"/6‘ S/ 2ol

To Licensing committee East Cheshire

1 strongly object to the proposals for changes to the Taxi tariff for Cheshire East
in particular to the abolishing of waiting time something that is operated in every
other borough in the country and I wish this objectton to be noted.

I also object to the allowing of Taxis from other boroughs being allowed to
operate in our area.

Yours sincerely e . J




Page 84

Miss Kim Evans
Licensing Team Leader
Cheshire East Council
Municipal Buildings
Crewe

CW1 2BJ

Dear NMiss Evans,
Re: The proposed Table of Fares @ Macclesfield Zone.

| agree with the proposal with the exception of the omission of a waiting
time charge.

I presume this to be a clerical error as no waiting charge would not be
acceptable.

Waiting should reflect at least the minimum wage per hour and the
standing cost of a Taxi per hour.

Yours sincerely
g\

PAT GILLICK

Date: 22-05-2014

B L P e it o, S S A R

ST

" . S . ., R - - Y
Rt & TR e A e 0 u b~ Skt s a1 T T rta O I bl Lokt WD, 0 TS i 0 WML T DS T O s T S LT W A

AT L R W LR Lttt TR L SO B R AR




Page 85

EVANS, Kim

From: Patrick Gillick -
Sent: 30 May 2014 135:48
To: EVANS, Kim

Dear Kim

Re: Waiting time charge. This charge should reflect standing costs and the "at least" the national minimum
wage. The amount required to fulfil this is £18 per hour pro rata.

Regards

" pat Gillick
Sparetime




Page 86

EVANS, Kim

From: John Hanmer ;- -
Sent: 30 May 2014 13:32

To: EVANS, Kim

Subject: Proprosed tariff increase

Hi Kim I agree with the proposed tariff increase but the only two things missing is the waiting time which
should be around the £18 per hour. The other thing is the 4 seats + should be Fare + 50% saving customer
50% as they would need two Taxi's.

regards John Hanmer @ Silvertown




Page 87

Attn Kym Evans
30™ May 2014

East Cheshire Council
By Email Only

Dear Ms Evans
We write with reference to the recent proposals for changes in the local taxi tariffs and would like to put on record our

acceptance of the new proposed terms, with the exception of the waiting time which appears to have been omitted.
With regard to this we would expect to charge around £20.00 per hour on a pro rata basis.

Yours sincerely

Bob Cooper
Partner

Silk Taxis Ltd trading as Macclesfield Radio Cars
Registered in England No. 08133131




Page 88

EVANS, Kim

From: Becky Hilton

Sent: 30 May 2014 13:03

To: EVANS, Kim

Subject; Re: Re changes to taxi tariff
Hi,

Thank you for your response.

We would like to see the waiting time reinstated to the rate pre October 2011, £18.09 per
hour or 38p per minute.

We are satisfied with all other proposals and would like to distance ourselves from the
approach of Mr Sumner.

Please could you forward to me a copy of the report to committee that asked for waiting
time to be removed and the minutes of that meeting. I've looked on the Cheshire East web
site and it doesn’'t seem to be there.

Regards
Becky Hilton & Graham Trevena,
GT Tours Ltd.

Sent from my iPhone

> On 30 May 2014, at 09:54, "EVANS, Kim" <Kim.Evansficheshireeast.gov.uk> wrote:

>

> Dear Miss Hilton

>

> Thank you for your enquiry regard the proposed amendments to.the Table of Fares. I can
confirm that the omission of waiting time is not a clerical error.

5 ,

> However, we have received several consultation responses requesting that waiting time be
reinstated and the decision-maker has the opportunity to consider those suggestions and
vary the proposals. If you have an suggestions at what level you think waiting time should
be set at you can provided those during the consultation process.

>

> Regards

> Kim Evans

>

'

————— Original Messa

From: Becky Hilton

Sent: 29 May 2014 12:01

To: EVANS, Kim

Subject: Re changes to taxi tariff

Hi Kdim,

VOV VOV VY VY Y

Please could you clarify whether the omission of waiting time on the proposed new tariff
is merely a clerical error or intended.

Regards,

Becky Hilton, GT Tours Ltd

2k ok 2k ok ok ok 3k ok sk o sk ok ok 3R ok ok sk ok ok sk sk sk ok s e ok ok ok o o o ok sk ol ok ok ok sk ok ok ofe ok sk sk sf sk sk ok sk ok sl sk s s i sk ok sk ok sk ok ok ok s ok ok ook sk oK

> Confidentiality: This email and its contents and any attachments are intended only for
the above named. As the email may contain confidential or legally privileged information,
if you are not the above named person or responsible for delivery to the above named, or

AY RV VY

1




Page 89

suspect that you are not an intended recipient please delete or destroy the email and any
attachments immediately.

>

> Security and Viruses: This note confirms that this email message has been swept for the
presence of computer viruses. We cannot accept any responsibility for any damage or loss
caused by software viruses,

>

> Monitoring: The Council undertakes monitoring of both incoming and outgoing emails. You
should therefore be aware that if you send an email to a person within the Council it may
be subject to any monitoring deemed necessary by the organisation from time to time. The
views of the author may not necessarily reflect those of the Council.

>

> Access as a public body: The Council may be required to disclose this email (or any
response to it) under the Freedom of Information Act, 2000, unless the information in it
is covered by one of the exempticns in the Act.

>

> Legal documents: The Council does not accept service of legal documents by email.

> sk A 3K Ak ok R ok s SR R ok s ok s ok sk sk ok ok s sk ok ok ok ok o ok ok o ok R ok ok ol ok sl ok v sk ook o sk o sk sk ok skl sk ok R SR R R SRR SR R RE R Rk

>




g

- 3&59 S3/L

$ADWm

Page 90

WMILHZILOW o THRLE ofF  Fhetl

U RARVEE

o & 9

-2

NN

AR~ SETLRRIRY

C7-80 A~ \RRE

CAREY W

TLe howny

e NRO Yol

360

4RO |

|

QTR WL

oM Ghewn  Nefsowl

[\ xRSy of On& . |

%0

VRE_ OF. \ORENE.
QROCE

=\0

QR ENLERS QETIER

9-QQ

BN VAU YO O S,

1NN B0

TWAREE R

TAREE Ly

NN
2R NOLIRORY -

MRS
T-o0n- WHPE

TAREE ey
© TR 2ani

L EAEN LORKALENT %Mmsss} “fl©§ QLS oW
RN = 5 |

NRET WG TR \&-00! VesS Ty
RS ST NoW

RS C?;-:“'\t\\{
TR N Q@
QREE oy
Waegs aeN
PRE N NowW

ang NS W
RTATNRNN
Ny Veses S

1o 97
TRl U VEC
~Fooes AT

TNEE gray
A TR s
UHTES B
Rues WY
QRE W WOW

5 - R _Veov

b

WAEEL  Ca® QS
VNE V0KS

NO

S fe QNAREE

59-0




Page 91

Appendix 5

Trade Organisation Responses



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 93

Cheshire East Licensed Vehicle
Association |

Cheshire East
Licensing Dept.
Westfields
Sandbach
CW11 1Hz
227 May 2014
- Dear Kim,
Proposed Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares.

The members met on Monday evening to discuss the above proposals. They
voted unanimously fo reject them,

We would ask that the increase be bro_ught in over a numbers of years o
dilute the effect the proposals will have on customers, The 20% increase
between 9,00 and 12.00 pm was also rejected.

However, it was noted that waiting time was proposed fo be axed and we
would ask for that be reinstated. '

Yours sincerely,

For and on behalf of the members of CELVA




Page 94
Objection Slip
Cheshire East Taxi Group

Cheshire East Council have decided, on the basis of

standardising tariffs across the three towns of Macclesfield,
- Congleton and Crewe to increase your taxi fares.

A majority of drivers across the borough oppose this move as
neither the general public nor ourselves have been consulted

properly,

Indeed a number of counciilors were unaware that there was a
proposed tariff incease {1

If you object to Cheshire East council bringing in fare rises
without proper extensive consultation please tick the box.

Name - Signature

Postcode

CHI2. 15

Thank you for your support  Cheshire East Taxi Group
Formed 28/5/14




PPPPPP

Appendix 6

Public Responses



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 97

29 S iy | C Sweadedale  Hux
" Ruoslowton

osngleton

N
L9 757
\lQA/r S /’Mar}\a,m, | '

T wnte to uen o
—

-P@J’avl 'Jksq&.&f at H\o Y0 ) c&xcuraa!i

ﬁm‘ Tosy ﬁ@,m& CLD J.r_gu\ real S0

*Hf\cﬁr thewre (S No (,Cﬂ’\gu Q. b\/\/ﬁ; _

SO Sl € o SO & 2.4 \%c:«hxratopj& to tewn

»FWW\ %&Xﬁ Lowston .. Hyae 1@ pensieners

V15 )"‘:(,Cf\w'f". to Q/h\javt pihakeves LS

Soywc 0w i Fourw on OV.SC&,J(’Lchi‘GVj

Bcu cm Hr\w\k m,w»{ p@msbonu (o RA”

besic PENS, N &an omcﬁwc) ij oo

4'004‘& _F&m'&} Y. Vm H/\L recd H)O’“""LCJ !

QAOP Hus o 0’3\th PPW g ) GeY

V@M (i v 3/01 . Mumwé%'__&i_kj




Page 98

lLeunady Auenue
ches@.@\é
DKo BDE

Mox 28 2ol

PA_O \AJ\\M i_MO\V\S co T
clhesbuns Sost Counal 4 g Al 10

Y owa Lorkking fo raquest e Couc]

Lo roconside the teay sieap |unaosw

propoSed 1y Nesd fanen @.Dw Ture 4,
ot Wit aldenly awvd, ©the

Yhe tweoyen
e NGRS ko wie fovgs siru luggivy

heoveTy SO PPN wa kpuatr, adtevd ing
Swochous, hesqried appdn&wxom sy
Canvoell, W iS 11V Q\,ﬁ»@v\d/_) wot owv o ComrORIOUWA

bos roule ehe. |
) p,Q/\C;oM\\:) ol uLe o~ =% wolbou /\_Q’,LJMWWS

G 2 -2 W Y T@wd—»ﬁu\ RYREE aLYV N
pobs ek many oA e ladsn ebenivy
by va” oo cpirote. Yuisure otk

>0 toe
‘ cuq Well | eose



999999

Appendix 7

Petitions



This page is intentionally left blank



Page101

Objections to the Proposed
Vanatmn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

(Publlshed in the Congleton Chronicle Public Notices on 15™ May 2014)

I object to Cheshire East’ “Proposed Var1at10n to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares”
by placmg my signature an nd address/postcode on this form, as I feel the minimum faxe of :

- £2.90 rlsmg by 60p to £3 501 is Just too much in a smgle increase.

Name. U | Addless andlm Pest Code Si_g'nétur_e
- o |g@rocfobewd R
g, o‘r\@hm .

ez A

‘L

-AUDLQMRD .
| ALsAGEe
5‘1-7 Q@\\_\

- m&qy\@mé_ﬁ Aﬁ’ﬁﬂwg
&iﬁc\ e S |
577 «%\4 R I

- /Hu NE@"’&ﬁNOS |
GNV} LH- l B

7ch5ﬁﬂw{zfjﬁ«z_;__w 4__#'”—;_; B ——————
Ca/k-)fcc, TEV> :

c;c‘fdf?_cpluft»( |
-P?rfah_ Lacs .

Conal Lo~ ‘

LTyl

Ome Bood
%mw&f& undes lyine t
ST5 20D




Page 102

Address and/or Post Code

Signature:

Name

i ""F&%@ﬂ L couunrd

SN JLO—J%_GAA.

e o ej(,éewl,,
7 fdlcelrcﬁm '
aMe,é,?n[f“
b ; ' C‘.,ui-‘Z_ 1.“ )

- Pw(cﬁg@b
N/’Lﬁd ﬁ,o*ugz/zf %u

%Mw@ Ji

-! l‘s&v LApff

= V;«UM-LM:: o

|

Lom\a L,éior\l CHéSlﬁlr«fC

‘ 'S L ol G
G‘CNLO,KQQ)QL@A—CS
C o d IHR

. Do-cwson Recol
Chja NT

|
|
|
|
|

29, /\/ Sneleny Crese,




Page103

Objectmns to the:Proposed
Variation to the Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares

(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chromcle Pubhc Notlces on 15" May 2014)

| I object to Cheshu:e East’ “Proposed Variation to the Hack.ney Camage Table of .,w_s‘ ' {
by plaomg my signature an and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mmnnum _f_ o]

£2.90 nsmg by 60p to £3. 50 is Just too much ina smgle increase.

Nam.e. T Address and/or Post Code Slgnafllre

"C,a:j@i CEORTT
CowgreTe

o
s
cu)t; /N -

' ‘._f{“ﬂbp‘vgqﬁ Co e

RAsERUAy p piIseadE
ArEtrCA LRl _
f’*‘ﬁ/‘ﬁr Sry ?‘J‘:

[l
pusrartfy

L) e e e T

[
]
3
|
l

@ covumgoaLe dVE
Conere~ory
CnEsves Qv v

d

g <oy Shak
wotd Lang

‘ Sroto - on ~Hrend
& 1’0 .




< |'’Address and/or Post Code

Signature

A Olaiis D
Sumdboih

OGN




- Page 105

Objections to the Pmposed |
Varlatlon to the Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares ’

(Pubhshed in the. Congleton Chromcle Pubhc Notzces on 15M May 2014) i

I Ob_} ect to Cheshue East’ “Proposed Vanatlon to the Hackney Camage T able of Fares
by. placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the minimum faie of

£2 90 rismg by 6Gp to £3 50 is ;ust too much ina smgle increase.

T Addiess and/o:t Post Code _Zlf.- . Slgnature |

'- Covuéﬁ“”"?— Che




- Page 106 -

| . Objections to the Pl oposed
Variation to the Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares

(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chromcle Pubhc Not1ces on 15th May 2014)
1 obj _}SGt to Cheshue East’ “Proposed Variation to the Hackney Camage Table of Fares

by. placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mlmmum fare of
£2. 90 r1smg by 60p to £3. 50 is Just too much ina smgle mcrease : -

Name   _ S Address and/01 Post Code Slgnature

8L%f\

; T PERTS Q@ |
(’g\:o 6-7(,«%70(‘5

- MAJP;J o '_5“? o

_(iém@kﬂ/‘*fm )

Skresk.

‘ < ()( WD @V%Ch? [@
(ONGLETON
N B @

~

[




Signature

1

| Name

Addyress and/or'Pos_t Code

W puENOE




“Page108

; Objectmns to the Proposed
Vanam&n to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed m the Congleton Chromcle Pubhc Notwes on 15 May 2014)

I object to Cheshue East’ “Proposed Vanatmn to the Hackney Camage T able of Fates
by placmg my signature and addresslpostcode on this form, as I feel the mmnnum fare of

£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3 50is Just too much ina szngle increase.

B 'Sigi@atﬁre' -

dres _and/m Post Code

Name




Page 109

Name

Signature




Objections to the- Proposed *
Varlatmn tothe Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares _

S bt g aalles

R P, (Publzshed in the Congleton Ch1 omcle Publm Notmes on 15th May 20 1\4){ ~'

I obj ect to Cheshma East’ “Proposed Va1 iation to the Hackney Camage T able of Fales

by placmg my s1gnature and address/postcode on this form, as feel the minimum fare of
£2 90 r1smg by 60p to £3. 50 is just too much ina smgle increase. ' : :

T — Adress andlor Post Code 'S_ighé?tﬂré ]

Cwﬂ‘m‘o W Que‘

'C‘/wcu.fw CﬂasH"t’?
- CMLQ.‘ZLPH .

. def‘rﬁ \-!Eﬁm

7

P T

| ._CHﬂ'fZLémfwanm'

- PLics
Comitéle :

& DrLE clise |

CorGtéfos

@ Boecouct Kohp

ConaietoN




Name . :.» | Address and/or Post Code Signat_ure

.WWQSO\-TCMR"L

'""':'-J%-«’u T &

"?V“‘

} ‘\l‘s\l‘a_}%"‘ “q -:4,;‘3 jﬁe"ﬂ T - o l

..m

r

o u,,"ff *"w 1 T

'.'.'z"”""‘? NRERE N ufs Sy eitam b _
; ; i‘.rt -;J ) ’ R

..i .i’

..v"

l*f LA g,ﬂl <f£ g

| M e

B L L P
.. s %A_ ..,'z,-:'z.} ;.} \,:% } 1'

) -
-

.'i‘-f\; %-“)(Blﬁ.i \‘Bﬂ.

.-
-.5_!' T\, g N
AW, A
* " .. . H
g . .1 - =~
& “‘4{:}‘; R b l
IR Ea
'- :";-L:L.fr;w;ax‘;_;‘—; RS i g ‘:;1
AT
Al

f‘i’.j.;,';s *«éﬁ; J'!,‘f-‘tq ?} . ] “

\11‘\?{% oE '}

PR
e, S ’ ..
T F

B BN SN N

AR R LY

| X ,
! m:_,T‘CJ—Jﬁ Sl
l’; ” - . -
FYZ IS Y IR ST Y




Page 112

t Ob]ectmns to the:Proposed
Varlation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chlomcle Public Notices on 15th May 20 14)

kney Carriage Table of Fares”

I Obj ect to Cheshlre East’ “Proposed Variation to the Hac
as I feel the mmlmum fare of

by placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form,
£2.90 r1smg by 60p to £3 50 is JUSt too much in a smgle increase.

. | .Addless and/or Post Code Slgnatme
-\ 3 “i? “Scsm o~ g R_UT) e

@O&mm Tr“;:«r\)

‘ ode‘z'r’OA/ C(,o_sé S
| Comce"ox\f 5 T

| . é/eowmfa é’fb

'({‘ Y

L




Page 113

’Objectmns to-the'Proposed
Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chromcle Pubhc Notices on 15" May 20 14)

I object to Chesh:re East’s “Proposed Vanation to the Hackney Camage Table of F ares”
by placmg my signature ¢ and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mmlmum faie of
£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is Just too much ina s1ng1e mcrease ' :

| N_al_l}e._-._ Addless and/m Post Code B Slgnature

‘hmoceTen CHIL SPZ

- lHii\mé C’u:g
o (,opfue; N
e ;m; 1

_' - 7{mg@£§é4@€ |
@mﬁium Bl

~
NN

= 7—— - i__ _An)g,@ﬂ* M) g{f:@ f l ?__ o ;...,,..' —

W oo~ ead
Ccr’v;:)\ff.‘:%‘c: 6™

S
ANV =




Name

SR Address, and/or Post Cade

| Signature

oot

a—o“« 2pe |

I

(’, M-u,cug mﬂi f
K@i\l (/(gfwfv '

-pr%m:‘ E‘:\r&e{ B

Q- \f\w(‘f

Ve ocd

)\ X J’% e,

5 C{g/wé}/f

N e




Page 115

" Objections to the Proposed
Varlatmn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares

(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chlomcle Public Notices on 15th May 20 14)

T object to Cheshue East’ “Proposed Vatriation to the Hackney Camage Table of Fares”
by placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mmlmum fare of

£2.90 rismg by 60p to £3. 50 is just too much ina smgle increase;

__ A__l_\Tame_ _ _  . Addless and/el Post Cade Sigﬁ&tqfé |
- B - %ﬁﬁ/ﬁ/#a&zﬁ‘g 39}3’?&.—..

|

eavERe ||

’L uw/'cwfﬁ(fﬁﬁ |
CD/\@A&’T’@M

Q@@u—w ncw\l d '

e

. Pa'ﬂéi Piace




Name

.+ Address and/or Post Code

Sjlgz‘;gture

' "i'/‘».. I

[

i e

1oz &P

. WERE B

st aae daime .o oy e an e m an e ~,~§; 7‘:

e rres e At

AN

- ConctX 0, Pogd
CGT:}?MG!’)




et Obj'éctmns to the Proposed
Vanatmn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubh shed m the Congleton Chromcla PLIbllC Notices on 15‘“ May 2014)

I obj ect to Cheshue East’s “Proposed Varlation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares”
by placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form, as feel the mmlmum fare of
£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is _}U.S'E too much in a smgle increase. ' : -

Name L Addless and/or Pest Code ] Sighatfure! ':

-u._v’n\ic,f\onf C,L—OS*;

el

@le{u&r\cﬁi pc:’scxcf L : |
) Ccﬂglfiﬁeﬂ ('_,_‘,‘4 }_’th :

3 - CH@S’TMQ( Dll
C@m@cx;?ow |

Cw tL waE

D ST R
Cwi2 BRI i
I CIMVI)L ZFTS I
Cwez 13Z ;




~ page118 .

Name

. .| Address and/or Pogt Code Sigqatu_re

| ' (/(,-(—O:Q@h-ht-bd\GSQ

5,
e, e

=
¥
E,Ba“‘skﬂe L(..z

@uﬁ L2 z,u@u‘)

Loz "L,.xf%_\___._

D 2

¢

2 R .-
e, et i 4,,'
-

TCeia LSET

v ol

Ct @Qﬂf_i

h N SR e S =

C LI 2- Ly;g[/)




Page 119

- LCTCOMP. RECEIVED S
:ﬂ‘i‘wu g '_ ,‘ Objectlonsme the Propﬂsed . - 0 Zﬂlé,mév'

g ' Vanatlon to the. Hackney- Carrlage Table of ‘Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congieton Chronicle Public: Nonces an 15" May 2014)

]. { H, f {
} [ objectto Cheshire East’s “Proposed Variation o the Hackney_leage Table of Fares”
, by placmg my._ signature and address/postcode on this’ form, as | feel the mmlmum fare of

£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is just too. much jn a Smgle mcrease

[Name _~___[Address andlor Post Code | Signature

PR N

%ﬂm\\
lcc%lwvﬁﬂqs banii

P

T }
| ConGLeton

-'_;l”utscﬁl WA
ConpueTow

YA\
T ™

. &m’ouj h Rg{

l - gowes ST

I LETOA

B a7 :
ConacgaTand.




Name

Address and/or Post Code

Signature

| Rode - Heoth

n

r ¥

-

L)




 Page121

'Jiﬁ;,.’i\/

. 1

gmetnnd 2iObjections to the Propesed =
Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Published in the Congleton Chronicle Public Notices on 15" May 2014)
I obj_e_ct_ to Cheshi{e East’s “Proposed Variation to the Haékney Carriage Tab_i_e_ of Fa_:és"’

by placing my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the minimum fare of
+ £2.90 rising by 60p to £3.50 is just too much in a single increase.’ e - -

Name o Addressandfﬂr Post Code .| Signature
L O

., Baeoue& D

Bl 2o N
Coﬂg(du/\

B Soce




,"Hl':iu ¢

:'Objections to: thefProposed

Vanatlon to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chromcle Publlc Not;ces on 15 May 2014)

I object to Cheshfre East’s “Proposed Variation to the Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares”
by placing my. signature and addxess!postcode on this form, as | feel the mlmmum fare of

-£2 90 rising by 60p to £3. 50 is Just too much ina smgle increase.

- Name

~ | Address andfor Post Code |
=2 "J!%HWS- f«?u’:

Cc:'bl\.f-%‘f' ’?QN
cf—w 12 Ls,p\/

Signature

[ CavaL #&aﬁw

C@UGLL,TOI\)
_CHES (Wl w

I coNereToN

_Uf\ YTCJN FNE[\UE,

CWiZ 2AY .

Cont-ezon

cdmwo Aty /7@(,@ -

- Laags ko

,,,,7L@QC{}\LTO"\‘ —

o cnasthre Gl

: . Ib\ﬁtkhmom“eﬁ

ConGealng )

-

T
ConGuston/

!




~Page 123

Name

| Address and/or Post Code

Signature

I @Mf < @6

 _qu@wmw_-
= Cfe@\@ocbl B .
B Conaﬂlpafon
COV\Q@*M |

- Foyedh
S

B o0 NI P e S
(7 ESCEN]

y




Page 124

C L st ’Objectlons to: the Propased A
Var;atwn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares ‘
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chronicle Public Notlces en 158 May 2014) )

I object to Cheshireﬁast’ “Proposed Vanatlen to the Hackney Camage Tabie of Fares” . .
- by p!acmg my signature and address/postcade on this form, as 1 feel the mmlmum fare of _
' £2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is just too much in 2 smgle mcrease o

m_a_mmgw R T Address and/or Pest Code - Sigt_iamfe
SR i ‘Q‘\J‘L .. [.w.ﬁ,;.,_u.__‘_u_m\#,,u,u,.,,. -
. \)\&wor'd« - (J»D tQ 1

QW’

| waﬁ \ (?r

‘ %a(\\c\\ou.m’t c&cw’q, :

C:\,le WACEE S

B ceAUS CLOSS
[CHOPR QLSS
ST 4O

] @u{m' zﬂd [?CWD

WYL LES

1 TN,

-




“Page 125

Name

| . %‘C.:Q(l?_\j

Add ress and/or Post Code Signature

i -

PN/ 2D L
cuoxz?)%/\ﬁ_ -l

- S oolShan

:’q \/G‘.’ﬁ@ e C"‘""“”"Z*SDZ[

- PNTFZOBUS 51

c,mz HE

cmz SQP

CG“\D&:?&G\!\ /;;

. Wq:_\_

-Hamfz:m Avg
S c,wm, 2.6 b

tn

C/wLELmJC‘:

B DALE ~les
LoV GLET OV

L U €

- UYLV <>

Cow . L ST




‘Page 126

L. e, Objectmns to: theiPmposed

Vanatlon to the Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares
' (Pubhshed in £he Congleton Chromcle Public Nolrces on 15" May 2014)

- object to Cheshire East’s “Proposed NS anatmn to the Hackney Camage T able of Fares”_
by placmg my 31gnature and address!postcode on this form, as ] feel the m:mmum fare of

';£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is Just too much ina smgle increase.

Name _ § Address an_dfor. Post Code'. .' Signature
Ly 2 P (e
CY (2 O\ |

.
S —— ]




Name Address and/or Post Code Signature

L h
(ol c02 |

| cwiZ /Gw :

e




‘Page 128

}L."- o £

)b

B e 7 Objections'to: theProposed . . e

S LR

o=

Varlatmn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed 1::1‘iihe Congleton Chromcle Public NGHCGS on 15" May 20'14)

[ object to Cheshlre East’ “Proposed Variation to the Hackney Camagc Table of Fares”
by p!acmg my SIgnature ‘and addressfpostcedc on this form, as 1 feel the mlmmum fare of
' "£2 90 n:.mg. by 60p to £3 50 is 3ust too much ina smgie mcrease Fores

L)

Name_.'." T :f Address andfar PostCude 'Si_gnatu'_re_ ]

o Co _N:;Lf”j’qb!_ Qwaﬁf%#f.




seumagicl "*Objectwns 1o the Proposed , et
Vanatmn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fal es
(Publ:shed in the Congleton Chron:cle PubI ic Notzces on xs*“ May 2014)

* [ object to Chesh:re East’s. “Proposed Val‘latloﬂ to the Hackney Camage Table of Fares”

. k by. placmg my signature and address/postcode on thls form, as 1 feel the mmlmum farc of .
' £2 90 rlsmg by 60p to £3. 50 is Just 100 much in.a smgle mcreasc ' D
-‘ Name R Address andlﬁr Post Code '_ _ |Sigpature

. S S > B . S . i L
. . - g y L i




————

% 2 1R

Page 130

*aObjectmntho thetProposed

———— i

Vanatmn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(PtithhEd in the Congleton C_hro_mcle Public Notices on 15" May 2014)

i object to Cheshire Eas!’ “Proposed Variation fo the Hackney Camage Table of Fares”

by placmg my signature and add:ess!postcode on this form, as I feel the mmimum fare of

" £2, 90 rising by 60p to £3.50 is JUSi too much ina smgle mcrease

Nai_ne’. o

_ Address andl’or Post Code =

| Sigri&ture.._

. Lw M.oa,en AW

o Cum, ’LﬁJ

‘ “l:‘m Qo%wy

Ch\'d%‘\_}c,\ Q'\Ae&k\w .
CLotQ_, L{ﬁ&

— —_— -

Rt A ee.’ki« E)Q_QJ\
C'_om‘m“ Q\@zl{ca

Iﬁ.._ . -

. BHAT{?M R:b
C,oerAe:Toaf ’

{;.tJESH}»QE
Sz 3B !

W HowarTt VE
| Ru&wh"’?"j

CoNGLETON

HEL S

| . T Cpesmat

COD\%MQF\ Q\r\e—\j\\*u__ﬁ
Cuwre L. BR&

W Fun Grencent
cmﬂ{e)m Cheshire,

cu}:ﬂ IHF

Bl o Q%
Co'ng‘%‘fou‘r\ Ci\.%}\ﬂ-e




Page131

Name

NHA6 Addresmandlur;Post Code

Signature

T - Bo@oss £

| ‘% &/{;fwd’b@? é\

| - M P&km\_

-

gl gl Lbl- .}' e
Ldi—l goc«

:I . Fova v s s’ ity ‘1 AR {4

N T R
) g

'

; oor o mbypzar 6 s b S|
A -'7:;\_9, V&J%Mﬁi NIRRT

' nh :m ST Jm v

c \m\‘;ah\r\“,q

. Gaaﬁ’fr‘ &4‘ C%ce,c/

- c\bouf”ox) AOE
| 090 k)

- Fem QY€S@UH“\\

'- "1'" A-\& A’s\;\

B, kissey fef

AY

oS ’Q‘l{




o ;'-[‘a . .

I object to Cheshma East 3 “Proposed Vanatmn to the Hackney Camage Tab]e of Fares”
by p!acmg my signature and addressfpostccde on this form as I feei the mmlmum fare of

‘Page 132

| '*Objechons toithe Pmposed
Vanatlon to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chromcle Public Notlces on 15 May 2014)

| ,_£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3. 50 is Just too much in a smgle increase.

¥ Name_ |

Address and!ﬁr P{}st Code

_ _Si'gfﬁﬁw’fe

- "?\’.c b{)f{'SzL;i.&hJ

9 )-.f(_? CI’J !2 i!‘:z!-f

' C-U\L\\'\s ur,./; _

- ST ”J‘Zum ¥

v

:_:l,_—/J - /) f\]
=0 gl
L (Wi2.86D

- Caeson Syees

CU'Y Wed

o

| //\}tm%u Doz .

Ciil. &4

| - woalsTon AVE

T Cw Ty %EG"




Name

Address and/or Post Code

Signature

-cuvz, S5H

7

|

ﬂiig”mwwsma
S AWA AT

CLOS WO

@wwﬁ Hucl Ho&&\
Ph‘lc LmQ

(xm okon.
%wme

C.(,LA; ’Q/‘c‘ 6@

Re TGS

- (Ct@%% \//‘QMV :

I;Mm

CW/L Q]’GrC,?

. Sﬁmsm ¢l ST

()ONG:I*-@'/ o N CWll 1aE

- aenett Sq pare-
WL DEQ

T oo e
CorO\Qied




- Page 134
Tgunuva] oiObjections: to:the Proposed | crent
] Variation to the Hackney Carrlage T able of Fares
(Pubilshed in the Congleton Chromcle Pubhc Notlces on 15“’ May 201 4y

] ObJECt to Cheshue East’s “Proposed Variation to the Hackney Camage Tab!e of Fares”™
- by placmg my sxgnature and address/postcode on this form, as | feel the mmlmurn fare of
~£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is _mst too much ina smgle mcrease o . -

Name R - Address andinr Post Code . S'_'igila'tu'r_ﬁ_e'_.'

| -l ICM—’C-STOV\Q. CU“UJ: e B
Covxgks:)tmf\ *cwa%m <_, |

f'.:g\@_‘mr\ Q\.\aglura __ B
%\m& b

C__c:ar“c:noJcn cnm @ol

C—’-h%h we

CALTHE:

N ,.__.-./.'J._ o

- ()c)v:fd?a Sw:
C_(os ‘

-/(m}w( \&U_u) | A

cwie 204




Page 135

Name : ?;,.

‘Address and/or-Post Code

Signatur¢

.CY?"L,_

U R

. ‘o

T LRSI
[

- » . <.
Vet gl or gt

7

[PTLE B

.’ S of ST} STAN Y S LT F1 DTRCHNPES RN L SO
B A iy Pyt A T ot 1 o,
) J'.i [PRRIEY 3 e [ v, . 2 e, LTS A Y I,]‘J Sta f, 9ftnIele 27 . P '-!
ST o
T L A LSRR B T cite <9 b
Ao oL e Ny g parighg < gyt
r 4
]
- 1 —
+ * \
i -




- Page 136

A;_l_dress and/or Post Code

Signature

Rame

| S
 CaNGLEToN
| Gwrld fer

- ko ﬂm%‘r\, e

C_,c) n c&\e:‘_g-“/‘jm

- -EQ\E_ Cﬁ'cécg/q\

Coﬁé}ﬁé’&f\

g™




Page 137

suiteagi# - slQBjectiony tosthe:Proposed. o ama”
Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chronicle Publlc Notices on 15" May 2014)

v object to Cheshire East’s “Proposed Variation to the Hackney, Camage Table of Fares”
by placmg my sngnature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mmlmum fare of

£2. 90 ns'ng by 60p to £3.50 is jiJSt too much masmgle increase. - R ,
| N_ame_ | T Address andh}r Post Code Slgnature ,__.
IR e tor e T s PSS 1 T /\
Cwiz THR
o A
W D LR -
. ¢

Guﬁt‘i 3\)?(




“Page 138

Name

-Address ahd/or,Rost Code

Sigﬁatixre

TEN

O P A

’ : Ll N -
Jeating - e ! Py eerrnafit 0.pnel At

w3 caraantoond of Lot

4

TR S EREAL

-C’Jiwyxﬁ ;f!é};@}'

- ¥
et u‘;'E}_Eh'- des by

FTRRB PIRII | V1SS AN Tg SIS MON I

[ P

{"\.—

1

—— . _—— - -

T

CnT >

JER—— . _—

i

-

pot e DK

Cwi2. 1AD- :




ar

vineyie! 9!0b3ectmns 40 the*Preposed o 9
Variation to the Hackney Carrlage Table of Fares
- (Publlshed in the Congleton Chromcle Public Notlces on 15" May 2014)

1 object to Cheshue East’s “Proposed Vanat;on to the Hackney Camage Table of Fares™
by placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the minimum fare of

£2 90 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is just too much ina smgle mcrease

| Na‘me T | Address and/or Post Cade o _.S.ig:n'atulﬂ‘e i
. : . " f e -
| }_ﬁvd - __%,L’ﬁ :

cvitg  THR

7'%%‘@\?5452:;—%\5[? AP
CoNe- f
BEQ : J
cwiz |
L& ¢
SkiqIF P

[ —




Page 140 =

Ll ngie 8 Objectlons o the Praposed , | Chene
Varlatmn to the Hackney Carriage Tableof Fares :
(Pubhshed in the Congieton Chromcle Pubhc Not;ccs on 15 May 2014)

I Db_]CCt to Cheshue East 5 “Proposed Vamanon to the Hackney Carnage Table of Fares
by pIacmg my signature and address/postcede on this form, as 1 feel: the minimum, fare of
‘£2 50 nsmg by 60p to £3.50 is Just too much ina smgle increase. -

-Name | - ] Address andlor PostCode Siéh’#tu_re

AN

Carz Qe




- Page 141

Nanie

Address and/or Post Code

Signatﬁre

1.4 - w bt Ar

cu¥L  1a€
cwe  QE

NS

cua. el

R ERT




| A_ddress_andfnr Post Code

Signature 4!

' Bank Houfc
T DRIvE

Con Qbfélﬁ/_‘/ ?

ouwi 2Bl

ewiz hps |

61% =Jve]

|
Canal ST

Crota

n F




sangie,  9lObjections toitheProposed = _ Lo
Varlatmn to the Hackney, Carnage Table of Fares
(Pubilshed in the Congleton Chromcle Publ:c Notices on IS May 201 4)

1 object to Cheshwe East’s “Prcposed Vanatzon to the Hackney Carnage Table of Fares”
by placi ing my 51gnature and address/postcode on this form, as 1 feel the minimum fare of
£2 90 rising by 60p to £3. 50 is Just too muchina single increase.

Name Address and/or Post Code . | Signaturt_&

ﬁHSLFD

cw s’L er,D

C_-,U_Q"{L_ r_Li-E-H, - '_ o

L
¥
.

= 1 —— o . -

t
i

Caidd QA7

Ac
Cuo t2. ot

S/ b
THD




Page 144

o Wi u.s:r’ _ 2.0Objections.to the: Prépoéé'dm - ) - By
; Vanatwn to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Pubhshed in the Congleton Chronicle Public Notices on 15 May 2014)
| object to Cheshlre East’ “Proposed Variation to the Hackney Camage Table of Fares" ‘

" by placmg my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mmlmum fare 0f
£2.90 nsmg by 60p to £3 50 1is _]USI toomuch in a smgle increase, '

Na_r_ne-_. R Address and/or Post Code - sag‘nature'

‘ Leem 122
Coi-farug gori' O&JD-’;H'S




Page 145
s 4 @bjections to-the Proposed QETET
Vananon to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
(Publ;shed in the Congleton Chromcle Public Notices on 15Ih May 2014)
Lobject to Cheshrre East’s “Proposed Vanatlon to the Hackney Carnage Table of Fares”

! by placing my signature and address/postcode on this form, as I feel the mimmum fare of
‘ £2 90 rising by 60p to £3 50is jUSt too much in a smgle mcrease DR )

: --Signhtu_r_fé

——— S

o Nﬂ‘!? o | Address and/or Post Code
e , l@n&@w%d—

Con ?&W

- f,-D Ngouaﬁ Rop0

'_ C.ONGLFfQﬂ’

i
1

l RpTon &
 COMGLETU

- Ml_ucsw <V ”.:! |
- BovefsnTts .'
oo atoo QX\OBWO

- AN TN C}-_{-—r il




This page is intentionally left blank



- PETITION BY

Page 147

THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS OF MACCIESFIELD ZONE

(Objection to Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares)

To: Miss Kim Evans, Licensing Team Leader, Cheshire East Council, Municipal Building, Crewe, CW1 2BJ

The undersigned persons, being Hackney Carriage Drivers of Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council

hereby petition council to:
The proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fare structure over looked Hackney Carriage Driver's and

EACH PETITIONER by signing this petition certifies that he or she is a Hackney Carriage Driver of

Taxi User's interest, which can cause dispute between Drivers and Taxi Service users, there for this

Proposed Table of Fare should not come into effect at all.

Macclesfleld Zone of Cheshire East Council.

Signature of Hackney Name of Hackney Carriage Badge Number of Date
Cayriage Driver Driver Hackney Carriage Driver
T T S dussan DRV 47Tb| 6 - 3 1%
i 1) Bz Srolefs . |l A
| - <wAnTD  TARAIIAL Do 154 | & ‘S(.fi\
B W 0% & 3/ [4/5) 04
- — Netbyf  )es L%k DR/ L{{él 41(5//55 [44,
n T egeddite Robedad TD 009! WA/ Nl
B 0 | Siace Dase) DRU 4146 | ig]es)id
| Made,  FAIRADH TD 0246 16 a5/l
g;“‘:*. Bewun  Suwst TNO04AE . 16 /o5 [rd
191 NASHIM YHAS DORRAVE | DRY 4797 [14-6=14
v {nicafeL Hpepnil <oy 0339 — =8« Flp |-
|~ Wnbey urtlanicc. | D @2 /65—l
B AMLAN SHAND | S0 oJ &L |l
| ¥l [CCL LI v {12 |6-S-1}
B MUlAzA M}r %y& TPol72 751y
B MepA MMED SRAMSUDDIR, DRV 228 (9._ oS- i L
| Al foazaniihb | DRY HodY j7/es)rt
[ Sl b Lon et | ORI 22 | @[S/
- G .R. Legs Moul7 | s/
L W {omvS | pes wa 8 |51




Page 148

- PETITION BY THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS OF MACCIESFIELD ZONE

(Objection to Variation fo the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares)

To: Miss Kim Evans, Licensing Team Leader, Cheshire East Council, Municipal Building, Crewe, CW1 2BJ

The undersigned persons, being Hackney Carriage Drivers of Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Councit

hereby petition council to:

The proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fare structure ove
Taxi User's interest, which can cause dispute between Drive
Proposed Table of Fare should not coms into effect at all.

r looked Hackney Carriage Driver's and
rs and Taxi Service users, there for this

EACH PETITIONER by signing this petition certifies that he or she is a Hackney Carriage Driver of
Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council.

Signature of Hackney Name of Hackney Carriage Badge Number of Date
Carriage Driver Driver Hackney Carriage Driver

i Mimba Uddin Ahmed | PRV 4795 16(05 /14
i WV wHiTTet | PRU 0075 73
B YASIR o MER DRV U7 16 o5 I
5 7 | pmes  wygen [10075] |6/ 5/
- Sreb e 'thsi/b&r\@ 1T OS5 10 /§f14~
B Srvade— ot Ty 0395 /é:‘/‘;,_(]‘,q,£
N B PN 0D oSBT 1oy
S NTEARN ST TS 2500 [1L=521h
P A orse o NRy 4067 /-5 /4
- N2, DEYS026 | 1{-o5- 1l
- g Huscand DRV Qo7 |16-eS1t
B I Hora kived Dr 37 4o (G051
- A s ar eIy AN I noSY A LJQQ /ibf[
- .} , (LOG‘C,Q Easrsool)|DRY 2381 [6-T -4
| CHERIE YAty | o4 TF (G o 1
5 M CHIWDHORY ~ DRV O3] %
- MM Nawnz | EreZFAL | 18 Jos
- M. SAQIL Riay D o3} lb/os |1y
- ABD LA ALl D R 4pis | é/é5//‘f

0 T Lewdl J0_ 4§ | ety




!

PETITION BY

Page 149

THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS OF MACCIESFIELD ZONE

(Objection to Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares)

To: Miss Kim Evans, Licensing Team Leader, Cheshire East Council, Municipal Building, Crewe, CW1 2BJ

The undersigned persons, being Hackney Carriage Drivers of Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Councit

hereby petition councit to:

The proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fare structure over looked Hackney Carriage Driver's and
Taxi User's interest, which can cause dispute between Drivers and Taxi Service users, there for this

Proposed Table of Fare should not come into effect at all.

EACH PETITIONER by signing this petition certifies that he or she is a Hackney Carriage Driver of
Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council.

| Signature of Hackney Name of Hackney Carriage Badge Number of Date
Carriage Driver Driver Hackney Carriage Driver
| Mo honned aizdeoin 4lf ‘ [F-5 7
K Moy sy Al | DRV UBGS™ |y 1y
< Proicst. Asnepe 6 S D OGFS | I -Cl
| Hetoon _O3ten DV HEZs [ 1T -< )
u o | Sohail NAvsm | PRy 2876 3] f03/90) T
i T mn < A saend D Y -3085] [£roq 4
T KASHMIR] JDooRz 189)57/ 1%
W 2l Arcu_ e [h TOO2LO  |19-S -
|/ - Kot g&%u oV LoD 1G5 )
- | Manoh OFwvn | DRN 4777 |85 -y
; Nige  Valey PLISLYS lsha
B Mowid. G| So 015/ . L[5 vy
_ Sy CLEA KL J0 040 C([/‘Y// I
13 Boorod Jaavis | 30 we32 |9y
e Thseol DUNLEY, eV GFz NN
j o Cartisn Zi S 1
| Siwon Gzt Jpo20 21 s iy
_ A Thon]fhusson) —bly kot 15— e
L MEGRAN Y @a Y Oh ©209 24-~5 W
Q st Lssud -




- Page 150

 PETITION BY THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS OF MACCIESFIELD ZONE

(Objection to Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares)

To: Miss Kim Evans, Licensing Team Leader, Cheshire East Counci, Municipal Building, Crewe, CW1 2BJ

The undersigned persons, being Hackney Carriage Drivers of Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council
hereby petition council to:

The proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fare structure over looked Hackney Carriage Driver's and
Taxi User's interest, which can cause dispute between Drivers and Taxi Service users, there for this

Proposed Table of Fare should not come into effect at all.

EACH PETITIONER by signing this petition certifies that he or she Is a Hackney Carriage Driver of
Macclesfleld Zone of Cheshire East Council.

Signature of Hackney Name of Hackney Garriage Badge Number of Date
Carrlage Driver _Driver Hackney Carriage Driver
P ArThosy  CCOTTR TO 0WS 6 S
B el | Bolec he usere) O Ly T Vs ! <5 | 1
i AR QURS) DAY f (6)5/1%
i U | o Coepntt. | SHoSos | 16] sy
i R oo das ol F0e 50D L ls /5%
] Clats - §- Hodll JOCGS0| )<
A Y Thesgs. | 1651
) Van 0D o170 | 14f5/1y
N OF\der™ SO el
5 < (e YoV 4 b3 AEdaL”
3 P-Taxs pev. o1y |6/
i TARCY, TAKL DAV -Ybrt | [E/s81]
5 A Codon T A%l (THTLLS 16 [ i
- A Q0P bk NRY 5736 O fos(!/Q/
. R [ (e 7

N [ MECEI T SN OL7s  6[che
L 7 o w Zoheex| v LO IS G-y
3 Pu DeséR Dy 229 [y L
i AISAL  NAWAZ Jb 2194, 16-5-1¢
] o Heue DA/ G733 e
i . A MU L | DRY407Z0 4 2%




Page 151

. PETITION BY THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS OF MACCIESFIELD ZONE

(Objection to Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares)

To: Miss Kim Evans, Licensing Team Leader, Cheshire East Council, Municipal Building, Crewe, CW1 2BJ

The undersigned persons, being Hackney Carriage Drivers of Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council

hereby petition council to:

The proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fare structure over looked Hackney Carrlage Driver's and
Taxi User's interest, which can cause dispute between Drivers and Taxi Service users, there for this

Proposed Table of Fare should not come into effect at all.

EACH PETITIONER by signing this petition certifies that he or she is a Hackney Carriage Driver of

Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council.

Signature of Hackney Name of Hackney Garriage Badge Number of Date
Carriage Driver Driver Hackney Carriage Driver ‘
- " [laRove AfuE] TRNR) | 16[5] 7
| Bager o Possn] W WA i/ /ey
- 2 P CHIAM, p RV S0 sl
| aotat i SpARSS A D ) Coos [LfeC ol
- T A Seteedseel 0 0325 |ihs/in
| T Lowzcrs ond TD 0263 YO )
/} P Hpeous e kb 5
- T RASHm A | TDoas /e ] te
B T Seanloms DRY fotto |Fs )¢
- | g-Swad Dy QoS |17 sl (u
ﬁ W Nowgi Y WA L ywy
e B,\@ﬁ%%vtlé’@t\; ORI | a1
<= 2 Quosds |50 oA |20 3
/ I\ e gy | OD SO 9‘2;/%7/?”
» e Vsl NRVITZ [ 39/5/ 10




Page 152

~ PETITION BY THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS OF MACCIESFIELD ZONE
{(Objection to Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares)

To: Miss Kim Evans, Licensing Team Leader, Cheshire East Council, Municipal Building, Crewe, CW1 2BJ

The undersigned persons, being Hackney Carriage Drivers of Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council
hereby petition council to:
The proposed Hackney Carriage Table of Fare structure over looked Hackney Carriage Driver's and
Taxi User's interest, which can cause dispute between Drivers and Taxi Service users, there for this
Proposed Table of Fare should not come into effect at all.

EACH PETITIONER by signing this petition certifies that he or she is a Hackney Carriage Driver of
Macclesfield Zone of Cheshire East Council.

Signature of Hackney Name of Hackney Carriage Badge Number of Date
Cdrriage Driver Briver Hackney Carriage Driver .
P m - § ——— =
- W 7Tt TO 0510 2/ 51t
__ E—t Gr. S TEeNN BT D 01b0O 21-Z (4,
—— 7{-;’!? oélﬁ?ﬁllc—’{r,i ’:‘j;o o /‘ S’-f C—7

TN boosrznn 2118/ 14
| - | A A Manras| gl G682 A fé’vf;i-?f
| B ey | wp ezp8 |RIETTH




Page 153 Appendix 8

o CELVA o gy 39/‘!‘/?01\4
List of Celva Members ‘i
Fareways Taxis ’

John Anders
Autocruise

Blackcat Private hire
First Class PH

D Tax

Baz Taxis

Siatax

Beartown Taxis
Congleton 1* Choice
AB Private Hire

M TAX

Ace Travel

J M Cars

Que Cabs

Bren Cabs

Gerrards Private Hire
My Tax

John Anders Sandbach



AA571T
Typewritten Text
Appendix 8


-

AK private hire
M& I Private Hire
3d’S Taxis
Congleton 1 Cab
Fastax

Cheshire Taxis
Dave Taxi
Riverside Taxis
Cabtax

Kenkar

Page 154




Page 155

Appendix 9
Hackney Carriage Tables of Fare
Tariff 1 — Monday to Saturday 7am to 9pm
Zone Flag Rate Half Mile Rate One Mile Rate Two Mile Rate
All CEC £3.50 £3.50 £3.50 £5.70
Current
Congleton £2.90 £2.90 £2.90 £4.90
Crewe and £2.40 £3.40 £4.20 £6.20
Nantwich
Macclesfield £2.70 £2.70 £3.30 £5.30
Tariff 2 - Monday to Saturday 9pm to Midnight (Tariff 1 + 20%)
Zone Flag Rate Half Mile Rate One Mile Rate Two Mile Rate
All CEC £4.20 £4.20 £4.20 £6.84
Current
Congleton £2.90 £2.90 £2.90 £4.90
Crewe and £2.40 £3.30 £4.20 £6.40
Nantwich
Macclesfield £2.70 £2.70 £3.30 £5.30

Tariff 3 - Monday to Saturday Midnight to 7am, Sundays, Public/Bank Holidays (including Good
Friday, Easter Monday, and Boxing Day etc), Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve 6pm to Midnight

(Tariff 1 + 50%)

Zone Flag Rate Half Mile Rate One Mile Rate Two Mile Rate
All CEC £5.25 £5.25 £5.25 £8.55

Current

Congleton £4.35 £4.35 £4.35 £7.35

Crewe and £2.40 £3.30 £4.40 £6.40
Nantwich

Macclesfield £4.05 £4.05 £4.95 £7.95

Tariff 4 - Christmas Day and New Year’s Day (Tariff 1 + 100%)

Zone Flag Rate Half Mile Rate One Mile Rate Two Mile Rate
All CEC £7.00 £7.00 £7.00 £11.40
Current

Congleton £5.80 £5.80 £5.80 £9.80

Crewe and £3.50 £4.60 £5.90 £8.50
Nantwich

Macclesfield £5.40 £5.40 £6.60 £10.60




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157 Appendix 10

OFFICE OF FAIR TRADING
o

The regulation of licensed taxi
and PHV services in the UK

November 2003

OFT676


AA571T
Typewritten Text
Appendix 10


Page 158

Further copies

Further copies of this paper can be downloaded from our website at
www.oft.gov.uk/news/publications/leaflet + ordering.htm - look under 'Reports
and ‘Competition policy’ - or you can obtain hard copies by phoning OFT
publications on the number shown below.

OFT publications order line

OFT publications can be ordered free of charge on 0870 60 60 321.

Information on the internet

You can also order OFT publications online and find advice and information on
consumer rights and on the work of the OFT at www.oft.gov.uk

© Crown copyright 2003

This publication (excluding the OFT logo) may be reproduced free of charge in
any format or medium provided that it is reproduced accurately and not used in
a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright
and the title of the publication specified.



Page 159

CONTENTS

Chapter Page
1 Summary and conclusions 1
2 Introduction 10
3 The UK taxi and PHV services market 12
4 Review of quantity regulation 23
5 Review of quality and safety regulation 45
6 Review of fare regulation 60
7 Further issues that impact on the market 73
8 Glossary 83
9 Bibliography 87

10 References 91



Page 160

1 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Introduction

1.1  This market study has looked at the regulatory framework affecting
licensed taxis and private hire vehicles (PHVs).

Background
1.2 There are two types of vehicle that operate in this market:

e licensed taxis can ply for hire on the streets or at ranks and can also
be pre-booked, generally over the telephone

e PHVs, on the other hand, cannot ply for hire but can only be pre-
booked.

1.3 The licensed taxi and PHV services market in the UK is large and growing
with an annual turnover of at least £2.2 billion." Turnover has risen 43
per cent in real terms since 1994, although it has fallen slightly in the
last couple of years.

1.4 Taxis provide an important service for the public generally and especially
those on lower incomes who are most reliant on them. On average,
people in the lowest 20 per cent of incomes use taxis and PHVs 40 per
cent more often than those in the highest 20 per cent. Adults living in
households without a car made 30 trips a year on average compared
with nine for those in households with a car.?

' National Statistics, Consumer Trends, Quarter 1 2003. This is the expenditure of UK
households in 2002. Spending on taxis by business and tourists are excluded. This figure is
therefore an under-estimate of the true size of the UK taxi and PHV market.

2 Department for Transport: Travel by taxi and PHV in GB, January 2003. All the figures refer
to the years 1999-2001.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 1



Page 161

1.5 Approximately 8.6 million people in the UK are disabled, and it is
estimated that five per cent of these use a wheelchair at least some of
the time.® Taxis and PHVs are used more frequently by disabled people
(67 per cent more) than non disabled people.* The same survey also
concluded that disabled people find taxis and PHVs the easiest mode of
transport to use because of their flexibility.

The regulatory framework

1.6 The licensed taxi and PHV market is highly regulated. The regulations are
generally applied by local licensing authorities (LAs). The application of
the regulations varies from area to area but falls into three broad
categories:

e quantity regulation — LAs can limit the supply of taxis by imposing a
cap on the number of licences for taxi vehicles. Some LAs do this;
others do not. These regulations do not apply to PHVs

e quality and safety regulation — LAs also regulate quality in terms of
service, safety and technical efficiency, both for taxis and for PHVs

e fare regulation — LAs can regulate the fares charged by taxis by
specifying either a mandatory or a maximum fare. Again, these
regulations do not apply to PHVs.

Summary of findings

1.7 In summary, we have concluded that the overall quality of taxi services
could be enhanced by reforming elements of the regulatory framework.
While some aspects of regulation are entirely sound, other aspects can
be improved, and in particular quantity regulation should be removed.

3 Grundy, E., Ahlburg, D., Ali, M., Breeze, E. and Sloggett, A. (1999), Disability in Great Britain:
Results from the 1996/97 Disability Follow-Up to the Family Resources Survey, DSS Research
Report 94 and the Employers Forum on Disability. The figure for the number of disabled people
in the UK represents those aged 16 — 75 in Great Britain and is based on a definition of
disability derived from the World Health Organisation: 'the inability, due to impairment, to
perform activities in typical and personally desired ways in society'. The 8.6 million figure
roughly equates to those who would be covered by the Disability Discrimination Act 1995. The
five per cent figure is commonly used by disability commentators although there is no reliable
data on UK wheelchair users.

4 Attitudes of Disabled People to Public Transport, MORI 2002, undertaken for the Disabled
Persons Transport Advisory Committee.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 162

quantity regulation — limiting the number of taxis reduces availability
and lowers the quality of service to the public. These restrictions
should therefore be lifted

quality and safety regulation — there are compelling reasons to
regulate to safeguard driver and vehicle standards. But there are
guestions about whether quality regulation always achieves its goals
proportionately

fare regulation — there are sound reasons to regulate taxi fares, for
example, to protect consumers in vulnerable situations. But there
could be greater freedom for beneficial price competition below
regulated fare caps.

The benefits to consumers

1.8 Acting on our recommendations will benefit consumers by:

putting more taxis on the road — removing quantity restrictions could
increase the number of taxis in affected areas by 30 per cent

making journeys safer — removing quantity restrictions and increasing the
number of licensed taxis will reduce the need for illegal taxis where
neither the driver or vehicle have been subject to appropriate quality and
safety checks. Last year around 1.8 million people used an illegal taxi,
exposing themselves to potentially serious safety risks

reducing passenger waiting times — removing quantity restrictions will
save an overall 2.5 million hours across the UK

creating more choice — removing quantity restrictions could put an extra
15,000 taxis on the road. This will substantially increase peoples’ choice
of transport modes when deciding how to reach their destination

promoting best practice in LAs’ application of quality and safety controls
to ensure the needs of local people are met and that individuals and
businesses are not deterred from supplying taxi services

protecting people in vulnerable situations from overcharging, while
encouraging the benefits of fare competition.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 3




Page 163

Quantity regulation

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

Forty-five per cent of UK LAs restrict the number of taxi vehicle licences
granted. This represents 52 per cent of all licensed taxis in the UK
outside London. The majority of LAs applying quantity controls are urban
(72 per cent of urban LAs have quantity controls while only 18 per cent
of rural authorities do so).

LAs without quantity controls have on average 30 per cent more taxis
per head of population than those that do not. This is true for both urban
and rural LAs.

Because a large number of LAs control taxi numbers and a large number
do not, there is rich evidence to compare the experience of the public in
each situation. From our analysis of the evidence we have concluded that
these quantity controls are detrimental to consumers. They mean that
consumers have limited access to services they desire, and the
regulations also impede potential new entrants wanting to set up a taxi
business.

Consumers suffer through:

¢ reduced availability of taxis - quantity controls, on average, reduce the
number of taxi vehicles by about 25 per cent and in some cases by
much more than that. For example, since removing quantity controls
Sheffield now has 52 per cent more taxis

¢ increased waiting times - quantity controls increase the amount of
time that people have to wait for a taxi. Overall, our research shows
that restricting quantities increases average waiting times. At certain
times of day, such as peak times, waiting times increase on average
10 per cent

e reduced choice - the lower availability of taxis in LAs with quantity
controls reduces transport options for consumers. These consumers
use other forms of transport to make their journey

e reduced safety — a shortage of licensed taxis on the streets, especially
during the evening, encourages the use of illegal taxis, potentially
exposing consumers to serious safety threats.® This is a significant

5 In our survey people were asked if they had used an illegal taxi in the last year. An illegal taxi
is a totally unlicensed vehicle.

4

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 164

problem. We estimate that approximately 1.8 million people have
taken an illegal taxi at least once in the past 12 months.® Limited
supply of taxis can also contribute to difficulties faced by the police in
clearing city centres or public places in the evenings.

1.13 Quantity regulations also restrict those wanting to set up a taxi business
from entering the market to meet the demands of consumers. They do
this by:

e creating a premium on taxi licences - in areas where licences are
limited in number they have themselves become valuable commodities
typically ranging from £12,000 to £50,000. This creates a sizeable
entry barrier

e delaying market entry — areas with quantity controls have a waiting
list for people wanting to set up taxi businesses. In some areas the
number of people on the waiting list exceeds the number of licences
already in circulation, indicating that there are more people wanting to
enter the market than are currently serving it.

1.14 Overall therefore these quantity restrictions serve neither consumers nor
potential entrants. There is no clear rationale for maintaining these
regulations.” We have nonetheless explored potential rationales which
have been put forward to justify the regulation, and found none to be
convincing.

1.15 The main arguments which could be offered in favour of quantity
controls are:

e that there is no excess demand for taxis. We reject this as our
research shows that demand is there but is not being met

e that they ensure the quality and safety of the fleet in terms of
vehicles and drivers. We believe that effective quality regulation,
rather than restricting taxi numbers, is the reliable way to ensure this

8 TNS: Taxis and PHV Omnibus Consumer Survey 2003 (annexe K). Our survey recorded that
57 per cent of adults use taxis each year and seven per cent of them had used an illegal taxi in
the last year. The total number of adults who have used an illegal taxi is therefore 0.57
multiplied by 45,435,000 (the number of adults in the UK) multiplied by 0.07 = 1.8 million.

7 The origins of quantity controls date back to Royal Proclamations by Charles | in the 1630s.
Controls were introduced in London following complaints about hackney carriages causing
street congestion and petitions by the Company of Watermen who feared that this new form of
hired transport would deprive them of their livelihoods.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 5



Page 165

that they ensure a supply of taxis outside peak times. We reject this
as our study shows that when quantity controls are removed taxi
supply increases across all times of day, and

that they can be used by LAs to control congestion and pollution
levels and encourage public transport use. Our view is that applying
quantity controls will not achieve these aims and that there are more
effective ways of meeting these goals.

1.16 We therefore recommend that the legislative provisions allowing licensing
authorities to impose quantity controls should be repealed. In the

meantime, we recommend that LAs with quantity controls remove them.

Quality and safety regulation

1.17 All LAs that license taxis and PHVs apply quality and safety controls.
These cover:

vehicles — regulations can specify the type of vehicle (it may have to
be wheelchair accessible); age limits on vehicles (a maximum age is
stipulated in 45 per cent of LAs — the average limit is nine years);
vehicle testing at regular intervals (this is required in 90 per cent of
LAs, mostly six monthly); vehicle identification (mainly relating to the
provision of a roof sign); fitting of taximeters (this is required in 93
per cent of LAs); specification of minimum engine size (this occurs in
48 per cent of authorities).? Twenty-five per cent of LAs apply the
same quality conditions to PHVs although, for the majority, vehicle
conditions are less onerous than for taxis and mainly concern the
basic characteristics of the vehicle and its roadworthiness

drivers — regulations can include a criminal record check (required by
all LAs); a medical examination (this is required by 95 per cent of
LAs); a geographical knowledge test (this is required by 60 per cent of
authorities, although they vary greatly in scope); minimum driver age
limits (56 per cent of LAs require drivers to be 21 or over). There are
fewer differences between licence conditions for taxi and PHV drivers
and around 56 per cent of LAs operate a dual licensing scheme,
covering both

8 OFT Survey of Licensing Authorities 2002 (annexe B).

The regulation of licensed taxi
and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

Page 166

e operators — for PHV operators only. Generally this only involves a
criminal record check though other conditions can be attached (e.g.
on the type of premises used).

We believe that there is a strong case for regulating quality and safety
both for taxis and PHVs. First, consumers cannot judge certain standards
such as the safety of the vehicle and the competence of the driver when
getting into a taxi or PHV. These regulations therefore provide essential
protection for consumers. Secondly, taxi services can have a role to play
in broader social welfare policy such as ensuring greater accessibility or
environmental improvements and LAs should consequently be able to
apply quality and safety regulations to suit their needs.

Nonetheless, it is important that these regulations are applied in a
proportionate manner. Our analysis has highlighted substantial variation
across LAs. An example of this is the application by some LAs of the
Metropolitan Conditions of Fitness (MCF) which set out detailed
specifications for taxi vehicles such as a maximum turning circle, a
maximum step height and wheelchair accessibility to certain
specifications. These were written expressly to meet the needs of
London but have been adopted by other LAs so that they cover 44 per
cent of taxi vehicles in the UK. Only certain models of vehicle currently
meet these requirements. These are significantly more expensive than the
saloon cars and wheelchair accessible vehicles allowed by many LAs.
There is a danger that the additional cost of MCF compliant vehicles may
raise prices and deter entry to the market thus limiting supply and leading
to a poorer service for consumers.

We believe that local quality and safety regulation should match local
requirements and think that LAs, when deciding on quality specifications
for vehicles, should consider the needs of consumers and the effect of
the proposed specifications on the availability of taxis and PHVs. LAs
should try to ensure that any quality and safety specifications set do not
go beyond what is required to achieve this policy aim.

We therefore recommend that the Department for Transport promote and
disseminate local best practice in applying quality and safety regulations
involving the Scottish Executive and the Department of the Environment
(NI) in this process. The purpose of this would be to assist LAs to apply
standard quality and safety attributes in a proportionate manner.

In applying quality and safety regulation LAs should carefully consider the
needs of disabled consumers. Part V of the Disability Discrimination Act

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 7



1.23

1.24

1.25

Page 167

1995 (DDA95), which has yet to be implemented, is intended to help
ensure that disabled people, including those who wish to remain in their
wheelchairs, can get into and out of, and travel in, licensed taxis in
safety and reasonable comfort. The Department for Transport (DfT) has
recently announced its proposals and timetable for implementing the taxi
accessibility requirements in Part V DDA95. ° Prior to implementation, the
power to regulate taxis and PHVs in a way that meets the needs of
disabled passengers remains with LAs. Our research has shown large
differences in the way LAs address disability issues with regard to taxis.
A minority of LAs require their taxis to be wheelchair accessible and an
even smaller number require taxi drivers to undergo disability awareness
training.

Those LAs which have required vehicles to be wheelchair accessible have
primarily followed the specifications laid down by the MCF. These
vehicles, however, are not necessarily the most accessible for those with
impaired mobility who do not use a wheelchair.

In setting quality and safety controls LAs should closely consult with
disability groups to ensure their needs are correctly recognised.

We also note that if quantity restrictions apply to vehicles suitable for
disabled passengers, those restrictions may be particularly detrimental to
disabled groups.

Fare regulation

1.26

Approximately 95 per cent of LAs regulate fares for taxis.'® The extent of
regulation varies across the country. In England and Wales, according to
case law, fares set by LAs are maximum fares. The exception to this is
London where a mandatory tariff is set.”’ In Scotland too the fares fixed
under legislation are maximum rates. In Northern Ireland the LA has the
power to set both maximum and minimum fares, although in practice
these are set at the same level, creating a mandatory tariff.

® These regulations will not apply to PHVs.

% The five per cent that do not are rural or semi rural with most of the work coming from
telephone bookings.

' Although taxis are allowed to depart from this tariff on occasion, for example if a passenger
has had their money stolen. This judgement must be made on a case by case basis. There is no
blanket discretion.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



1.27

1.28

1.29

1.30

Page 168

There is a strong case for regulating the maximum level of fares for taxis
in order to protect the interests of consumers. The way that taxi services
are purchased on the street or at ranks can put consumers in a weak
position, and setting maximum fare levels is justified in order:

e to address a lack of price competition — when hiring from ranks or on
the street consumers cannot shop around for the best price. They are
unlikely to turn down a taxi because it is too expensive as they face
uncertainty over how long they must wait for the next taxi to pass
and how much it will cost when it arrives

e to protect vulnerable consumers — certain consumers are likely to be
in a particularly weak bargaining position when they hire a taxi on the
street or at a rank rather than pre-booking a taxi or PHV. For example,
disabled passengers may be less able to take alternative forms of
transport, and tourists may not be sufficiently well informed, or have
the necessary linguistic skill, to negotiate the fare.

We have balanced these arguments against the costs of regulation; in
particular the potential difficulties in setting fares at the correct levels,
and the inflexibility created by regulation, but have concluded that there
remains a good case for retaining these regulations.

We note, however, that the rationale for fare regulation for taxis points
to fare caps - i.e. fixed fares being the maximum that can be charged.

We recommend that throughout the UK LAs should only set fare tariffs
which represent the maximum that can be charged, and not set fixed or
minimum fares. It should be made clear to consumers that they are able
to negotiate on fares, for example, when ordering a taxi over the
telephone. We also recommend that, where possible, LAs actively
facilitate more price competition in the market, particularly in the rank
and hail sectors of the market.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 9



2

Page 169

INTRODUCTION

Introduction

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

10

This market study, which was launched on 21 August 2002, has been
carried out under section 2 of the Fair Trading Act 1973 and, since they
came into force this year, similar duties contained in the Enterprise Act
2002. The study was undertaken as part of our remit to look at
regulations and their impact on a particular market and whether any
changes should be recommended.

We looked at:

e the nature and structure of the taxi and PHV market

e the regulatory framework and the impact the existing regulations have
on the market for taxis and PHVs, and

e the effectiveness of competition in the market.

In carrying out this study we:

e consulted key stakeholders within the taxi and PHV market including
taxi driver groups and manufacturers of taxi vehicles

e consulted with groups representing users of taxi services including
consumer groups, disability groups and groups representing older
people

e consulted with the Department for Transport, the devolved
administrations, licensing authorities including the Public Carriage
Office, and the Local Government Association

e carried out surveys of licensing authorities and consumers, and

e commissioned research into the impact of taxi licensing regulations at
local authority level together with an international study looking at
taxi licensing in other countries.

Throughout this report reference is made to ‘taxis’ and ‘PHVs’ — private
hire vehicles. By taxis we mean vehicles that are licensed to ply for hire
on the street or at ranks and can also be booked in advance. PHVs must
be pre-booked and cannot ply for hire. While our original remit was to
look at the regulations applying to taxis we broadened the terms of
reference of our study to include PHVs due to the interrelated nature of
the services provided (for example, some firms provide both taxi and PHV
services).

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



2.5

2.6

Page 170

The following chapters provide background to the UK taxi and PHV
market, outline the evidence and the market problems we found and
propose remedies where we think they are appropriate. At the end of this
volume we have included a glossary and list of acronyms, together with
our bibliography and references.

Details of our methodology, research and relevant legislation can be
found in the annexes to this report. The studies we commissioned are the
responsibility of the authors concerned and any views expressed in them
are those of the authors and not necessarily of the OFT. The views of the
OFT are expressed in this report, which has been written with the benefit
of having seen these studies.

The Office of Fair Trading 11



3

Page 171

THE UK TAXI AND PHV SERVICES MARKET

Introduction

3.1

This chapter explains the UK taxi and PHV services market to provide
background to our study. Section 1 sets out the scope of our study,
section 2 looks at the market and section 3 looks at the existing legal
framework for taxis and PHVs. Chapters 4 to 7 look more closely at the
impact of particular categories of licensing legislation on the UK market
for taxi and PHV services.

Section 1: the scope of our study

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The taxi and PHV services market in the UK is large and growing with an
annual turnover of at least £2.2 billion."? Turnover has risen 43 per cent
in real terms since 1994, although turnover has fallen slightly in the last
couple of years. Almost 60 per cent of people use a taxi or PHV at least
once a year. We make, on average, 12 trips per person per year. Taxi
and PHV use is also greatest amongst people in low income groups.
Those with incomes in the lowest 20 per cent make around 50 per cent
more trips than across the population as a whole.'®

This study looks at taxis and PHVs and the regulations surrounding them.
We have considered both taxis and PHVs because the two offer
comparable services.

Taxis and PHVs are vehicles that can be licensed to carry a maximum of
eight passengers. We have not considered the regulations relating to

buses, referred to in legislation'* as ‘public service vehicles’."® These fall
into a separate regulatory regime which is outside the remit of our study.

In our research we have looked at how the regulations governing taxis
and PHVs within LAs across the UK affect the supply of taxi services to
consumers. Our intention throughout has been to review the existing

2 National Statistics, Consumer Trends, Quarter 1 2003. This is the expenditure of UK
households in 2002. Spending on taxis by business and tourists are excluded. This figure is
therefore an under-estimate of the true size of the UK taxi and PHV services market.

'S Department for Transport: Travel by taxi and PHV in GB, January 2003. All the figures refer
to the years 1999-2001.

'* The Public Passengers Vehicles Act 1981.

'S These are distinct from public service vehicles (PSVs) as defined by legislation in Northern
Ireland. In Northern Ireland PSVs include taxis which are within the scope of our study.

12

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 172

regulatory structure, with our focus being on the benefits and burdens
that regulation can create — in this case for LAs, the industry and
consumers. Where burdens have been imposed, we have examined them
to see what impact they have on the operation of the market. Our aim
has been to establish whether or not the regulations give rise to an
unnecessarily detrimental impact on competition and consumers.

Section 2: market overview

Taxi and PHV usage

3.6

3.7

Taxis and PHVs are the fastest growing transport sector in the UK. The
use of taxis and PHVs in the UK has increased by over 350 per cent in
the last 25 years. The average person now travels 61 miles by taxi or
PHV each year.'® Private car usage has increased by 61 per cent over the
same 25 year period. There has been a more modest increase in rail
travel and a fall in the distance travelled by local bus.

Table 3.1 shows taxi and PHV journeys per year broken down by age and
sex. As can be seen, between 1999 and 2001, taxi and PHV use
averaged 12 trips per person. Around 60 per cent of people reported
using a taxi or a PHV at least once a year. Women use taxi and PHV
services marginally more than men: 11 per cent of men and 13 per cent
of women said they used a taxi or PHV at least once a week.

TABLE 3.1: AVERAGE TAXI AND PHV JOURNEYS PER YEAR BY AGE AND

SEX: 1999/2001

All

<16 16-20 21-29 30-59 60-69 70+ ages
Male 6 19 19 10 6 7 10
Female 6 36 29 13 7 16 14
All 6 28 24 12 7 12 12

Source: Department for Transport, Travel by taxi and PHV in GB, January
2003

'® Department for Transport: Travel by taxi and PHV in GB, January 2003.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 13



Page 173

3.8 People in low income groups make most trips. On average, people in the
lowest 20 per cent of incomes make 17 trips by taxi or PHV a year
compared with 12 in the highest 20 per cent. Adults living in households
without a car made 30 trips a year on average compared with nine for
those in households with a car.

3.9 Taxi and PHV services are used mainly on the weekend with 18 per cent
of trips on Fridays, 21 per cent on Saturdays and 13 per cent on
Sundays. Patterns of use vary by the day of the week. Weekdays have
peaks of trips starting from eight to nine a.m. (six per cent of the day's
trips), trips starting from three to four p.m. (eight per cent) and trips
starting from 11 p.m. to midnight (eight per cent).!’

Spending on taxi and PHV services

3.10 Expenditure on taxi and PHV services by households in the UK was £2.2
billion in 2002."® Spending increased rapidly in the late 90s (by as much
as 18 per cent in 1997) but has fallen in the last two years. The 2002
figure remains 43 per cent higher in real terms than that recorded in
1994.

3.11 Expenditure was greatest in London (almost 70 per cent higher per
household than the UK as whole).' The other areas with above-average
expenditure are generally in the UK regions with the lowest household
incomes. Households in the North West, North East, Northern Ireland and
Scotland all spend more than the UK average on taxis and PHVs.

The taxi and PHV services market

3.12 Taxis are allowed to ply for hire on the street or at ranks and to make
pre-booked journeys. PHVs can only be pre-booked (usually by
telephone). Around 30 per cent of all journeys are from a rank, 10 per
cent are hailed on the street and 60 per cent are pre-booked.?
Unfortunately, this data source does not separate taxi and PHV journeys
in the telephone segment of the market but the figures for rank and hail

'7 Department for Transport: Travel by taxi and PHV in GB, January 2003.

'8 National Statistics, Consumer Trends, Quarter 1 2003. This is the expenditure of UK
households. Spending on taxis by business and tourists are excluded. This figure is therefore an
under-estimate of the true size of the taxi and PHV market.

'9 National Statistics, Family Spending, 2001-02.

20 Halcrow: Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets — Consumer Survey, July 2003 (annexe A).

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003

14



Page 174

show that taxis account for at least 40 per cent of all journeys made by
taxi and PHV.

3.13 There are around 75,500 licensed taxi vehicles in the UK with 20,700 in
London alone.?' There are almost twice as many licensed taxi drivers
(146,100) as vehicles. The ratio of drivers to vehicles is considerably
higher outside London. There are two main reasons why there are more
drivers than taxis. First, in LAs that impose quantity restrictions not all
licensed drivers can get a taxi vehicle licence and drivers will use taxis
owned by other licence holders. The second reason is that drivers will
often share the costs of running a taxi.

3.14 There are an estimated 105,000 PHVs, 18,000 private hire operators and
157,000 PHYV drivers.?? Again, shared use of vehicles or PHV operators
renting vehicles to drivers accounts for the difference between numbers
of drivers and vehicles.

3.15 The number of licensed taxi vehicles has increased roughly in line with
the higher usage observed over time. In 2002, there were around 50 per
cent more licensed taxi vehicles than there were ten years ago.?®

Section 3: an overview of the current legal framework

3.16 The UK taxi and PHV services market is highly regulated. Annexe A
provides a detailed description of the legislation surrounding taxi and PHV
licensing. The following is a brief overview of the relevant legislation and
how it is applied.

Geographical areas

3.17 There are four distinct geographical areas for the licensing of taxis and
PHVs in the UK: London; England and Wales outside London; Scotland;
and Northern Ireland. All allow for the licensing of vehicles and drivers.

3.18 England (including London), Wales and Scotland operate a two tier
licensing system. There is a legal distinction between a taxi and a PHV in

21 OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).

22 Note that PHVs in London are not yet fully licensed and this UK-wide figure is an estimate
based on the ratio of drivers to vehicles outside London.

23 Department for Transport: Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles in England and Wales, 2001 -
2002.The increase is a combination of increasing numbers of taxis in LAs without quantity
controls, more LAs removing quantity controls and the limited release of licences in LAs with
quantity controls.

The Office of Fair Trading 15



Page 175

these parts of the UK and both forms of vehicle are subject to a separate
licensing regime. Taxis are licensed to ‘ply for hire’ whereas PHVs are
not. This means that taxis can pick up passengers from the street or at a
taxi rank and make a contract there and then to carry a passenger,
whereas PHVs can only pick up passengers who have pre-arranged a
journey by making a booking either by telephone or at an operator’s
office. Taxis may also accept pre-arranged bookings.

3.19 In Northern Ireland there is a single licensing regime that applies to all
‘public service vehicles’, which includes vehicles used for public and
private hire and buses. However, there are two main types of vehicle
licence in the taxi and private hire sector: a ‘public hire taxi licence’?* and
a ‘private hire taxi licence’. A ‘public hire taxi’ is permitted to ply for hire
in the same way as a licensed taxi in the rest of the UK. A ‘private hire
taxi’ offers the same services as a PHV in the rest of the UK. There are
additional byelaws to allow conditions to be attached to public hire
licences in the City of Belfast only.

3.20 In practice, the distinction between the two types of ‘taxi’ in Northern
Ireland has the same effect as the distinction between taxis and PHVs in
the rest of the UK. For simplicity, where appropriate, references to taxis
in this report should be read as including Northern Irish public hire taxis
and references to PHVs should be taken to include Northern Irish private
hire taxis.

Types of licence

3.21 For taxis there are two types of licence: a vehicle licence and a driver’s
licence. The vehicle licence is issued to the owner of the taxi, and in
England and Wales outside London it can be transferred to a new owner
on the sale or other transfer of the vehicle, as long as the new owner’s
name is registered with the LA?°. In London, Scotland and Northern
Ireland such transfer is not permitted save in exceptional circumstances,

24 There are two categories of public hire licence: one for operating within the City of Belfast (a
Belfast Public Hire licence); and one for operating outside Belfast only (a Restricted Public Hire
licence).
2% This was established in the case of Weymouth BC ex p. Teletax (Weymouth) Ltd [1947] 1 All
ER 779.

The regulation of licensed taxi

16 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



3.22

3.23

Page 176

but vehicle licences still change hands by other mechanisms.?® There is
no separate requirement for an operator’s licence to be held by the
person that runs a taxi business. Furthermore, the owner of a taxi vehicle
and the licensed driver can be separate people.

For PHVs, in England (including London) and Wales there are three types
of licence: a vehicle licence, a driver’s licence and an operator’s licence.
The operator is the person that accepts bookings and with whom the
customer makes a contract for carriage. The actual services can be
provided either by licensed PHV owners who are also licensed drivers or
by licensed drivers who rent a licensed vehicle. Consequently the
operator may be a different person from the driver.

In Scotland and Northern Ireland there are two kinds of PHV licence: a
vehicle licence and a driver’s licence. There is no requirement for a PHV
operator’s licence.

Levels of regulation

3.24

3.25

3.26

In England and Wales outside London and in Scotland there are two
levels of regulation: primary enabling legislation grants LAs licensing
powers subject to certain conditions; LAs then set more detailed
requirements in byelaws and/or licence conditions. In England outside
London the LAs are district councils and unitary councils. In Wales they
are county councils and county borough councils, and in Scotland they
are councils. For simplicity this report refers throughout to LAs rather
than to local authorities of a particular type.

In London, separate statutes contain the main provisions relating to taxis,
and detailed licensing conditions are set out in London Cab Orders issued
by Transport for London (TfL), which is the LA.?” A PHV licensing regime
was introduced in London in 1998.?% Regulations under this Act have
been put in place which set out detailed licensing conditions.

In Northern Ireland, the licensing regime is set out in Orders and
Regulations that apply only in Northern Ireland. Licensing is carried out
centrally by the Department of the Environment.

26 For example by using a company as the licence holder for the vehicle, or through negotiation
with the LA.

27 Transport for London is the integrated body responsible for London’s transport system.

28 By the Private Hire Vehicles (London) Act 1998.

The Office of Fair Trading 17



Page 177

Categories of regulation

3.27 There are three broad categories of regulation applying to the UK market
for taxi and PHV services: quantity regulation, quality and safety
regulation and fare regulation.

Quantity regulation

3.28 AQuantity regulation applies to taxi vehicle licences. It does not apply to
taxi driver’s licences or to any of the three kinds of PHV licence. The
application of quantity controls across the geographic areas in the UK is
as follows:

e England and Wales outside London - LAs can, but do not have to,
limit the number of taxi licences they issue.?® Fifty-five per cent of
LAs (accounting for 51 per cent of taxi vehicles) do not use quantity
controls.®° If an LA wishes to limit the number of taxis in its area, it
must satisfy itself that there is ‘no significant demand for the services
of [taxis within its licensing area]l which is unmet’.*" To meet this
requirement, those district councils that limit taxi numbers carry out
‘unmet demand surveys’. The law does not place any requirements on
LAs wishing to remove limits on taxi numbers — they are free to do so
at any time.

e London - there is no quantity restriction of taxis as TfL does not have
any express power to limit the number of taxi vehicle licences.

e Scotland — under primary legislation,” the grant of a taxi licence may
be refused by a licensing authority for the purpose of limiting the
number of taxis in respect of which licences are granted by them if,
but only if, they are satisfied that there is no significant demand for
taxis in their area which is unmet’.?? Forty-six per cent of LAs
(accounting for 35 per cent of taxi vehicles) do not restrict the

2% Under section 37 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 as amended by section 16 Transport Act
1985.

30 OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B). This is a reduction from about 74 per cent in
1985. Goe, GA (1986), ‘The taxi and hire care industry in GB in 1985’, Transport and Road
Research Laboratory Research Report 68.

31 Section 37 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 as amended by section 16 Transport Act 1985.

32 Under section 10(3) Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982 as amended by the Transport Act
1985.

The regulation of licensed taxi

18 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



Page 178

number of taxis in their area. These are predominantly rural
authorities.

e Northern Ireland - there is no quantity regulation of taxis, as the
Department of the Environment does not have the power to refuse
taxi vehicle licences in order to restrict taxi numbers.

Quality and safety regulation

3.29 AQuality and safety regulation applies to drivers (both of taxis and PHVs),
to vehicles (both taxis and PHVs) and to PHV operators.

3.30 For drivers:

e England and Wales outside London — LAs may only license taxi
drivers®® and PHV drivers® on condition that they are satisfied that
applicants are ‘fit and proper’ and that they have held a valid driving
licence for at least twelve months. LAs set their own conditions of
‘fitness’. These commonly include holding valid insurance, satisfying a
criminal records check and any age and health requirements).

e London - TfL can (and does) prescribe conditions for the granting of
taxi driver’s licences.® Applicants must satisfy TfL that they are ‘of
good character and fit to act as a cab driver’.*® TfL is in the process
of introducing PHV licensing in London.*’ PHV driver licensing began
in April 2003, but is in a transitional phase. TfL is required to grant a
PHYV driver’s licence if the applicant is over the age of 21, has held a
driving licence for at least three years and ‘is a fit and proper person
to hold a London PHYV driver’s licence’;*® TfL may set out further
licensing conditions in administrative rules.

e Scotland — LAs can only grant taxi and PHV driver’s licences to
applicants who have held a driving licence for at least 12 months, and
may require applicants to submit to medical examinations. For taxi
driver’s licences, LAs can require tests of knowledge and other
matters relating to the operation of a taxi. *°

3% Under section 46 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and section 59 Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

3% Under section 51 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

38 Under section 8 Metropolitan Public Carriage Act 1869.

3¢ Paragraph 25, London Cab Order 1934.

37 Under the Private Hire Vehicles (London) Act 1998.

38 Under section 13(2) Private Hire Vehicles (London) Act 1998.

3% Under section 13 Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 19



Page 179

¢ Northern Ireland — the Department of the Environment must not
license drivers of taxis and PHVs unless they have held a driving
licence for at least 12 months and are ‘fit and proper’*°. Under
separate regulations applicants must submit medical certificates and
the Department of the Environment can refuse a licence if the
applicant is not ‘of good character.’*'

3.31 For vehicles:

¢ England and Wales outside London - LAs may attach to the grant of a
taxi vehicle licence such conditions as they consider ‘'reasonably
necessary’.*? For PHVs, LAs are required not to grant a licence unless
they are satisfied that the vehicle is suitable in type, size and design
for use as a PHV, is not of such design and appearance as to lead any
person to believe that it is a taxi, is in suitable mechanical condition,
safe, and comfortable and covered by a suitable insurance policy. **

e London - TfL can (and does) prescribe conditions for the grant of taxi
vehicle licences.** TfL can refuse a taxi vehicle licence if the applicant
fails to satisfy TfL that his vehicle conforms to the conditions of
fitness set by TfL*®, known colloquially as the ‘Metropolitan
Conditions of Fitness’. Licensing of PHV vehicles in London has not
yet begun, but TfL plan to introduce it in early 2004. When it does,
TfL will be able to refuse a licence on the grounds relating to vehicle
design, vehicle condition, and valid insurance. *®* The detail of the
licensing framework for PHV vehicles is still being developed by TfL.

e Scotland - LAs must license taxi and PHV vehicles if they are
satisfied that they are of suitable design, safe and covered by a
suitable insurance policy. *’

49 Under article 79A(3) Road Traffic (Northern Ireland) Order 1981.

*" The Public Service Vehicles Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1985.

42 Under section 47 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Section 68 of the
Town Police Clauses Act also allows district councils to regulate how taxis ‘ are to be furnished
or provided” by byelaw.

43 Section 48 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

4% Under section 6 Metropolitan Public Carriage Act 1869.

4% Under paragraph 7(3) of the London Cab Order 1934.

46 Section 7(2) Private Hire Vehicles (London) Act 1998.

47 Under section 10 Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982.

The regulation of licensed taxi

20 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



Page 180

¢ Northern Ireland - the Department of the Environment must license
taxi and PHV vehicles.*® There are statutory requirements relating to
the fitness, equipping and use of the vehicles.*®

3.32 For operators:

e England and Wales outside London - PHV operators must be ‘fit and
proper’, and LAs can attach to the grant of a licence ‘such conditions
as they may consider reasonably necessary’. *°

¢ London - prior to granting a PHV operator’s licence TfL must be
satisfied that the applicant is a ‘fit and proper person’ to hold the
licence.”’ There are further licensing conditions set by regulation,
relating e.g. to insurance and previous convictions. *?

e In Scotland and Northern Ireland - there is no power to licence PHV
operators.

Fare regulation
3.33 All four regimes allow fares to be regulated:

¢ England and Wales outside London — LAs are empowered to set fares
for taxis, but not for PHVs;*® According to case law, the fares set by
LAs in this way are maximum fares — it is open to taxi drivers to set
lower rates if they wish. °*

e London - TfL can, with the Mayor’s approval, fix rates and fares for
taxis by means of a London Cab Order. *°

e Scotland - LAs must fix and review scales for the fares and other
charges in connection with the hire of a taxi. °°

48 Under article 60 Road Traffic (Northern Ireland) Order 1981.

4% The Public Service Vehicles Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1985 and the Public Service
Vehicles (Conditions of Fitness, Equipment and Use) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1995.

%0 Under section 55 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

5! Under section 3(3) Private Hire Vehicles (London) Act 1998.

52 Under the Private Hire Vehicles (London) (Operators’ Licences) Regulations 2000.

53 Section 68 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 empowers district councils to use byelaws to fix
fares for taxis by time and/or distance. Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act empowers district councils that have adopted its provisions to fix rates or fares
on a time and/or distance basis, and all other charges in connection with the hire of a vehicle,
by means of a table of fares.

% R v Liverpool City Council ex p. Curzon Limited 12 November 1993 C0O/1338/91 QBD,
unreported.

%% Section 9 Metropolitan Public Carriage Act 1869.

%6 Under section 17(2) Civic Government (Scotland) Act 1982.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 21



Page 181

¢ Northern Ireland - the Department of the Environment can make
byelaws to fix the maximum and minimum fares to be charged by taxi
and PHV drivers for passengers and luggage.®’ Byelaws only fix fares
for taxis in Belfast.

57 Under section 65 of the Road Traffic (Northern Ireland) Order 1981.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003

22



4

Page 182

REVIEW OF QUANTITY REGULATION

Introduction and summary

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

This chapter examines the effect that quantity controls have on the
supply of taxi services. PHVs are not subject to quantity controls
anywhere in the UK. Taxis are. Our analysis therefore looks only at taxis.

The historical origin of quantity controls lie in Royal Proclamations by
Charles | in the 1630s.°® One of the purposes of these proclamations was
to restrict the number of hackney carriages in London following
complaints that they caused street congestion and petitions by the
Company of Watermen who feared that this new form of hired transport
would deprive them of their livelihoods.*®

Quantity controls on taxis in England and Wales currently have their basis
in the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and were likely introduced as a
form of traffic restraint — to avoid streets becoming congested by
coaches and horses. As amended by the Transport Act 1985 they allow
LAs in England and Wales outside London to limit the number of taxi
vehicle licences issued. In Scotland, the Civic Government (Scotland) Act
1982 gives LAs equivalent powers. Neither TfL in London nor the
Department of the Environment in Northern Ireland has powers to restrict
the number of taxi vehicle licences issued.

A fuller explanation of the legislation surrounding taxi and PHV licensing
is at annexe A.

To assess the effect of the regulation we have looked at the impact
guantity controls have on consumers. At present, 45 per cent of UK LAs
restrict the number of taxi vehicle licences granted.®® In carrying out our
assessment we have, therefore, been able to compare taxi services in
areas with and without restrictions. We have also been able to study the
experience of LAs that have removed quantity controls and to examine
international examples where regulations have been liberalised.

® The first of these was ‘A Proclamation for the restraint of excessive carriages to the
destruction of the High Wayes’ [1 November 1635], Proclamations, Il Chronological Series,
Charles I. [1625 - 1649].

5pratt, E., A. A History of Inland Transport and Communication in England, Kegan Paul, Trench,
Trubner & Co Itd. London, 1912.

80 OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 23



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Page 183

The research we commissioned to aid us in this assessment is at annexes
C, D, H, I, Jand K.

In summary we have found that, all other things being equal, applying
guantity controls has the following effects on the supply of taxis:

e there are fewer taxis per head of the population

e people wait longer for taxis

e people often have to use less suitable transportation as an alternative
to taxis. This has safety implications

e a shortage premium on taxi vehicle licences is often created, and

e waiting lists to acquire a taxi vehicle licence can be long.

This has led us to conclude that quantity controls do not serve the best
interests of consumers. They restrict them from securing the services
they want and also impede those wanting to become taxi drivers from
doing so.

We therefore recommend that the legislative provisions allowing licensing
authorities to impose quantity controls should be repealed. In the
meantime, we recommend that licensing authorities with quantity
controls remove them.

This chapter looks at these issues in more detail. Section 1 looks at the
extent to which quantity controls are currently applied. Section 2
examines the effect quantity controls have on supply. Section 3 looks at
the effect quantity controls have on the users of taxis, section 4 looks at
the effect on suppliers of taxi services, and section 5 looks at some of
the arguments put forward in favour of quantity controls. Section 6 gives
our conclusions and recommendations.

Section 1: the application of quantity controls

Who applies quantity controls?

4.11

24

In England and Wales outside London and in Scotland the decision
whether or not to restrict taxi numbers is taken by the local LA, and
practice varies considerably across the country. The breakdown of the
proportion of LAs applying quantity controls in urban, rural and mixed
urban and rural areas is set out at table 4.1. The geographical distribution
of these LAs is shown at figure 4.1.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 184

TABLE 4.1: PERCENTAGE OF LAS WITH QUANTITY CONTROLS, BY TYPE,

2002
Urban Rural Mixed Total
Unrestricted 28 82 53 55
Restricted 72 18 47 45
Total 100 100 100 100

Source: OFT, Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B)

FIGURE 4.1: DISTRIBUTION OF QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS ON TAXI VEHICLE
NUMBERS IN UK LICENSING AUTHORITIES®'

Licensing Authorities

Limited (at least some of area)
Unbenitmed

Taxis not hesnsed

8" OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B); Department for Transport, Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicles in England and Wales 2001-02, June 2003.

The Office of Fair Trading | 25



Page 185

4.12 At present, 45 per cent of UK LAs restrict the number of taxi vehicle
licences granted. This represents 52 per cent of all licensed taxis in the
UK outside London.?? The majority of LAs applying quantity controls are
urban: 72 per cent apply quantity controls compared to only 18 per cent
of rural LAs. There are no clear systematic regional differences in the
proportion of LAs that apply quantity controls.

Unmet demand studies

4.13 If LAs are to refuse to issue further taxi licences they must first go
through a process aimed at establishing that there is no ‘significant
demand that is unmet’.®® They generally do this by carrying out an
‘unmet demand’ survey, on average every two to four years. The survey
mainly involves observation at ranks of the demand for taxis, carried out
over a representative period. If a survey suggests an unmet demand then
the LA must issue the number of plates that the survey deems is required
to meet the shortfall.

4.14 As a part of this study we have had access to data from a number of
these surveys. We have also commissioned two similar surveys of our
own to aid our analysis.®

Section 2: the effect of quantity controls on the supply of taxis

4.15 This section looks at the impact that quantity controls have on the supply
of taxis and the relationship between taxi and PHV numbers as a result of
these controls.

Taxi provision per head of population

4.16 Areas with quantity controls generally have significantly fewer taxis than
those without.

4.17 Table 4.2 compares taxi and PHV provision per 1000 head of the
population broken down into different types of LA.

62 OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).
8 Under section 16 Transport Act 1985.
64 OXERA: Modelling the Effects of Taxi Regulation (annexe H).

The regulation of licensed taxi

26 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



Page 186

TABLE 4.2: AVERAGE NUMBER OF TAXIS AND PHVS PER 1,000 OF THE

4.18

POPULATION
Restrictions on taxi numbers

Type of LA Unrestricted Restricted Total

All Taxis 1.22 0.94 1.08
PHVS 1.01 2.01 1.46
All vehicles 2.21 2.93 2.53
Ratio PHVs to Taxis 0.83 2.14 1.35

Urban Taxis 1.51 1.14 1.23
PHVS 1.43 2.42 217
All vehicles 2.94 3.562 3.38
Ratio PHVs to Taxis 0.95 2.12 1.76

Rural Taxis 1.09 1.00 1.05
PHVS 0.66 0.93 0.73
All vehicles 1.71 1.93 1.75
Ratio PHVs to Taxis 0.61 0.93 0.72

Mixed Taxis 1.25 0.75 1.01
PHVS 1.22 1.90 1.52
All vehicles 2.47 2.65 2.53
Ratio PHVs to Taxis 0.98 2.53 1.5

London Taxis 2.88 - 2.88

Source: OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B)

Note: The number of taxis and PHVs per head does not sum exactly to
the total number of vehicles because a small number of LAs did not
provide data for both taxis and PHVs.

LAs without quantity controls have on average 30 per cent more taxis
per head of population. This is true both for urban and rural LAs. In LAs
with quantity controls the shortfall in taxi services gives rise to increased
provision of PHVs. For example, Leeds (an authority with quantity

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 27



4.19

4.20

Page 187

controls) has 402 taxi vehicles but around 3,000 PHVs whilst Liverpool
(now restricted but effectively de-restricted for many years) has 1,417
taxis but only 900 PHVs.®® The reason behind the higher proportion of
PHVs is that where taxi numbers are artificially limited and demand
outstrips supply, PHVs come in to fill part of the gap. However, because
PHVs cannot ply for hire in the street they cannot substitute for all taxi
services.

The finding that quantity controls reduce the supply of taxis is strongly
supported by the more detailed case studies, looking at areas over time
which have removed quantity controls. For example, in the four years
since the removal of quantity controls, Cambridge’s licensed taxi fleet
has grown by 46 per cent and Sheffield's has grown by 52 per cent. This
has been accompanied by a drop in PHV numbers of around 25 and 20
per cent respectively.

Waiting lists for taxi vehicle licences are generally made up of licensed
PHV owners or drivers and licensed taxi drivers who do not yet have a
vehicle licence.®® Removing quantity controls generally stimulates
members of the PHV trade to move over to driving taxis. This can often
mean that there is only a small increase in the total fleet of licensed taxis
and PHVs when taxi limits are lifted. For example, although the number
of taxis in Bristol increased by over 150 per cent following removal of
guantity controls, the combined fleet of taxis and PHVs increased by only
four per cent.®’” The total number of vehicles in Cambridge and Sheffield

8 Halcrow: Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets — Case Study Analysis, July 2003

(annexe D).

8 OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B). Around two thirds of those on a waiting list for
vehicle licences already hold a taxi driver licence, 44 per cent hold a PHV vehicle licence and 53
per cent hold a PHV driver licence — note that some hold both PHV vehicle and driver licences.
7 Halcrow: Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets — Case Study Analysis, July 2003

(annexe D).

28

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 188

following de-restriction also barely changed. As PHVs are more limited
than taxis in the service they offer, the overall service to consumers
improves, particularly in plying for hire.®® This is examined in the next
section.

Section 3: the effect of quantity controls on the users of taxis

4.21

Fewer taxis per head of population can impact consumers in a number of
ways. In particular:

e those wanting to take taxis have to wait longer for the service

e it restricts choice and may force consumers into taking alternative,
less suitable, modes of transport

e it increases public safety concerns.

Passenger waiting times

4.22

4.23

4.24

Consumers facing restricted supply of taxis in quantity controlled areas
might, instead of opting for alternative modes of transport, find
themselves having to wait longer for a taxi.

Waiting times are affected by a number of factors in addition to
regulation, such as time of day, population density, and overall economic
activity. In order to separate out the impact of quantity controls on
waiting times we commissioned a study of waiting times to take account
of these factors.®®

Data on average passenger delay from consumer surveys and an indicator
of excess demand from on-street unmet demand surveys were used as
measures of waiting time. ’° The quantitative analysis made allowance for
the circumstances in which the taxi was hired, such as the time of day
and whether it was booked by phone or hailed in the street, and the
socio-demographics (economic activity and population age and density)
of the LA.

%8 |t should be noted that whilst there is a short term decrease in PHVs serving the telephone
booking market the number often begins to rise again within a relatively short time. In Dublin,
following the removal of quantity controls, PHV numbers dropped initially but were back to
almost pre-deregulation levels within two years whilst taxi numbers steadily increased.

5 OXERA: Modelling the Effects of Taxi Regulation (annexe H).

’° The excess demand indicator shows the proportion of hours (across all major ranks in the LA)
for which more than two people were waiting for a taxi in any one hour.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 29



4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

Page 189

Analysis of waiting times

The central finding of this research, which accords with common sense,
is that consumers wait longer for taxis in LAs with quantity controls. It

also found that the stricter the entry control the higher the waiting time
(some LAs with quantity controls issue a small number of licences each
year while others may not issue a single licence for many years).

A straight comparison of waiting times in quantity controlled and
uncontrolled areas, aimed at providing background on taxi usage, found
that waiting times in restricted areas were 30 per cent lower than in
unrestricted areas.”’ Further analysis by us indicated that this was largely
explained by the fact that quantity controlled areas tended to be urban,
rather than by the existence of quantity controls per se.”?

So the straight comparison has to be adjusted statistically. The result
was that, all other things being equal, in areas without quantity controls
waiting times were between two and seven per cent lower than in those
areas with quantity controls. At peak times the reduction in waiting time
is even greater (10 per cent). These reductions, when considered in
terms of the total number of journeys made each year, are considerable.
A five per cent fall in waiting times amounts to around 2.5 million hours
saved each year by UK consumers.”® This gain does not include the gains
of those who were deterred from waiting, in the expectation of not
finding a taxi, in the first place.

Case studies

In addition to the econometric research, we also looked in detail at two
LAs, Sheffield and Cambridge, where we conducted two new unmet
demand studies. These LAs have recently removed quantity controls. We
compared the results of the new studies with existing unmet demand

"' Halcrow: Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets — Consumer Survey (annexe C). At ranks

only.

’2 The data from quantity controlled LAs was also based on a small sample number — only six
out of 58 LAs sampled had no quantity controls. The waiting times in one of these LAs,
Worcester, based on consumer self reported times, were extremely large, despite contradictory
evidence from a rank based study and from the local licensing officer.

”® This number is obtained by applying the reduction in waiting time to the average passenger
delay in restricted areas from the Halcrow consumer surveys (7.52 minutes) times the number
of trips per person per year from the National Travel Survey (12) times the UK population living
in LAs with quantity controls (25.5 million).

30

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 190

studies for these areas that had been carried out when the limits were
still in place. This enabled useful comparisons of waiting times and
customer satisfaction before and after removing quantity controls.

4.29 In Sheffield, removing quantity controls led to the number of taxis rising
from 300 in 1998 to 457 in 2003. This resulted in a drop in passenger
waiting times. The proportion of people waiting over five minutes for a
taxi at ranks fell from 27 percent in 1998 to nine per cent in 2003. The
overall average waiting time fell from 1.47 minutes to 1.23 minutes over
the same period. Although this is a small decrease for individual journeys,
if we take it across all journeys from ranks it equates to 4,420 hours of
saved waiting time per year.”

4.30 In Cambridge, where the number of taxis increased from 147 in 1999 to
215 in 2003, passenger delay also decreased. The proportion of people
waiting over five minutes at a rank for a taxi fell from 20 per cent in
1999 to six per cent in 2003. In 2003 the average passenger delay fell
to 1.67 minutes from 2.29 minutes in the 1999 study. This equates to
over 6,300 saved hours.”

Reduced choice

4.31 |If there are fewer taxis available, consumer choice is restricted as to the
type of transport they can use. Consumers who otherwise would have
taken a taxi may have to opt for other, less preferred and less suitable,
modes of transport.’® Removing quantity restrictions could put an extra
15,000 taxis on the road.”’

4.32 In a survey conducted by our consultants 15 per cent of consumers in all
LAs said high waiting times were the main reason for not using taxis or
PHVs.”® This suggests that, were waiting times to drop, consumers who
do not currently use taxis or PHVs would begin to. This was the case in

74 Calculated by taking the number of weekly passenger departures from ranks (21,250)
observed by the 2003 Halcrow unmet demand survey.

’® Some caution should be noted with regard to the results from the Cambridge survey since the
2003 exercise was conducted outside of University term time and a considerably lower number
of journeys were observed.

76 Aside from direct consumer detriment it may be argued that there are issues relating to the
environment and traffic congestion. These are discussed later in the chapter.

77 Estimated by calculating how many more taxi vehicles there would be if the number of taxis
per head in authorities with quantity controls rose to the same level as those without numerical
limits (as measured by the OFT Survey of Licensing Authorities, 2002 (see annexe B).

78 OXERA: Consumer Survey Report, September 2003 (annexe |).

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 31



4.33

Page 191

Sheffield where removal of quantity controls resulted in the numbers of
passenger journeys from ranks increasing by eight per cent after de-
restriction and waiting times dropping by 16 per cent (the number of
taxis rose by 34 per cent).

Our case studies have shown that following the removal of quantity
controls there has been a change in consumers’ preferred use of taxis
and PHVs. In particular, there has been a substantial increase in the
proportion of passengers hailing a taxi in the street as opposed to
ordering it by telephone. The proportion of respondents hailing taxis in
the street increased from seven per cent to 44 per cent in Sheffield and
from nine per cent to 30 per cent in Cambridge. The proportion pre-
ordering taxis by telephone fell substantially and rank usage increased.

TABLE 4.3: METHOD OF TAXI AND PHV HIRE FOR LAST TRIP

4.34

Sheffield Cambridge
1998 2003 1999 2003
Hail in street 7% 44% 9% 30%
Rank 34% 20% 27% 37%
Telephone 59% 36% 64 % 33%
All 100% 100% 100% 100%

Source: Halcrow, Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets - Case Study,

table 4.5 (annexe D)

Overall, therefore, the case studies strongly support the proposition that
consumers value and use the greater choice opened up by removing
guantity controls.

Consumer safety

4.35

32

Restricting the supply of licensed taxis raises issues of public safety. As
a part of our study we have spoken to and received submissions from
several UK police authorities. Anecdotal evidence from some of these
authorities suggest that a shortage of safe transport, particularly taxis
available to ply for hire from the street or ranks, during the late evening
contributes to difficulties faced by police in clearing city centres or public

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

Page 192

places. ’° The inability to clear these areas can be a contributory factor to
violence and public disorder.

Licensing officers, police authorities and the taxi trade press that we
have spoken to have also highlighted concerns about the safety issues
surrounding consumers’ use of illegal taxis and PHVs that are not
licensed to ply for hire, especially during evening peak times. 2® When
there is a lack of available taxis consumers have tended to use alternative
methods to make their journey and this can include illegal taxis. We
conducted a survey which showed that seven per cent of consumers
who had taken some form of taxi or PHV in the last 12 months had used
an illegal taxi or a PHV not licensed to ply for hire at least once.?' This
equates to approximately 1.8 million people per year.??

A large number of people are therefore placing themselves in danger from
drivers who may not have undergone a police check and vehicles that
may be unsafe.

Some consumers have also said that they have used PHVs which have
been illegally plying for hire where a taxi was unavailable. PHVs illegally
plying for hire invalidate their insurance, limiting means of redress in the
event of an accident. Again, this creates a consumer protection problem.

We believe that the availability of more taxis, and strong enforcement of
the licensing regulations, would help address these issues.

Section 4: the impact of quantity regulation on the supply side

4.40

Quantity controls also constrain individuals or businesses wishing to
enter the market to serve consumers. Two sources of evidence from
areas where quantity restrictions apply point to this conclusion: firstly,
the unofficial premium value attached to taxi vehicle licences when taxi
vehicles are sold; and secondly, the waiting lists for taxi vehicle licences.
We now consider each of these in turn.

”® Lothian and Borders Police, Transport Operational Command Unit of the Metropolitan Police,
Northumbria Police and Sussex Police.

80 By illegal taxis we mean vehicles that are completely unlicensed.

81 TNS: Taxi and PHV Omnibus Consumer Survey 2003 (annexe K).

82 TNS: Taxis and PHV Omnibus consumer Survey 2003 (annexe K). Our survey recorded that
57 per cent of adults use taxis each year. The total number of adults who have used an illegal
taxi is therefore 0.57 multiplied by 45,435,000 (the number of adults in the UK) multiplied by

0.07 =

1.8 million.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 33



Page 193

Taxi vehicle licence shortage premiums

4.41 As aresult of their limited supply in areas where quantity restrictions
apply, taxi vehicle licences have acquired an unofficial ‘street’ value
when licensed taxi vehicles are sold. This value is unrelated to the
administrative fee charged by the LA to cover the cost of issuing the
licence — a fee which averages £170 for the initial application and £65
for renewals®®. If taxi proprietors are willing to pay a premium to enter
the market, this suggests that they consider that they can make
sufficiently high profits to justify the shortage premium, whether because
there is a ready supply of consumers waiting for services or because LAs
have to set fares at a higher rate to reduce high waiting times. The
precise level of the vehicle licence shortage premium is determined by a
range of factors but the key one is quantity control.

4.42 Shortage premiums exist in spite of a free PHV market as PHVs cannot
serve the rank and hail market. Premiums should only exist in areas
where quantity restrictions apply in England and Wales outside London
and in Scotland.

4.43 In our survey of UK licensing authorities we asked LAs to estimate the
value of vehicle licence shortage premiums. The average estimated
licence shortage premium (where it exists) for a licensed vehicle is
around £16,500 (in addition to the cost of the taxi itself). The estimated
values obtained are as high as £50,000 in Woking and Wycombe and
£40,000 in Crawley, but more generally 50 per cent of estimated vehicle
licence shortage premiums are between £7,500 and £25,000.5*

4.44 It should be noted that these premiums are paid through private
transactions between taxi proprietors and taxi drivers or others wishing
to purchase a vehicle with its vehicle licence. The LA does not charge or
receive the premium price when issuing a vehicle licence.

88 OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).
84 Halcrow: Valuation of Hackney Carriage Licence Figures, July 2003 (annexe E). Documentary
evidence of the exact size of premiums is seldom available because these are private
transactions. However licensing officers are reasonably confident of their estimates due to their
close working proximity with the taxi trade.

The regulation of licensed taxi

34 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



Page 194

Taxi vehicle licence waiting list

4.45

4.46

In half of the LAs with quantity controls, individuals applying for a taxi
vehicle licence are placed on a waiting list and have to wait until they
reach the top of the list before getting a licence (although some LAs have
a ballot system to prevent taxi vehicle licences from being concentrated
in the hands of one or two large fleet owners). ®®* They remain on this
waiting list until either more licences are issued or they are able to
purchase a licensed taxi from someone leaving the trade. Some LAs, for
example Woking, do not maintain a waiting list since they do not intend
to issue new licences in the foreseeable future.

In LAs that apply quantity controls and have a waiting list there are, on
average, 78 people waiting for taxi vehicle licences. In 10 per cent of
LAs the number waiting for a vehicle licence exceeds the number of
licences currently in circulation (table 4.4 shows the longest waiting lists
by LA).

TABLE 4.4: LONGEST WAITING LISTS FOR VEHICLE LICENCES BY UK LOCAL

4.47

AUTHORITY
Local Number of Applicants on waiting list
Authority Licensed Taxis for a Taxi Vehicle Licence
Manchester 814 750
Dundee 507 400
Hull 170 376
Sunderland 284 279
Watford 63 205
Stoke 89 200
Crawley 79 170

Source: OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B)

Almost all applicants on the waiting list are currently part of the licensed
taxi or private hire trade. About two thirds of those on waiting lists for
taxi vehicle licences already hold a taxi driver licence, 44 per cent hold a
PHV vehicle licence and 53 per cent hold a PHV driver licence.?®

8 OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).
8 OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 35



Page 195

Section 5: arguments in favour of quantity controls

4.48

4.49

4.50

Our conclusion is that there is a strong case for removal of quantity
controls. On the basis of the evidence, service to consumers is poorer
with quantity controls . These controls stop consumers getting the
service they prefer and they also stop potential entry by firms wishing to
provide those services.

There is no clear economic rationale for quantity controls which appear to
have been introduced in the 1630s primarily to prevent street congestion.

Notwithstanding this, in the course of this study we have come across a
number of arguments which could potentially be put in favour of quantity
controls. These are discussed below.

There is no significant unmet demand

4.51

4.52

4.53

One argument which has been put to us is that unmet demand tests
ensure that quantity controls do not result in under supply to the market.
We do not accept this argument for three reasons:

e it is not an argument to justify quantity controls, but one which says,
at most, that they do not have a detrimental effect. If it cannot be
shown that quantity controls serve a useful purpose the presumption
should be that they are unnecessary

e our evidence shows that, despite unmet demand tests, there is
considerable unmet demand

e we have looked carefully at unmet demand studies as part of our
research, and do not consider that they accurately measure unmet
demand for taxis.

Unmet demand studies do not properly assess latent demand (i.e. the
passengers who would choose to go by taxi if more were available or
waiting times were lower). Fifteen per cent of consumers in all LAs said
high waiting times were the main reason for not using taxis or PHVs. In
Sheffield, removal of quantity controls resulted in the numbers of
passenger journeys from ranks increasing by eight per cent as the
number of taxis increased by 34 per cent and waiting times dropped by
16 per cent.

Unmet demand studies focus heavily on unmet demand at ranks. They do
not measure actual waiting times, or demand, from consumers hailing
taxis in the street (some survey evidence attempts to do this by asking
consumers to report from memory how long they waited for a taxi on the

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 196

street, but more reliable observational data is not collected). Our study of
both Sheffield and Cambridge LAs showed that after quantity controls
were removed the proportion of passengers hailing a taxi in the street
increased substantially.

Maintaining the quality of service

4.54

4.55

4.56

4.57

4.58

It is argued that without any limit on the quantity of vehicle licences the
qguality of both taxi vehicles and drivers will fall. Therefore consumers wiill
receive a poorer quality of service.

As regards vehicles, the argument is that a rise in taxi numbers will cause
vehicle quality to fall as the only proprietors to survive would be those
which run lower quality vehicles and skimp on maintenance at the
expense of safety. With drivers, although removing quantity controls may
lead to more entry into the profession it is felt that it might also lead to
more exit if there is an oversupply of taxis, leading to the loss of
experienced drivers.

We reject these arguments on the basis that quality specifications and
guantity limits are regulated separately. Given this, if quality controls are
maintained, there is no evidence to show, and no reason to suppose, that
the removal of quantity restrictions impact on quality. Our discussion of
quality regulation is in chapter 5.

Our international study has shown that following the simultaneous
removal of quantity and quality controls, fleet quality sometimes
decreases as a consequence. Sweden is a prime example of this. It
removed both quantity and quality regulations and saw a sharp rise in the
number of taxis on the road, both substandard vehicles and those that
would have previously met quality requirements. In 1995 the authorities
reintroduced quality requirements and teams to enforce them which led
to a plateau in taxi numbers and an increase in the quality of vehicles
within the fleet. The Swedish experience shows risks of simultaneous
quality and quantity de-restriction but not of quantity de-restriction alone.

In the UK a number of LAs have removed quantity controls while
concurrently increasing fleet quality. When Cambridge removed quantity
controls it introduced more stringent controls on age of vehicles and
accessibility and saw overall quality of vehicles improve. Birmingham
introduced wheelchair accessible vehicles and increased tightness on
emission controls while removing quantity controls.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 37



Page 197

4.59 Neither does controlling the number of taxi vehicles guarantee driver
experience or knowledge of the local area. LAs can manage driver quality
directly through setting particular requirements for driver licensing, for
example a geographical knowledge test appropriate to the locality.

4.60 In any event, and not only after the removal of quantity controls, the key
to maintaining quality in the market is to ensure that both driver and
vehicle (and PHV operators) are subject to sound quality controls that are
backed up by robust enforcement.

4.61 The cost savings from removing the apparatus of quantity control
(including unmet demand surveys) can boost the resources that LAs may
have available for the enforcement of quality controls.

To ensure an adequate supply of taxis

4.62 Another potential argument is that, if drivers are unable to earn enough
from taxi work, operators will take on other jobs and only undertake taxi
work at evenings and weekends, when it is most profitable, leading to a
lack of availability of taxis outside these periods.

4.63 Our analysis leads us to reject this argument, as does the experience of
LAs that have de-restricted. When quantity controls are removed taxi
supply increases. The evidence on waiting times shows that availability
increases at all times of day. In any event it would run counter to
common sense for the lifting of quantity controls to result in less supply.

To prevent drivers working longer hours

4.64 It is argued that increasing the number of taxis may lead to a fall in the
revenue of drivers. Drivers must therefore work longer hours to maintain
the same income which may have public safety implications.

4.65 The key argument here is that drivers may put themselves and
passengers at risk if they work excessively long hours. In fact there is no
statistically significant difference, when allowing for the type of LA, in
the number of taxi accidents between areas where no quantity controls

exist and areas where they do (see table 4.6). %’

87 OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B). This is the number of taxi road traffic accidents
involving personal injury, as a proportion of total accidents in LAs, including a correction for
whether the licensing authority is urban or rural.

The regulation of licensed taxi

38 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



Page 198

TABLE 4.6: TAXI ACCIDENTS AS A PERCENTAGE OF ALL ROAD TRAFFIC
ACCIDENTS, 2001

Restriction

Unrestricted Restricted Total
Type of LA: (%) (%) (%)
Urban 2.4 2.8 2.7
Rural 0.9 0.6 0.8
Mixed 1.3 1.4 1.4
London 2.5 - 2.5
Total 1.3 1.9 1.6

Source: OFT analysis of Department for Transport Road Traffic Data
(annexe B)

4.66 While there is no clear evidence of a problem in the UK this has been a
concern in some international markets and a number of measures have
been put into place specifically to prevent drivers working excessive
hours following the removal of quantity controls.®® For example, New
Zealand controls driver rest periods through the use of a log book. In
Sweden, the authorities log driver hours with an on-board computer.

4.67 It should also be noted that the Working Time Regulations 19982 apply
to employed taxi and PHV drivers (who are classed as ‘mobile workers’)
and impose a limit of an average working week of 48 hours (unless
drivers agree to work longer) and adequate rest periods. These rules do
not apply to self-employed taxi and PHV drivers.

4.68 To conclude, we do not consider that maintaining quality controls to
protect drivers’ incomes and hours of working is a valid argument on the
facts. There are, in any case, alternative regulatory methods of
preventing drivers working excessive hours to ensure driver and
passenger safety.

8 TOI: Impact of Taxi Market Regulation, an International Comparison, May 2003 (annexe J).
8 S.1. 1998/1833, as amended by the Working Time (Amendment) Regulations 2003 to
implement Council Directive 2000/34/EC (OJ No. L195, 1.8.20000, p.41).

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 39



Page 199

To prevent overcrowding at ranks

4.69 Where the amount of rank space provided is limited, it is argued that
removing quantity controls would lead to rank overcrowding and illegal
parking. This could especially be the case in urban centres or LAs where
the market is centred on focal points such as railway stations and when
little space is available for expansion.

4.70 There is limited evidence to indicate that overcrowding has been a
problem in LAs after the removal of quantity controls. Our case studies,
however, show that where this is an issue, the market often adjusts with
a smaller proportion of taxis waiting at ranks and a greater proportion
plying for hire on the street or expanding to serve different areas. In
Bristol, after the removal of quantity controls, it was noted that taxis
were serving more residential areas which had previously not had any
service.

4.71 While we accept that potential rank overcrowding is an issue for LAs
without quantity controls, in our view it can be managed. For example
new ranks or temporary ranks to cover weekend and evening peaks may
be created. Marshals could also be used at peak times to help speed up
traffic flow.

To reduce traffic congestion, air pollution and encourage public transport
use

4.72 Another set of arguments is that limiting the supply of taxis encourages
use of public transport, and reduces congestion and air pollution.

4.73 Again we do not find these arguments supportable:

e our consumer research shows that if consumers are unable to get a
taxi, they will generally not switch to public transport, nor to
environmentally friendly and congestion reducing modes of transport,
but would tend instead to use their car

e congestion and pollution caused by motor vehicles is a huge problem
of which taxis are only a small part. These problems are already dealt
with directly through fuel taxation and through initiatives such as
congestion charging and pedestrianisation of city centres. Since taxis
are often used in conjunction with other public transport (for example
at the start and end of train journeys) or at times when other public
transport is not available, restricting taxis could even decrease other
public transport use.

The regulation of licensed taxi

40 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



4.74

Page 200

Our evidence and analysis suggest that limiting taxi numbers will not
effectively address these issues.

To protect licence shortage premiums

4.75

4.76

4.77

Past experience in the UK and elsewhere has shown that when quantity
restrictions are removed in an area, the privately traded value of shortage
premiums on taxi vehicle licences falls away. Vehicle licences become
readily available provided that applicants and their vehicles meet quality
and safety conditions, and the unofficial scarcity value that previously
existed in the licence (over and above the licence fees charged by the
LAs to cover administrative costs, and the value of the vehicle)
disappears. In practice this means that taxi vehicle licence holders who
privately purchased a licensed taxi before quantity restrictions were lifted
cannot recoup the cost of the licence shortage premium when they sell
their licensed taxis after the quantity restrictions have been lifted®. As
noted in paragraph 4.43 above, in the UK the average licence shortage
premium in areas where quantity restrictions apply is estimated at
£16,500.

It is argued that lifting quantity restrictions is unfair on those licence
holders who have paid a licence shortage premium to enter the taxi
market during times when quantity restrictions were in place, as they
bear the burden of being unable to recoup this cost when they exit the
market.

We have considered this view and conclude that protection of taxi
vehicle licence shortage premiums does not justify retaining quantity
controls. In economic terms the premium value attached to vehicle
licences in quantity restricted areas is an artificial one, created by the
constraints on the market caused by regulation. The premium value does
not relate to any effort of the licence holder to improve service levels and
quality, and therefore the licence holder has not ‘earned’ it. Moreover, it
is unofficial — it is unrecognised by statute, and legal ownership of the
licence, and the licence plates attached to the taxi vehicle, remains at all
times with the LA that issued them.

% This issue will not arise for licence holders who were licensed directly by the LA prior to the
lifting of quantity restrictions, rather than purchasing a licence with a licensed vehicle and
having the licence holder details changed. Direct licensees will not have paid any shortage
premium to acquire the licence.

The Office of Fair Trading 41



Page 201

4.78 Since section 16 of the Transport Act 1985 came into force on 6
January 1986, LAs in England and Wales outside London and in Scotland
have been permitted to restrict taxi licence quantities only if they
reasonably consider that there is no significant unmet demand for taxis
within their areas. LAs may lift quantity restrictions whether or not there
is unmet demand for taxis, and must lift quantity restrictions (whether
permanently or temporarily) if there is significant unmet demand. In 1985
the Department of Transport, the Scottish Development Department and
the Welsh Office suggested °' that LAs should consider lifting quantity
restrictions. As we have already noted, quantity restrictions are now only
in place in 45 per cent of UK LAs, and several LAs have lifted quantity
restrictions since the Transport Act 1985 came into force. Taxi licence
holders in areas where quantity restrictions apply have therefore been
aware for some time that these could be lifted at any time by their LA.

4.79 In our view the protection of certain taxi licence holders from a one off
loss of rental value that could lawfully occur under existing legislation
does not justify maintaining the market inefficiencies caused by taxi
licence quantity restrictions.

4.80 It has been suggested in the past®? that if quantity restrictions are lifted,
this should be phased in to offer some protection for existing licence
holders enjoying licence shortage premiums in areas where quantity
restrictions apply. We considered this as a possibility and rejected it on
the basis that:

e phasing in does not address the competition problems in the market
place quickly enough

°" In a 4 December 1985 joint circular on the Transport Act 1985, the Department of Transport,
the Scottish Development Department and the Welsh Office stated: ‘District councils may wish
to review their policy on the control of taxi numbers in the light of [section 16 Transport Act
1985]. Limitation of taxi numbers can have many undesirable effects — an insufficiency of taxis,
either generally or at particular times or in particular places; insufficient competition between
the providers of taxi services, to the detriment of their customers; and prices for the transfer of
taxi licences from one person to another which imply an artificial restriction of supply.’
Circular3/85 Department of Transport, Circular 32/85 Scottish Development Department,
Circular 64/85 Welsh Office, paragraph 27.

92 See, e.g. the Fourth Report of the House of Commons Transport Committee on Taxis and
Private Hire Vehicles, Volume |, Report and Minutes of Proceedings, Session 1993-94, 30
March 1994, paragraph 140.

The regulation of licensed taxi

42 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



4.81

Page 202

e there is no economic justification for quantity controls or licence
shortage premiums, and it is more appropriate to remove them
altogether than to allow them to continue in a modified form

e it will be difficult for LAs to carry out a fair selection of new licensees
when limited numbers of new licences are issued during the phasing
in period.

We are aware of an unsuccessful legal challenge® brought by an
individual taxi licence holder who suffered loss of the value of the licence
shortage premium he had paid to acquire his licensed taxi when his LA
deregulated quantity controls.®® We believe that the long term benefit to
society of lifting quantity restrictions, in terms of lower waiting times,
improved safety and lower costs of market entry, outweigh the short
term interests of existing taxi licence holders in maintaining the artificial
value of taxi licences. In reaching this conclusion, our function has been
to report primarily on the competition effects of taxi regulation and its
effect on the welfare of consumers of taxi services. We have not
considered the social welfare effects of lifting quantity restrictions on
particular licence holders or classes of licence holder. When deciding
whether to follow our recommendation, Government will no doubt weigh
in the balance any social welfare issues for particular licence holders or
classes of licence holder that come to light in any consultation that may
be held.

Section 6: conclusion and recommendations

4.82

4.83

Comparing licensing areas with quantity restrictions with those without,
we conclude that quantity controls have a clear detrimental impact on
the public which shows up in the following ways:

e shifting consumers onto less preferred and/or suitable modes of
transport

e increasing waiting times

e compromising public safety.

We have found no cogent rationale for quantity controls to balance
against these detriments. Nonetheless, we have examined a number of

% R (Royden) v Metropolitan Borough of Wirral [2002] EWHC 2484. This was a challenge, in
part, under Article 1 of the First Protocol to the European Convention on Fundamental Rights
and Freedoms.

%4 Further information on this case and on the basis of the challenge is set out in Annex A.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 43



4.84

Page 203

arguments which have been advanced in the course of our study. We
find each of these arguments to be unsupported by the evidence and/or
outweighed by the clear benefits of de-restriction.

In our view, the existence of quantity controls causes consumer
detriment and does not address any problems in the market that cannot
be more effectively addressed by other means. We therefore conclude
that the removal of quantity controls will benefit consumers, particularly
through the higher availability of taxis and lower waiting times. In our
view, the best service to consumers will be achieved by enabling
consumer demand, rather than regulations, to determine a level of taxi
service supply that meets the needs of the public.

Recommendation based on this assessment

4.85

We therefore recommend that the legislative provisions allowing licensing
authorities to impose quantity controls should be repealed. In the
meantime, we recommend that LAs with quantity controls remove them.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



5

Page 204

REVIEW OF QUALITY AND SAFETY REGULATION

Introduction

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

This chapter reviews the regulations relating to quality and safety
controls. LAs have the power to regulate quality and safety in relation to
the issue of taxi vehicle and driver licences and PHV vehicle, driver and
operator licences.

In addition, the implementation of section 32 of the DDA95 will impose
further quality regulation by requiring disabled access to certain licensed
taxi vehicles.

To assess the impact of quality and safety regulations we have:

e looked at the rationale behind quality and safety controls and the
protection they afford consumers

e looked at the effect quality and safety controls have in practice

e looked at what consumers expect in the way of quality and safety

e consulted with groups representing older people and the disabled and
considered the particular needs of these consumers.

We have found that consumers value quality and safety controls for
vehicles and drivers which address matters that are difficult for them to
judge when hiring a taxi (e.g. the technical safety of the vehicle and the
competence of the driver). Quality and safety controls are considered
necessary to ensure passenger safety and security. Our central
conclusion is, therefore, that quality and safety controls should be
maintained and effectively enforced.

However, it is important that quality and safety requirements are applied
proportionately to avoid unnecessary barriers to competition. In this
regard we have some concerns about the inconsistent application of
quality and safety specifications by LAs. We believe that local regulation
should match local requirements and when deciding quality and safety
specifications, LAs should consider the needs of consumers and the
effect of the proposed specifications on the availability of taxis and
PHVs. LAs should try to ensure that any quality and safety specifications
set do not go beyond what is required to achieve this policy aim.

For example, the Metropolitan Conditions of Fitness (MCF), where applied
by an LA, set detailed vehicle specifications such as a maximum turning
circle, a maximum step height and wheelchair accessibility to certain
specifications. The MCF were written expressly to meet the needs of

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 45



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Page 205

London but have been adopted by other LAs so that they cover 44 per
cent of taxi vehicles in the UK.%® Only certain models of vehicle currently
meet these requirements. These are significantly more expensive than the
saloon cars and wheelchair accessible vehicles allowed by many LAs.
There is a danger that the additional cost of MCF compliant vehicles may
raise prices and deter entry to the market thus limiting supply and leading
to a poorer service for consumers.

Our view is that the appropriateness of quality and safety controls in the
UK taxi and PHV services market is best decided at the local level. LAs
would be better placed to decide on proportionate levels of quality and
safety control if they had access to more information about common
experience and best practice.

We therefore recommend that the Department for Transport promote and
disseminate local best practice in applying quality and safety regulations
involving the Scottish Executive and the Department of the Environment
(NI) in this process. The purpose of this would be to assist LAs to apply
standard quality and safety attributes in a proportionate manner.

In applying quality and safety regulation LAs should carefully consider the
needs of disabled consumers. Part V of the DDA95, which has yet to be
implemented, is intended to help ensure that disabled people, including
those who wish to remain in their wheelchairs, can get into and out of,
and travel in, licensed taxis in safety and reasonable comfort. The DfT
has recently announced its proposals and timetable for implementing the
taxi accessibility requirements in Part V DDA95.% Prior to
implementation, the power to regulate taxis and PHV in a way that meets
the needs of disabled passengers remains with LAs. Our research has
shown large differences in the way LAs address disability issues with
regard to taxis. A minority of LAs require their taxis to be wheelchair
accessible and an even smaller number require taxi drivers to undergo
some form of disability awareness training.

Those LAs which have required taxis to be wheelchair accessible have
primarily followed the specifications laid down by the MCF. These

% OFT Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).
%These regulations will not apply to PHVs.

46

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



5.11

5.12

5.13

Page 206

vehicles, however, are not necessarily the most accessible for those with
impaired mobility not needing a wheelchair.

In setting quality and safety controls LAs should closely consult with
disability groups to ensure their needs are correctly recognised.

We would also note that if quantity restrictions apply to vehicles suitable
for disabled passengers, then those restrictions may be particularly
detrimental to the supply of taxis to disabled people.

The rest of this chapter looks at these issues and the background to our
recommendation in more detail. Section 1 looks at the rationale behind
quality and safety regulations, section 2 looks at existing quality and
safety regulations, section 3 assesses the impact of quality and safety
regulations, section 4 looks at issues surrounding disabled access to taxi
services and the potential impact of the DDA95 and section 5 gives our
conclusions.

Section 1: why regulate quality and safety?

The aims of quality regulation

5.14 In the 1993 Green Paper®’ the Department for Transport (DfT) stated that

any regulation relating to taxis and PHVs needed to be justified against
one or more of four specific objectives:

e the safety and security of passengers, drivers and others on the road -
it is not unreasonable for passengers to expect the vehicles in which
they travel to be safe and for the driver be competent and a fit and
proper person to hold a licence. In addition to these basic safety
requirements, LAs may also wish to impose regulations to improve the
quality of service provided to the travelling public, for example
stipulations on the size and design of the vehicle

e consumer protection — many of these important aspects of safety and
security cannot be judged by passengers when hiring a taxi or PHV.
Regulations ensure that consumers are protected

e accessibility — especially for those with impaired mobility (including
those disabled passengers who use and wish to remain in their
wheelchairs) so as to ensure they can get into and out of, and travel

%7 Department for Transport: Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles: A Consultation Paper on the
Future of taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Services in England and Wales, 1993.

The Office of Fair Trading 47



Page 207

in, taxis in reasonable safety and comfort. Without quality regulations
vehicle licence holders and applicants may not choose to purchase
wheelchair accessible vehicles because they are unable to derive extra
income to compensate them for their additional investment

e environmental protection — to control emissions. It may be possible to
reduce these through specific methods such as fitting oxidation
catalysts or converting taxis to run on LPG, but, given the general
improvements in fuel efficiency in cars over time, levels of taxi vehicle
emissions are most often controlled through limits on vehicle age.

The rationale for quality regulation

5.15

5.16

5.17

The public care a great deal about the quality of service provided to
them. Our survey showed that passengers rate the quality and safety of
the driver and vehicle as the most important features of service ahead of
the fare they are charged.®®

When hiring a taxi or PHV passengers are unable to judge important
aspects of the quality of either cars or drivers and must, in effect, take
them on trust. For example, on entering a taxi (except in limited cases) a
passenger is unlikely to be in a position to establish the roadworthiness
of the vehicle or whether the driver has valid insurance or, indeed, a
criminal record.

In a market with no quality regulation and where the level of repeat
business is not high, the fact that passengers cannot determine many
aspects of quality and safety could create the incentive and the
opportunity for operators or drivers to skimp on quality and safety,
particularly if acquiring a particular level of quality and safety involves
extra cost. An example of this is geographical knowledge of an area.
When hiring a taxi or a PHV consumers are unable to judge whether a
driver has a good geographical knowledge or not. A driver must often pay
to obtain this knowledge by studying for and taking knowledge tests. In a
situation where passengers cannot immediately determine the level of a
driver’'s knowledge a driver might decide not to incur the costs of
training. Thus consumers would be worse off.

% OXERA: Consumer Survey Report (annexe |).

48

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 208

5.18 We believe that there are strong reasons for regulating quality and safety
to ensure that these important, but usually imperceptible, standards are
maintained.

Section 2: existing quality and safety controls
Regulatory powers of licensing authorities

5.19 Quality and safety controls apply to taxi vehicle and driver licences, and
to PHV vehicle, driver and operator licences. Aspects of quality that are
regulated generally fall within the areas of service, safety and technical
efficiency. Fuller details on the regulatory controls are given at annexe A.

5.20 LAs have considerable regulatory flexibility in applying quality and safety
controls and this flexibility is reflected in the differing levels of control in
different LAs. Even so, our research has shown common areas of
regulation (although the strictness of the regulation can vary from LA to
LA). The rest of this section looks at the application of quality and safety
controls to taxi vehicles and drivers and to PHV vehicles, drivers and
operators.

Quality regulation of the licensed taxi trade
Vehicles

5.21 Our study has shown that the following quality and safety controls are
commonly applied to vehicles:

e age limits — a maximum age is stipulated in 45 per cent of LAs that
responded to our survey — the average limit is nine years °°

¢ vehicle testing at regular intervals — this is required in 90 per cent of
LAs, mostly six monthly

¢ vehicle identification — mainly relating to the provision of a roof sign
for taxis

o fitting of taximeters — this is required for taxis in 93 per cent of LAs

e specification of minimum engine size — this occurs in 50 per cent of
LAs.

5.22 Twelve per cent of LAs (covering approximately 44 per cent of all taxis)
stipulate that all licensed taxi vehicles in their area should comply with

% OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 49



Page 209

the MCF.'"®° The conditions prescribe, for example, wheelchair access, a
turning circle of 7.62 metres, a partition separating passenger from
driver, a maximum step height, door height and a maximum width and
height of the vehicles. Only two manufacturers currently produce
vehicles that meet all these specifications.

5.23 Fourteen per cent of LAs (covering approximately 50 per cent of taxis)
have a fully wheelchair accessible taxi fleet. The appropriateness of a
vehicle for use as a wheelchair accessible taxi tends to be judged at a
local level on a case by case basis. There are companies operating in the
UK that specialise in adapting vehicles to operate as licensed taxis. All
are wheelchair accessible though none meet all the provisions for the
MCF. They do, however, supply vehicles in those LAs that have not
adopted the MCF or have not required all the provisions of the MCF to be
met.

Drivers

5.24 There is a duty on LAs'® only to grant licences to drivers who are ‘fit
and proper’. As with vehicles, whilst there are considerable variations in
application, there are a number of common regulations imposed on
licensed taxi drivers including:

e a criminal record check - required by all LAs that license taxis

e a medical examination — required by 94 per cent of LAs

e a topographical knowledge test — required by 60 per cent of LAs,
although they vary greatly in scope

e minimum driver age limits — 56 per cent of LAs require drivers to be
21 or over.

1% Department for Transport: Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles in England and Wales, 2001-02

97 This is the case for LAs in England and Wales outside London and in Northern Ireland. In
London, TfL has a power, rather than a duty, not to license applicants if it is not satisfied that
they are ‘of good character and fit to act as cab drivers’ (under paragraph 25 London Cab Order
1934). In Scotland, LAs can require tests of knowledge and other matters relating to the
operation of taxis.

The regulation of licensed taxi

50 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



Page 210

Quality regulation of the private hire trade
Vehicles

5.25 The vehicle standards applied by LAs in the private hire trade are
generally less onerous than for taxis. Having said this, 25 per cent of
(predominantly rural) LAs apply quality conditions for PHVs that are
similar to those for taxis (with the exception of sighage — the difference
between taxis and PHVs must be visibly apparent).

5.26 The conditions attached to PHVs generally concern the basic
characteristics of the vehicle (e.g. that it should have four doors) and its
roadworthiness. As with licensed taxi vehicles, around half of LAs have
an age limit for PHVs.'®?

Drivers

5.27 There are fewer differences between the taxi and PHV driver licensing
regimes, with around 56 per cent of LAs in England and Wales having a
dual licensing scheme - albeit often with different topographical
knowledge tests - for taxi and PHV drivers.'®® A dual licensing scheme
either means that there is one licence which entitles the holder to drive
both a taxi and PHV or that there are separate licences but the
conditions, apart from a knowledge test, are identical.

5.28 Knowledge tests are required for PHV drivers in 48 per cent of LAs,
compared with 60 per cent for taxi drivers. Where the test is mandatory
for both taxi and PHV drivers, the required level of knowledge is higher
for taxi drivers in 22 per cent of LAs and the same for taxi drivers and
PHV drivers in the remaining 78 per cent of authorities. All LAs require
taxi and PHV drivers to undergo criminal record checks.

Operators

5.29 The granting of an operator’s licence in England and Wales (operator’s
licences do not exist in Scotland and Northern Ireland) is conditional on
the applicant being a fit and proper person to hold a licence. This
generally includes a criminal record check.

5.30 Other requirements LAs commonly place on the licence holder include
detailed requirements for maintaining records of journeys booked and

192 NATPHLEO: Taxi Regulation in England, 2000
193 Department for Transport :Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles in England and Wales, 2001-2

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 51



Page 211

vehicles used, proof of planning permission and radio transmission
licences where appropriate and, in the case of operators who invite the
public to make bookings in person, that the operator’s premises are
suitable for carrying out a private hire business.

Section 3: assessment of the current system

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

As mentioned above, a key rationale for quality regulation is the safety
and security of passengers, drivers and others on the road. Our research
suggests that quality and safety controls are generally working well in
this regard though it is important they are supported by effective
enforcement. While we have some anecdotal evidence of individual
failings we have no systematic evidence that taxi or PHV vehicles are
unsafe or that drivers do not undergo police checks when licences are
issued.

However, it is important that quality and safety controls are applied in a
proportionate manner. Our study has highlighted substantial variation
across LAs. In some LAs potential drivers may face a topographical
knowledge test, an enhanced driving test and regular health checks. In
other LAs any or all of these may not apply. For vehicles, differing age
limits are allowed, depending upon the LA. These sorts of variations can
easily occur in neighbouring authorities. For example, the maximum age
for re-licensing a taxi in East Hertfordshire is 15 years. In North
Hertfordshire it is seven years.

While we believe that local regulation should match local needs there is a
guestion over whether quality and safety controls are striking the right
balance between consumer protection and the costs incurred in satisfying
the quality and safety requirements.

An example of this is the MCF. As mentioned above, these were written
expressly to meet the needs of London but have been adopted by other
LAs so that they cover 44 per cent of taxi vehicles in the UK. Only
certain models of vehicle currently meet these requirements. These are
significantly more expensive than the saloon cars and wheelchair
accessible vehicles allowed by many LAs.'® There is a danger that the

%% For example, a new London-style black cab costs approximately £28000 while a modest
new four-door saloon costs between £8000 and £14000.

52

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 212

additional cost of MCF compliant vehicles may raise prices and deter
entry to the market thus limiting supply and leading to a poorer service
for consumers.

5.35 An example where the requirements set are possibly too low are
topographical knowledge tests. Results from our consumer survey
indicate that passengers in taxis and PHVs consider it important that their
driver has a good geographical knowledge of the area,'°® yet a knowledge
test forms part of the licence procedure in only 60 per cent of LAs for
taxi drivers'® and 52 per cent of LAs for PHV drivers.'®’

Section 4: disabled access to taxis and phv services

5.36 This section looks at the issues surrounding disabled access to taxi and
PHV services and the impact that quality regulation can have in this area.

Access for disabled people
Taxi usage by disabled people

5.37 Taxis and PHVs are used more frequently by disabled people (67 per cent
more) than non-disabled people, according to a MORI survey.'®® The
same survey also concluded that disabled people find taxis and PHVs the
easiest mode of transport to use because of their flexibility. However
serious problems remain for some disabled people.’®

5.38 Approximately 8.6 million people in the UK are disabled,''® and it has

been estimated that five per cent of these use a wheelchair some of the

time.™""

%5 OXERA: Consumer Survey Report, September 2003 (annexe |).

%6 OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).

97 NATPHLEO: Taxi Regulation in England, 2000.

98 Attitudes of Disabled People to Public Transport, MORI 2002, undertaken for the Disabled
Persons Transport Advisory Committee.

%9 In using the term ‘disabled’ we have taken the meaning as given in section 33 of the DDA95
which defines a disabled person as someone with ‘a physical or mental impairment which has a
substantial and long-term adverse effect on his ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities.’
1% Aged 16 — 75 in Great Britain. Source: Grundy, E., Ahlburg, D., Ali, M., Breeze, E. and
Sloggett, A. (1999), Disability in Great Britain: Results from the 1996/97 Disability Follow-Up
to the Family Resources Survey, DSS Research Report 94. This figure is based on a definition of
disability derived from the World Health Organisation, as 'the inability, due to an impairment, to
perform activities in typical and personally desired ways in society'. The 8.6 million figure
roughly equates to those who would be covered by the DDA95.

""" There is no reliable data on UK wheelchair users, though the Employers Forum on Disability
estimate that five per cent of disabled people use a wheelchair some of the time.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 53



Page 213

5.39 Across the UK the provision of taxis and PHVs for disabled people varies
between LAs with the rural areas having the lowest level of provision.
Where provision is made, some LAs will subsidise journeys made by
disabled people who meet certain criteria. This can have the effect of
increasing taxi and PHV demand and usage.

5.40 The DfT is encouraging LAs to develop their own accessibility policies. At
the end of 2002, six per cent of LAs required taxi drivers to undergo

disability awareness training''?

and 14 per cent of LAs required their
licensed taxis to be wheelchair accessible.'"® LAs that require all their taxi
fleet to be wheelchair accessible primarily follow the specifications laid

down by the MCF and tend to be in urban areas.
How disabled people use taxis and PHV services

5.41 Disabilities vary and what is an accessible vehicle to one person may not
be to another. In relation to travel a disabled person’s preferred mode of
transport may not be just a preference but the only way to get from A to
B. Access to a particular type of taxi or a PHV vehicle might be the only
means of getting on with daily life.

5.42 There is a limited amount of data available on the preferred method of
taxi travel for disabled persons. However, a survey from Brighton and
Hove shows that, for those who expressed a preference, 53 per cent of
disabled people prefer to use saloon cars rather than wheelchair
accessible taxis (see Table 5.1).""*

TABLE 5.1: DISABLED PEOPLE’S VEHICLE PREFERENCE FOR TAXI JOURNEYS
IN BRIGHTON AND HOVE

%
Wheelchair accessible cab 22
Saloon car 53
No preference 25
Total 100

"2 Department for Transport: Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles in England and Wales 2001-2, 2003
13 OFT: Statistical Analysis 2002 (annexe B).

" Table 4, page 8, Vehicle Preference for Taxi journeys. Taxi Users: Their views in Brighton
and Hove, Geraldine Petterson, June 1999.

The regulation of licensed taxi

54 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



5.43

5.44

5.45

5.46

Page 214

As disabled consumers have different needs, several vehicle types are
needed to satisfy varied requirements.

Disabled consumers use taxi and PHV services differently when
compared to the UK population as a whole. Disabled people are more
likely to use these services for the essential activities of life. Where they
can afford to do so, the research from Brighton and Hove suggests that
80 per cent of disabled people will use taxi and PHV services for
shopping or to attend medical appointments.''® This is in contrast to
usage patterns for the UK population as a whole. These show that the
most common purpose of their last taxi or PHV trip was for leisure
reasons (50 per cent) while only 21 per cent last used a taxi or PHV for
shopping and seven per cent last used a taxi or PHV to attend medical

appointments.’'®

Views of disability groups

According to a MORI survey on a range of public transport services,
disabled people were very satisfied with the services provided by taxis
and PHVs. This could be due to the personal service that some disabled

people receive from local taxi/ PHV firms. '’

The MORI survey indicated that disabled people had less satisfaction with
the quality of services provided by local councils. The Disability Rights
Commission advises that LAs do not give sufficient consideration to the
diverse needs of disabled passengers. Disability groups hope that
implementation of the DDA95 will give LAs a national benchmark against
which to set accessibility requirements for taxi services for their disabled
population.

"""Table 2, page 5, Respondents’ Use of Taxis. Taxi Users: Their views in Brighton and Hove,
Geraldine Petterson, June 1999.

16 Halcrow: Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets — Consumer Survey, July 2003 (annexe C)
"7 Attitudes of Disabled People to Public Transport, MORI 2002, undertaken for the Disabled
Persons Transport Advisory Committee.

The Office of Fair Trading b5



5.47

5.48

5.49

Page 215

RADAR, an umbrella organisation representing 450 disability groups, has
stated that disabled people require good workable regulations from the
DDA95 to achieve a nationwide transport network. In relation to taxi
services this means regulations that allow for personal choice according
to an individual’s needs. RADAR only see this being possible if a range of
vehicle types can co-exist under the DDA95, each vehicle type complying
with one aspect of the DfT regulations, meeting the needs of specific

disabilities.''®

Because of the usage patterns of taxis and PHVs by disabled people,
disability groups view both taxis and PHVs as public transport. However,
as PHVs are not licensed for immediate hire they are not covered in Part
V of the DDA95. When pre-booking a journey disabled consumers may
specify what type of vehicle they wish to travel in, but along with other
consumers they may have no way of knowing if their journey will
ultimately be in a licensed taxi or a PHV.

There are also concerns amongst disability groups that the goals of Part

V DDA95 could be jeopardised if taxi and PHV drivers are not required to
have general disability awareness training and specific training in how to
use vehicle wheelchair ramps and secure wheelchairs.

The Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA95)

5.50

5.51

Section 32 of the DDA95, in part V of the Act, gives the Government
power to make taxi accessibility regulations. These provisions have not
yet been implemented, but their purpose is to help ensure that disabled
people have the same flexibility and choice in their use of taxis as the
rest of the travelling public. Under section 32 of the DDA95 PHVs wiill
not have to be wheelchair accessible.

The DfT has recently announced its proposals and timetable for
implementing the taxi accessibility requirements in Part V DDA95. It
plans to start by applying the taxi accessibility regulations only to a listed
number of ‘first phase’ LAs. The intention is to target those areas where
accessible taxis will make the biggest impact on meeting the needs of
disabled people and where the additional cost will not have a major
effect. The proposed time scale is to introduce the DDA95 regulations in

'8 RADAR plans to survey its members’ taxi and PHV preferences in the spring of 2004.

56

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 216

these areas over a 10 year period from 2010 to 2020. LAs in the ‘first
phase’ have been selected because they meet one or more of the
following criteria:

e a LA population of at least 120,000 people

e a major transport interchange

e a major tourist attraction, or

e an existing mandatory policy resulting in 100 per cent accessible

vehicles.'®

5.52 LAs not meeting any of the above would not be subject to DDA95 in the
first instance though the DfT intends to issue voluntary guidance to these
LAs on establishing an appropriate mix of vehicles and on vehicle design.
How these LAs introduce accessible vehicles will then be monitored by
the DfT to see if the guidance is effective. The DfT will then decide
whether to extend the taxi accessibility regulations to these LAs. The
DfT intend to publicly consult on these proposals for England and Wales.
DDA95 implementation in Scotland and Northern Ireland is a devolved
matter so they will carry out their own separate consultations on

implementation.’%°

Impact of the DDA95

5.53 Fourteen per cent of LAs, covering approximately 50 per cent of taxis,
currently have a fully wheelchair accessible fleet. However, the
implementation of the DDA95 will impact on the licensed taxi fleets of all
LAs. All taxis in LAs in the ‘first phase’ will need to meet the vehicle
specifications for wheelchair accessible taxis that will be set out in the
proposed regulations, and all LAs outside the ‘first phase’ will need to
consider the proposed DfT voluntary guidance.

1% A LA stipulating that its taxis meet the Metropolitan Conditions of Fitness.
120 Subject to the current arrangements during the suspense of devolution in Northern Ireland

The Office of Fair Trading 57



Page 217

Section 5: conclusions

5.54

5.b65

5.566

5.67

5.58

We believe that there is a strong case for regulating quality and safety
both for taxis and PHVs for the following reasons:

e consumers cannot judge certain standards such as the safety of the
vehicle and the competence of the driver when getting into a taxi or
PHV. Quality and safety regulation provides essential protection to
consumers

e taxi services have a role to play in broader social welfare policy such
as helping to ensure greater vehicle accessibility or improving
environmental protection, and LAs should consequently be able to
apply such regulations to suit their needs.

We therefore conclude that quality and safety controls should be
maintained and should be supported by effective enforcement. Quality
and safety controls are only one aspect of taxi and PHV regulation and it
is important that these controls work effectively with the rest of the
regulatory system. This is particularly important if LAs remove quantity
controls on taxis. International experience has shown that the
simultaneous removal of quantity and quality controls can sometimes
reduce fleet quality. In the UK, certain LAs that have removed quantity

controls have also raised vehicle specifications.'?'

That said, it is important that quality and safety requirements are applied
in a proportionate manner. Our analysis has highlighted substantial
variation across LAs.

We believe that local regulation should match local requirements but
think that LAs, when deciding on quality and safety specifications,
should consider the needs of consumers and the effect of the proposed
specifications on the availability of taxis and PHVs. LAs should try to
ensure that any quality and safety specifications set do not go beyond
what is required to achieve this policy aim.

Our view is that the appropriateness of quality and safety controls in the
UK taxi and PHV services market is best decided at the local level. LAs
would be better placed to decide on proportionate levels of quality and

21 This is discussed in more detail in paragraphs 4.54 to 4.61.

58

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



5.59

5.60

Page 218

safety control if they had access to more information about common
experience and best practice.

We therefore recommend that the Department for Transport promote and
disseminate local best practice in applying quality and safety regulations
involving the Scottish Executive and the Department of the Environment
(NI) in this process. The purpose of this would be to assist LAs to apply
standard quality and safety attributes in a proportionate manner.

In applying quality regulation LAs should carefully consider the needs of
disabled consumers. Requirements in the future DDA95 regulations on
taxi accessibility will form part of the quality controls that some LAs wiill
have to apply to taxis. For those LAs outside the ‘first phase’ DfT
guidance will give assistance in providing an accessible taxi fleet. At
present there are large differences in the way LAs address disability
issues with regard to taxis, so in addition to following DfT guidance, we
would like to see them consult with local disability groups before
introducing changes in vehicle specification.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 59



6

Page 219

REVIEW OF FARE REGULATION

Introduction and summary

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

60

This chapter reviews the regulation of taxi fares. To assess the impact of
fare regulation we:

e looked at the rationale behind fare regulation and the protection it
affords consumers

e considered the impact that fixing fares has on the market for taxis

e took into account the experiences of international markets that have
deregulated fares.

The research we commissioned to inform this assessment is at annexes
D and J.

We have found that, whilst there are some arguments for removing fare
regulation, the case for retaining controls is much stronger. The nature of
the rank and hail sector of the taxi market makes it almost impossible for
consumers to exercise choice on price as it is very difficult to shop
around. Deregulating fares may therefore lead to higher prices. This is
particularly important, for example for disabled consumers (who may not
have access to alternative forms of transport), for those concerned about
their safety (for example if they are catching a taxi late at night), or for
those who do not know the local area. In these and other instances, fare
regulation protects consumers from being overcharged.

However, there are measures that could be taken to introduce further
competition on price into the market.

We recommend that throughout the UK LAs should only set fare tariffs
which represent the maximum that can be charged, and not set fixed or
minimum fares. It should be made clear to consumers that they are able
to negotiate on fares, for example, when ordering a taxi over the
telephone. We also recommend that, where possible, LAs actively
facilitate more price competition in the market, particularly in the rank
and hail sectors of the market.

This chapter looks at these issues and the background to the
recommendations in more detail. Section 1 looks at the background to
fare setting in the UK. Section 2 deals with the effects of these
regulations on the market. Section 3 assesses a number of different

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 220

approaches to fare regulation and section 4 gives our conclusions and
recommendations.

Section 1: background to fare setting

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

LAs can regulate fares for taxis but not for PHVs. Ninety-five per cent of
LAs that responded to our survey regulate fares.

In England, Scotland and Wales outside of London fares set by LAs
represent the maximum that can be charged'??. This allows taxis to
compete on price by offering lower fares to consumers. However only 25
per cent of those LAs responding to our survey make this clear on their
fare tariff cards. In London, a mandatory tariff is set which does not
allow taxis to give discounts to consumers on a regular basis."?® In
Northern Ireland the LA has the power to set both maximum and
minimum fares, although in practice these are set at the same level,

creating a mandatory tariff.

In those authorities where fares are set by the LA, taxis tend to use
taximeters to measure the distance and/or time involved in a journey.
This is often required by the LA as a licensing condition.'®* In England
and Wales outside London PHVs may also use taximeters, but LAs
cannot require them to do so. However, if they choose to use taximeters,
these must be tested and approved by or on behalf of the relevant LA.
There is no clear pattern of taximeter use by PHVs. Our survey of LAs
found that in some cases the majority of PHVs have taximeters fitted
whilst in others no PHVs have taximeters fitted.

LAs have no powers to set PHV fares.'?® Fares are set by individual firms
or may be negotiated directly with customers. Our survey of LAs found
no clear relationship between taxi fares and PHV fares. In some areas
licensing officers report that PHV fares are significantly lower than taxi

22 This was established in the case of R v Liverpool City Council ex p. Curzon Limited 12
November 1993 C0O/1338/91 QBD, unreported.

23 Although they are allowed to depart from this tariff on occasion, e.g. if a passenger has had
their money stolen. This judgement must be made on a case by case basis. There is no blanket
discretion.

2% This is not always the case. For example in Dumfries and Galloway the fare is calculated
based on the distance shown by taxi’s mileometer rather than using a taximeter.

125 Apart from the Department of the Environment in Northern Ireland, which may set fares for
PHVs as well as taxis but in practice does not do so.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 61



Page 221

fares, whilst in other areas it is common for PHVs to have taximeters
fitted and to charge the same fares as taxis.

Fare regulation in practice

6.11 The process for setting taxi fares differs between LAs. Statistics from the
DfT show that in 35 per cent of authorities surveyed, the fare tariff is
revised following requests from the taxi trade, and in 65 per cent the fare

is revised on a regular basis, in most cases yearly.'*®

6.12 The decision-making process for changing fare levels also differs widely.
In London, a formula for fare increases has been established, based on
changes to driver and vehicle costs. Outside London the standard
process in many areas is for representatives of the taxi trade to put
forward a proposed fare increase to the local council’s licensing
committee, which is then either approved or rejected. The law requires
that any change to the fare tariff must be published in a local newspaper
and deposited for inspection at the council offices for a minimum of 14
days. This allows members of the public to complain if they are unhappy
with the proposed change. Some licensing authorities go further than this
and directly consult with the public through focus groups and citizens’

panels to get their views about taxi fares.'?’

6.13 Table 6.1 illustrates the wide variety of different taxi tariffs throughout
the UK.

26 Department for Transport: Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles in England and Wales, 2001-2002.
27 For example this practice occurs in Bristol, where a citizens’ panel was consulted about the
current level of taxi fares.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003

62



TABLE 6.1:

6.14

Page 222

LICENSING AUTHORITY:

MOST EXPENSIVE AND LEAST EXPENSIVE TAXI FARES BY

Most expensive

Least expensive

1 Luton (Airport) £6.00 1 Hartlepool £2.70
2 Vale of White Horse £5.30 2  Alnwick £2.80
Epsom & Ewell £5.20 Bolsover £2.80
Hertsmere £5.20 3 North East Derbyshire £2.90
London £65.20 North Lanarkshire £2.90

3 Caradon £5.10 4 Berwick on Tweed £3.00
4  Adur £5.00 Sedgefield £3.00
Brighton & Hove £5.00 Warrington £3.00
Maidstone £5.00 5 Blaenau Gwent £3.10
Sevenoaks £5.00 Inverclyde £3.10
Tunbridge Wells £5.00 North Tyneside £3.10
Thanet (Broadstairs) £3.10

Source: Private Hire and Taxi Monthly, November 2003, based on a

standard two mile daytime journey (The average UK fare is £3.93).

The level of fares in each area is likely to depend on a number of local

factors including the bargaining power of the taxi trade, the affluence of

taxi users in the area and the costs of providing taxi services. There is no

obvious geographical pattern to explain the above results. We also have

no evidence to suggest that fare levels differ between LAs with or
without quantity controls.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 63



Page 223

Section 2: regulating taxi fares for on-street and rank hiring

6.15 This section sets out the rationale for fare regulation for rank and hail. In
doing so we present theoretical and empirical evidence that underlies the
rationale.

6.16 The legislation governing PHVs prevents them from plying for hire on the
street or at ranks, so this section relates only to taxis.

Do taxi fares need to be regulated?

6.17 Fare regulation is intended to protect consumers from overcharging by
taxis. In the 1993 Green Paper on taxis, the DfT stated that ‘ the control
of taxi fares is justifiable, if at all, only because the consumer of taxi
services at ranks or in the street is in a peculiarly weak position, cannot

shop around, and is very vulnerable to overcharging’ ."*

6.18 There are two main arguments given in support of fare regulation:

e the structure of the market and the way it operates provides little
incentive for price competition between licensed taxi drivers
e to protect vulnerable consumers.

Lack of competition in the market

6.19 The way taxis are hired from the street and from ranks results in
situations where there is little consumer pressure for taxis to compete on
price.

6.20 Consumers hailing taxis from the street face high and uncertain search
costs. Shopping around is not a realistic option. If they choose to turn
down a taxi because it is too expensive the waiting time until the next
taxi arrives is uncertain, as is the relative price and quality of the next
taxi compared to the current one. Moreover, consumers cannot return to
the original taxi if they cannot find a cheaper option. The first taxi that
the consumer hails effectively makes a ‘take it or leave it offer, which

the consumer has to assess with very limited information.'*®

128 Department for Transport: Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles: A Consultation Paper on the
Future of taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Services in England and Wales, 1993

29 See Diamond, P. (1971). * A model of price adjustment’ , Journal of Economic Theory 3,
p156-168. and Shreiber, C. (1975), * The economic reasons for price and entry regulation of
taxi cabs’ , Journal of Transport Economics and Policy 9, p268-279.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003

64



6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

Page 224

Similarly, when consumers hire taxis from taxi ranks they are generally
required to take the first cab from the rank. On many ranks this is
convention rather than necessity and could be changed, but on some
ranks there is simply no room for taxis to pull out from the middle of the
rank. Again there is no scope for consumer choice, and so no incentive
for taxis to compete on price.

For price competition to occur, taxis need to be able to signal to
consumers that they are cheaper and customers need to be able to
exercise choice over which taxi they use. As described above, customers
hiring taxis from ranks or in the street are usually not able to exercise
choice. In contrast, when booking a taxi over the telephone consumers
are often in a better position to shop around and find the best price.

Price competition is more likely to occur in situations where firm
reputation and repeat business are important. For firms operating in the
telephone booking sector the chance of repeat business is higher and taxi
firms are able to increase future sales by lowering prices. In this situation
price competition is more likely to occur.

Where firms operate in both the phone sector and the hail and rank
sector, price competition in the phone booked sector can in theory
translate into lower prices in the hail and rank sectors. This may occur
where a firm has a recognisable brand and competition in the phone
booked sector keeps prices low. Any temptation on the part of firms to
increase prices in the hail and rank sector would be tempered by the risk
of losing the low price reputation gained in the phone booking sector.
However this effect is likely to be limited and there is no empirical
evidence to support the theoretical argument.

Overall, the combination of the inherent nature of the on-street taxi
service, the first in first out rule at ranks, high search costs and the weak
bargaining position of consumers means that taxis operating at ranks and
on the street are not constrained by the competitive forces which result
from consumers shopping around. As a result there is an incentive to
charge high prices in the absence of some form of fare regulation. Where
taxis are booked by telephone the scope for consumers to shop around
helps to constrain the prices taxis can charge.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 65



6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

Page 225

Consumer protection

Fare regulation is particularly important for consumers in a vulnerable
position where they are more susceptible to overcharging.

First, consumers such as disabled and older people are likely to be in an
even weaker bargaining position than other consumers because they are
less able to take alternative forms of transport. This means they may be
liable to get charged even more than other consumers if fares were not

regulated.

This problem also applies to consumers in particular vulnerable situations.
For example, those trying to catch a taxi late at night who may be
concerned about their personal safety will be in a particularly weak
bargaining position and could be charged a high price by an unscrupulous
taxi.

The second problem is that some consumers will simply be less well
informed than others about the price of taxi services and alternatives to
taxis and so will be in a weak bargaining position over the fare. Tourists
are a good example of this type of poorly informed consumer.

In the absence of fare regulation, there is no mechanism that will prevent
consumers in vulnerable situations being charged excessively for using
taxis services.

What happens when fares are deregulated?

6.31

6.32

66

Ninety-five per cent of UK LAs responding to our survey who licence
taxis also regulate taxi fares, so domestic evidence on fare deregulation
is limited. There is some anecdotal evidence from those authorities that
do not regulate fares which suggests that consumers are not being
charged excessively for taxi services. However, these authorities are
mainly in rural or semi-rural areas with the vast majority of work coming
from telephone bookings. As explained above, this might have the effect
of encouraging price competition.

There is some evidence on the effects of fare deregulation from countries
and cities around the world that have deregulated taxi fares. The results
of these deregulations are mixed and depend on a number of factors.
These include local circumstances such as the structure of the taxi
market, the level at which the fare was set prior to deregulation, and
other regulatory changes that accompanied fare deregulation. For this
reason, the results of fare deregulation outside the UK can only provide

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

Page 226

an indication of the potential outcomes from taxi fare deregulation in the
UK rather than a definitive answer.

The following, taken from our international study shows what happened
in five countries that deregulated fares.'®® The effects of fare
deregulation varied considerably between the five countries. In some
cases deregulation has been a success whilst in others fare regulation
has been re-introduced. This lack of a strong evidential base in support of
fare deregulation is an important result in itself.

Sweden

Taxi fares were deregulated in Sweden in1990. Fares increased initially in
real terms but have since increased in line with inflation. The deregulation
of fares coincided with the introduction of a 25 per cent value added tax
on fares. The introduction of this tax distorted the immediate effect of
price deregulation as a high proportion of the tax increase would have
been passed on from taxi firms to consumers, so it is not clear whether
the subsequent price increases were due to price deregulation or tax. In
the years following price deregulation, fare increases have been smallest
in large cities and greatest in rural areas. This may reflect a lack of
competition in rural areas or simply higher costs associated with taxi
provision in these areas which have been passed on directly to
consumers.

Strict rules govern the information on fares that Swedish taxis must
display. These include displaying the price of a standard 15 minute trip of
10km on the inside of the vehicle and also on the outside of the vehicle
in lettering that is visible at least two metres away.

To encourage price competition between taxis, different ranks charge
different fares and consumers can choose between ranks on the basis of
their preferences about waiting times, fares and quality of vehicle.

39 TOI: The Impact of taxi market regulation - An international comparison (annexe J).

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 67



6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

6.41

68

Page 227

New Zealand

In New Zealand taxi fares were deregulated in 1989. Fares have fallen in
real terms in larger cities (by 15 to 25 per cent) while the results in
smaller towns were ambiguous. The law requires that maximum fares
must be registered with the Secretary of Transport and calibrated on the
compulsory taxi meter. Individual taxis are free to set their own fares
below this maximum. The fare must be displayed on the inside and
outside of the vehicle.

Norway

Uniquely, taxi fares have been deregulated in some larger cities without
any accompanying removal of entry controls. Where fares have been
deregulated they have increased. Unlike Sweden and New Zealand fare
deregulation has not been accompanied by strict rules about providing
information on fares to consumers.

The Netherlands

In the Netherlands, since 2000, regulated fares instead of being fixed,
have been set at maximum levels. Fares have risen. This is because the
licensing authority has increased the maximum fare. Our study shows
that there is some evidence of price competition occurring, based on
reports of some taxis charging less than the maximum fare.

The United States

During the 1970s and 1980s, a number of US cities deregulated almost
all aspects of their taxi services including fares. Following deregulation,
fares increased in real terms in almost all cases and fare controls were
subsequently re-introduced. Fare increases for street and rank hiring were
greater than fare increases in the telephone booking sector. The effect
was particularly clear in terms of increased fares at airport ranks.

It is not possible to draw overall conclusions from these international
examples. It is clear that fare deregulation has in some cases led to
increases in fares. However, it appears that strict requirements on fare
setting and providing information to consumers may have contributed to
the relative success of fare deregulation in New Zealand.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 228

Potential problems of taxi fare regulation

6.42 Notwithstanding the benefits of fare regulation, it needs to be recognised
that fixing fares at a particular level can cause problems in the way that
the market works.

6.43 LAs have very limited information about the taxi market on which to base
their fare setting decisions. In many areas of the UK, the taxi industry is
highly fragmented so gathering information from firms difficult. If LAs set
fares too low, this may lead to long queues of consumers waiting for
taxis. If fares are set too high, this may lead to long queues of taxis
waiting at ranks or cruising the streets looking for work.

6.44 Setting fixed taxi fares also reduces the scope for price changes to act as
a signal for matching supply with demand as happens in a normal
competitive market. Where fares are fixed rather than set as a maximum,
the limited potential for taxi firms to compete on fares is removed
completely. In the hail and rank sectors, price competition is likely to be
very limited, but in others there is more scope for competition to occur.
Examples are ranks that do not require the consumer to take the first taxi
on the rank or areas where lots of cruising taxis make search costs

lower."!

6.45 Furthermore, if taxis were allowed to charge higher fares at times of peak
demand this would encourage more taxis to operate at these times. This
would benefit consumers by reducing waiting times during periods of
peak demand. LAs can help to reduce waiting times to some extent by
setting peak and off-peak fare tariffs that encourage a greater supply of
taxis at peak times and less at off peak times. Anecdotal evidence on
this point comes from London where the Public Carriage Office and
representatives of the Licensed Taxi Drivers Association have told us that
recent increases in the fares tariff at night have encouraged more taxis
onto the streets at these busy periods.

37 Halcrow: Impact of Taxi Regulation on Taxi Markets — Case Study (annexe D). For example,
in Worcester passengers are not required to take the first cab from the rank. However there
was no evidence that this leads to price competition among taxis.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 69



Page 229

Section 4: assessment of approaches to fare regulation

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

6.50

6.51

70

In arriving at our recommendations on fare regulation we considered the
likely effects that would arise from different degrees of fare deregulation.

Full fare deregulation

A full fare deregulation option, where consumers negotiate fares with
drivers, was rejected due to competition and consumer protection
problems in the hailing and rank sectors as outlined above.

Partial fare deregulation

Another option considered was partial fare deregulation, which would
involve taxi firms setting their own maximum fare tariffs and keeping
maximum fares at that level for an obligatory minimum period. Firms
would be required to display a standard sample fare so that it is visible
outside the taxi. Partial fare deregulation has occurred in Sweden and in
New Zealand. The strict rules on how companies set and display their
fares protect vulnerable consumers from being over-charged.

Partial deregulation is only likely to be a success in areas where price
signalling can be effective and where consumers can actually exercise
choice (for example by not being forced to select the first taxi in a rank).

There are likely to be implementation problems with partial deregulation.
For example if the law requires that all taxis display a standard sample
fare for a three mile journey on the outside of the vehicle so that
potential passengers can compare prices, taxis can set their tariffs so
that the fare for a three mile journey is low but the fare for other journeys
is higher. Consumers are therefore still faced with uncompetitive high
fares for longer journeys. These problems could be overcome, but at a
cost of making the information presented more complex and therefore
less easy for consumers to understand.

For these reasons we do not recommend partial fare deregulation for the
UK taxi market.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 230

Setting the fare as a maximum

6.52 A third option is for LAs to continue setting fares, but instead of setting a
mandatory fare that all taxis must charge, the fare should become a
maximum and taxis could choose to charge below this maximum.'®* This
will facilitate price competition in the limited number of circumstances
where consumers are able to exercise choice. As described above, these
include ranks that do not require customers to take the first cab on the
rank and areas with a lot of cruising taxis where search costs are lower.

6.53 Inits 1993 Green Paper on taxi licensing, the DfT concluded that all taxi
fares should be set as a maximum rather than a mandatory tariff and that
this should be made clear to consumers. The current situation, where not
all LAs make it clear in their tariff that the fare is a maximum, is
confusing for consumers and is likely to reduce price competition. Only
25 per cent of the LAs that responded to our survey publish a fare tariff
that clearly states the metered fare is a maximum - in the other 75 per
cent there is no mention of the fact that taxis can charge less than the
published tariff.

6.54 A potential argument for not allowing taxis to set prices below the
published fare is to prevent price competition driving out competition in
terms of quality or safety. However evidence from the PHV sector does
not support this argument. In the PHV sector prices are not regulated and
a wide variety of fare levels and quality levels co-exist, from high-priced
chauffeur-driven executive cars to cheaper discount cabs that simply
meet the minimum standards required by law. Furthermore, we consider
that quality and safety are best controlled directly, through the setting of
minimum standards that taxis and drivers must meet.

Section b: conclusion and recomendations

6.55 There are arguments both in favour of and against fare regulation for
taxis. The nature of the market means that consumers, particularly
vulnerable consumers, derive greater benefit from the existence of fare
regulation. Fare regulation protects consumers.

32 This is theoretically already possible in the UK except for London and Northern Ireland.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 71



Page 231

6.56 UK LAs should continue to regulate taxi fares. However, there are some

measures that can be undertaken to improve competition in the licensed
taxi market whilst retaining the benefits to consumers of fare regulation.

Recommendations based on this assessment

6.57 We recommend that throughout the UK LAs should only set fare tariffs

6.58

which represent the maximum that can be charged, and not set fixed or
minimum fares. It should be made clear to consumers that they are able
to negotiate on fares, for example, when ordering a taxi over the
telephone. We also recommend that, where possible, LAs actively
facilitate more price competition in the market, particularly in the rank
and hail sectors of the market.

It is for LAs to decide how this might occur. One method used in other
countries involved taxis displaying their fare in the window or the outside
of the cab, either in terms of the price for a standardised trip, or a
percentage discount off the metered fare.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



7

Page 232

FURTHER ISSUES THAT IMPACT ON THE MARKET

Introduction and summary

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

While our study has focused on the impact of quantity, quality and safety
and fare regulation in the UK taxi and PHV market we have also come
across issues that, while they fall outside this remit are still affected by
central or local government regulation and merit discussion.

Cross border hiring

Taxis can take passengers from within their licensed area to other LAs
but cannot accept bookings for passengers or ply for hire outside the
area in which they are licensed. PHVs can take passengers from any
point to any other providing the PHV driver, vehicle and operator are
licensed in the same area. We believe that the current position on cross
border hiring adversely affects consumers and drivers to a limited extent
but accept that local licensing and enforcement procedures make cross
border hiring difficult to implement.

We note the DfT’s intention to clarify/simplify the position on PHV cross
border hiring via a Regulatory Reform Order (RRO) and suggest that
further thought be given to the position of taxis in this area.

Zoning within one licensing authority

Around five per cent of LAs are divided into two or more licensing zones.
These zones exist due to various local authority reorganisations. LAs do
not have the power to create or merge zones only (with Secretary of
State approval) to remove them completely. Zoning increases the number
of cross border hiring problems. It also prevents the supply of LAs in one
LA where quantity controls are in operation from responding to changes
in demand throughout the day or over time.

We note the proposed DfT RRO which will remove the requirement for
LAs to obtain Secretary of State approval to remove zones. We believe
that LAs would bring greater clarity to the market if they remove zoning
within their districts.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 73



7.6

7.7

7.8

74

Page 233

Single tier licensing

While we accept that there are arguments in favour of a single licensing
regime, the UK two tier system of taxis and PHVs seems to work well in
terms of offering choice to the consumer, particularly disabled and older
passengers who require a range of vehicles to suit their individual needs.
The current two tier system also allows some competition within the
telephone sector and between the street/rank and telephone markets.
Therefore we do not advocate moving to single tier licensing at this time.
The main drawbacks of the two tier system are that consumers can find
it hard to tell the difference between taxis and PHVs and where taxis
cannot, or will not, fulfil periods of peak demand PHVs may be tempted
to fill the gap by illegally plying for hire. We think that this problem will
be reduced with the removal of quantity controls for taxis.

Taxi manufacturing/adapting industry

This industry will be affected by the implementation of Part V of the
DDA95. Manufacturers wishing to produce wheelchair accessible
vehicles for LAs requiring accessible taxis under DDA95 regulations, will
have to meet DfT specifications for such vehicles. As the timetable for
DDA95 implementation has slipped there has been an impact on the
industry’s R&D, and the buying decisions of those wishing to acquire a
taxi. We welcome the DfT’s recent announcement on the proposals and
timetable for implementing the taxi provisions in the DDA95 by 2020 for
LAs meeting the DfT’s ‘first phase’ criteria.

The rest of this chapter looks at these issues in more detail. Section 1
looks at existing government policy for taxis, section 2 looks at the cross
border hiring issue, section 3 at zoning, section 4 at the arguments for
single tier licensing and section 5 at issues affecting taxi vehicle
manufacturers and adaptors.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 234

Section 1: government policy
The Department for Transport
1993 Green Paper — Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles

7.9 The last DfT policy document on taxis and PHVs was the 1993 Green
Paper, ‘Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles’. Although the paper was not a
statement of DfT intentions it does give some indication of its views
through discussion on a number of topics. These included the view that
numerical limits on taxis vehicles should be removed, that there should
be no age limits on vehicles, that minimum age and experience for drivers
should be standardised across the country, and that zoning within LAs
should be removed. On many of the key issues raised in the Green Paper,
including the issue of numerical limits on vehicles, little action has been
taken following the consultation. The exception is the issue of PHV
licensing in London, where significant progress has been made since the
Green Paper.

7.10 Subsequent documents issued by the DfT have either been more general,
in terms of overarching transport policy which do not specifically refer to
taxis or PHVs (for example ‘Transport 2010 — The 10 Year Plan’) or have
related specifically to the DDA95.

1998 White Paper - A New Deal for Transport a Better Deal for Everyone

7.11 This White Paper views taxis as an important part of an integrated public
transport system, filling the gaps in the broader transport system. LAs
are asked to consider taxis in their local transport plans. The other main
issue highlighted for LAs is that they should use their taxi and licensing
powers to ensure that taxis and PHVs in their district are safe,
comfortable, properly insured and available when and where required.

Disability Discrimination Act 1995

7.12 In 1997 the DfT consulted on wheelchair accessible vehicle
specifications for implementation of the taxi provisions of DDA95."*® The
DfT has now announced a variation to its 1997 proposals and has
confirmed that the implementation period for the DDA95 will run from
2010 to 2020 for those LAs meeting its ‘first phase’ criteria. LAs not

133 Department for Transport: Disability Discrimination Act 1995, The Government’s Proposals
for Taxis, 1997

The Office of Fair Trading 75



Page 235

meeting this criteria will be issued with voluntary guidance on the vehicle
mix and design parameters that they should consider. The DfT will
monitor implementation of this guidance before deciding whether to
apply the DDA95 taxi accessibility regulations throughout England and
Wales. Scotland and Northern Ireland will carry out separate
implementation.

Regulatory reform

7.13 The Government’s Action Plan 2002 contains a number of proposals to
use the streamlined order-making procedure in the Regulatory Reform Act
2001 to amend burdensome primary legislation. The DfT have put
forward four actions affecting taxi and PHV regulation (in England and
Wales outside London) for completion by Regulatory Reform Order. These
are:

e to remove the need for Secretary of State approval for local authority
resolutions to amalgamate taxi zones

e to standardise driver and operator licence duration

e to remove local authority powers to restrict taxi licence numbers in
their area

e to clarify/simplify the position on PHV hirings across the borders of
different licensing authorities.

7.14 As can be seen, the findings of our report agree that these represent
areas of concern which we recommend addressing. To date no action
has been taken to implement these proposals.

Devolved administrations

7.15 The implementation of DDA95 regulations relating to accessible vehicle
specifications is a devolved matter for Scotland and Northern Ireland.
They will be holding their own separate consultations on regulation

implementation.'®*

7.16 Licensing legislation is also a devolved matter for Scotland and Northern
Ireland. Both have recently taken policy initiatives which impact on taxi
licensing.

134 Subject to the current arrangements during the suspense of devolution in Northern Ireland

The regulation of licensed taxi

76 and PHV services in the UK

November 2003



7.17

7.18

Page 236

Scotland

In 2002 the Scottish Ministers set up an independent task group to
review the adequacy of licensing provisions contained in the Civic
Government (Scotland) Act 1982 including the provisions relating to taxis
and private hire cars (equivalent to PHVs). The Task Group will be
reporting to Scottish Ministers shortly.

Northern Ireland

In 2003 the Northern Ireland Office undertook a review of taxi regulation
in Northern Ireland. The objective of the review is to examine the
principles, mechanisms and practices of the present system. This is with
the aim of making recommendations to create an effective and equitable
regulatory framework to promote road and public safety and fair
competition. Final proposals are expected in late 2003.

Section 2: cross border hiring

7.19

7.20

7.21

A taxi is permitted to take passengers from within the area in which it is
licensed to anywhere in the country. Taxis can also, theoretically at least,
be hired in the area in which they are licensed to go from anywhere to
anywhere in the country. However, the taxi vehicles cannot ply for hire
at a rank or in the street outside their own licensing areas. For PHVs the
rules are less strict. PHV firms can advertise and supply services
anywhere in the country as long as the drivers vehicles and operator are
all licensed by the same LA and the operator takes bookings from an
office within the area of the LA where it is licensed. It remains unlawful,
however, for a PHV operator to take a booking at premises outside the
licensed area.

In practice, it is of course more likely that a taxi will be hired to take a
passenger to a neighbouring LA, but will not be able to accept a fare that
wishes to go from the neighbouring LA into the LA in which the taxi is
licensed. Arguably, this has an adverse effect on consumers’ freedom to
hire taxis and taxis’ ability to meet consumer demand.

We recognise that there are strong arguments for restricting the ability of
taxis to offer services outside of the area in which they are licensed.
Local regulations with regard to quality standards, topographical
knowledge and fare levels could be different and enforcement of these
conditions by licensing officers would be difficult if cross border hiring
was allowed.

The Office of Fair Trading 77



7.22

7.23

Page 237

Furthermore, there could be problems with drivers abusing the system by
registering in an area with low quality standards and then working full
time in an area with higher quality standards.

We note the proposal by the DfT in the Government’s 2002 Regulatory
Reform Action Plan to clarify/simplify the position on PHV hirings across
the borders of different LAs. We would like to see further thought given
to simplifying the position for taxis as well.

Section 3: zoning within one licensing authority

7.24

7.25

7.26

In around five per cent of LAs the licensing area is divided into two or
more zones. These zones exist as a result of various local government
reorganisations. If a new authority comprised part of two or more post-
reorganisation districts then each of those constituent parts constituted a
zone for the purposes of taxi licensing. The LA can overcome this by
seeking Secretary of State approval for an extension resolution under the
Local Government Act 1972 but the only action that an LA can take is to
remove all zones or accept the situation as it is. LAs do not have the
power to create zones or to merge individual zones — unless merging
zones has the effect of removing all zones.

Since these zones are licensing districts in their own right, they increase
the number of cross border problems and again restrict supply from
better meeting demand. Some authorities have argued that the removal
of zones would mean that drivers would concentrate on those, primarily
urban, areas where they can make most profit to the detriment of the,
primarily rural, areas where demand is lower. This argument, given an
absence of quantity control, does not stand up. Demand in rural areas is
unlikely to reduce because zones are removed and if taxis found it was
profitable to serve a particular area with zoning, it will be profitable
afterwards. If some taxis did migrate to urban areas then others would
take their place.

Under current legislation LAs are permitted to remove all licensing zones
with approval of the Secretary of State for Transport. This regulation is
due to be amended by an RRO which will enable LAs to amalgamate
licensing zones without seeking approval from the Secretary of State.'®

138 Cabinet Office: Regulatory Reform. The Government’s Action Plan 2002.

78

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



7.27

Page 238

We note the intention of the DfT to remove the legislative requirement
for LAs to seek permission from the Secretary of State before
amalgamating licensing zones. We think that LAs will bring greater clarity
to the market if they remove zoning within their districts.

Section 4: Single tier and two tier licensing

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

Most of the countries examined during the course of our study do not
differentiate between licensing those to undertake traditional taxi rank
and hail work and those providing PHV type services booked in advance.
The UK has a two tier system, where legislation makes for separate
licensing requirements for taxis and PHVs.

We have considered, during the course of this study, whether a single
tier licensing system would be appropriate for the UK market. There are
advantages to a single licensing system. It is easier for passengers to
understand and it can be simpler for LAs to administer and enforce.
However, we have concluded that, for the present, the existing two tier
system should be retained.

The two tier system can cause difficulties. The public often do not find it
easy to tell the difference between taxis and PHVs and many consider
them both to be taxis. Around a third of consumers surveyed during the
course of unmet demand surveys'*® believe that both taxis and PHVs are
allowed to pick up in the streets and at ranks. Of those who said that
certain vehicles could not pick up in the street, only 58 per cent could
actually demonstrate an understanding of the differences between taxis
and PHVs.

In addition, some LAs have a problem with illegal plying for hire,
particularly during the late-night peak periods. Sometimes the vehicles
involved are licensed PHVs illegally plying for hire. The terms of insurance
cover for PHVs mean that any passengers picked up by a PHV in the
street without a prior booking arrangement may not be covered by the
driver’'s insurance in the event of an accident. Although it is an offence
to ply for hire without a taxi licence under section 45 of the Town Police
Clauses Act 1847, police do not often seek to charge the offender. This
is, in part, because in the interests of public order the police would rather
see the streets cleared than prevent unlicensed plying for hire. Quantity

136 Halcrow: Impact of Regulation on Taxi Markets - Consumer Survey (annexe C)

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 79



7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

Page 239

restrictions on the number of taxi vehicle licences can increase the extent
of this problem.

However, in other respects the two tier system works well. It allows
regulations to be targeted at the parts of the market where they are
needed, without distorting the market in sectors where such regulation is
unnecessary. Separate regulations for vehicles that only work in the
phone-booked sector of the market, where competition and consumer
protection issues are less of a problem, allows these vehicles to be
subject to only minimal regulation. In contrast, taxis plying on the street
and at ranks, where there is more need to protect consumers, are subject
to much tighter regulations.

There is a clear difference in the characteristics of the telephone sector
and the rank/hail sector. The former is generally served by PHVs although
taxis do also operate, and the latter is served exclusively by taxis. The
differing characteristics of these two services were the primary reason
for the two tier system of taxi licensing that is now in place.

The two tier system also ensures some degree of choice for the
consumer, in terms of vehicle type. This is particularly important for
disabled and older consumers who will often require a particular type of
vehicle, which is not necessarily the traditional, wheelchair accessible
black cab. The system also allows some competition and choice on both
quality and price in the telephone market and, to a lesser extent,
between the rank/hail and telephone markets.

On balance, we believe there are good reasons for maintaining the two
tier approach. We therefore do not advocate a move to a single tier
licensing system.

Section 5: Taxi manufacturers and adaptors

7.36

7.37

A number of companies in the UK manufacture and/or supply taxi
vehicles. As each LA has different vehicle licensing specifications, most
of these models do not meet every authority’s requirements. Accordingly
most of the manufacturers/suppliers are not able to compete on a
national level but instead the boundary of their UK market is set by local
vehicle licensing conditions.

The structure of the market for the manufacturing of taxi vehicles has
been influenced by wheelchair-accessibility requirements and by vehicles
being produced to meet the MCF, set and administered by the Public

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



7.38

7.39

7.40

Page 240

Carriage Office. The taxi vehicle supply industry can be split in two
groups of companies. One group make purpose built taxis to meet the
MCF. These vehicles look like the traditional perception of a ‘London
Black Cab'. The other group of companies produce vehicles adapted from
multi-person vehicles for wheelchair access. These converted vehicles
meet European 'M1' safety standards but do not meet all the
requirements of the MCF.

Both types of vehicle, whether purpose built or converted, are accessible
to those who wish to remain in their wheelchair whilst travelling. As
disabled people have a range of different requirements it is important that
there is a range of taxi vehicles that are able to meet their varied needs.

The technical specifications of vehicles from both groups of
manufacturers will be affected by the implementation of Part V of the
DDA95 which will require all taxis to meet certain specifications,
including wheelchair accessibility. The DfT is working on the technical
specifications that these vehicles will have to adhere to. The DfT has
confirmed that the implementation period for the taxi provisions in Part V
DDA95 will run from 2010 to 2020 for those LA’s meeting its ‘first
phase’ criteria in England and Wales. LAs not meeting these criteria will
be issued with voluntary guidance on the vehicle mix and design
parameters they should consider applying. The effectiveness of this
guidance will be monitored by the DfT before deciding whether DDA95
taxi accessibility regulations should be extended to all LAs in England and
Wales. The DfT’s proposals will be subject to a full public consultation.
DDA95 implementation in Scotland and Northern Ireland is a devolved
matter so they will carry out their own separate consultations on taxi
accessibility regulations.

We believe that the recent DfT announcement on how it intends to
implement the taxi provisions in DDA95 will reduce the uncertainty
experienced by the taxi manufacturing industry. This uncertainty has
impacted on the manufacturers’ long term research and development and
the decisions of those wishing to buy a taxi.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 81



7.41

Page 241

In addition, the implementation of the DDA95 taxi accessibility vehicle
specifications will provide a national benchmark for LAs when
considering access for disabled travellers. The vehicles currently being
manufactured as taxis are able to meet a range of the needs of the
disabled traveller but, at present, their utilisation within each LA varies
according to local policy and taxi licensing conditions.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 242

GLOSSARY

Cross border hiring
The act of booking a taxi outside of its licensed area of operation.
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA95)

Government legislation. Regulations under section 32 in Part V of the
DDA95 can set out specifications for a taxi vehicle to ensure the vehicle
is accessible for disabled people.

Fare regulation

Regulations that give licensing authorities the power to regulate the fares
that licensed taxis charge (but not private hire vehicles). This is done by
setting a tariff mandatory (fixed) or maximum fare, or a tariff of
maximum and minimum fares.

Hailing

The act by a passenger of flagging down a taxi in the street (private hire
vehicles cannot be hailed).

lllegal taxi
A totally unlicensed vehicle being used to ply for hire.
Latent demand

For the purposes of this report we define latent demand as the situation
where consumers in areas with quantity controls are discouraged from
using taxis by long waiting times and so do even bother to queue for a
taxi. This type of demand is hidden because it does not present itself in
the form of long queues but it is nonetheless an important source of
unmet demand.

Licence shortage premium value

The value that can be obtained when selling a licensed taxi in an area
where the licensing authority restricts the quantities of licensed taxis.
This value is over and above both the administrative fees charged by
licensing authorities that issue and renew the licence and the value of an
unlicensed vehicle. The licence shortage premium reflects the value of
the licence in areas where quantity restrictions apply.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 83



84

Page 243

Licensing authority (LA)

A local authority insofar as it is empowered to issue and regulate
licences.

Mandatory fare
A fare tariff set by LAs for taxis which should always be applied.
Maximum fare

A ceiling fare tariff set by LAs for taxis which represents the maximum
that can be charged but allows the taxi driver to charge less.

Metropolitan Conditions of Fitness (IVICF)

Taxis safety and quality requirements devised by the Public Carriage
Office for London.

Operator

A person who is licensed to operate a private hire business by taking
bookings for private hire vehicles.

Phone booked sector/ pre-booked sector

A market sector in which vehicles are pre-booked over the phone. This
sector includes both private hire vehicles and taxis.

Plying for hire
The action of searching for a passenger on the street or at a taxi rank.
Private hire vehicle (PHV)

A vehicle which is licensed to carry up to eight passengers who have pre-
booked but which is not licensed to ply for hire.

Quality regulation

Regulation by LAs of the quality and safety of PHV and taxi owners,
drivers, vehicles and in the case of PHVs, operators.

Quantity regulation

Regulation by LAs of the number of taxi (but not PHV) vehicle licences in
issue within their licensing areas.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 244

Single tier licensing

A licensing system in which all vehicles are licensed both to ply for hire
and to carry passengers who have pre-booked. In a single tier system
there is no distinction between taxis and PHVs.

Taxi

A licensed vehicle which can ply for hire and take pre booked fares.
Taxi proprietor

A taxi owner.

Taximeter

An appliance attached to the tachometer in a taxi or PHV vehicle that is
used to calculate the total fare for a journey based upon a fare tariff set
by reference to time and/or distance.

Two tier licensing

A licensing system in which some vehicles and drivers are licensed only
to carry pre-booked passengers and some which are licensed to carry
pre-booked passenger and to ply for hire. In the UK this results in two
forms of licensed hire vehicle: a taxi and a PHV.

Unmet demand survey

A survey which measures patent unmet demand by observing how long
passengers wait for taxis. Often the survey will make some attempt to
also capture latent demand through consumer surveys but these are
unable to establish the true extent of latent demand.

Wheelchair accessible vehicle

A vehicle which is designed to be accessible to those needing a
wheelchair.

Zoning

Where a licensing authority licenses taxis to operate only in a limited are,
or zone within the total licensing area. A taxi licensed for one zone
cannot lawfully ply for hire outside of that zone.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 85



Page 245

Acronyms

DDA95 - The Disability Discrimination Act 1995
DfT - Department for Transport

LA - Licensing Authority

LPG - Liquid Petroleum Gas

MCF - Metropolitan Conditions of Fitness

NATPHLEO - National Association of Taxi and Private Hire Licensing and
Enforcement Officers

PCO - Public Carriage Office

PHV - Private hire vehicle

RADAR - The Royal Association for Disability and Rehabilitation
R & D - Research and development

TfL - Transport for London

TNS - Taylor Nelson Sofres plc

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 246

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Beesley, M.E. 1997
Competition and Supply in London Taxis. Privatization, Regulation and
Deregulation, Routledge 1997 2nd ed.

Beesley, M. E. and Glaister, S. 1983
Infomation for regulating: The case of taxis. The Economic Journal
(93), 5694-615.

Button, J. T. H. 1999
Taxis — Licensing Law and Practice, Butterworths, London.
Cairns, R. D. and Liston-Heyes, C. 1996

Competition and regulation in the taxi industry. Journal of Public
Economics 59(1), 1-15.

Coffman, R. B. 1977
The economic reason for price and entry regulation of taxicabs.
Journal of Transport Economics and Policy 11(3), 288-297.

Dempsey, P. S. 2000
Taxi Industry Regulation, Deregulation & Re-regulation: the Paradox of
market failure. Transportation Law Journal Vol 24:73

Denby, B. 2002

The Book, A Licensing Guide for Taxi, (Hackney Carriage) and Private
Hire Licensing Officers, Inspectors and Enforcement Officers. 11" ed.

Diamond, P. 1971
A model of price adjustment. Journal of Economic Theory 3, p156-
168.

Douglas, G. 1972
Price regulation and optimal service standards. Journal of Transport
Economics and Policy

EIM Business & Policy Research. 2002
Taxi abroad: Part Il country reports - An inventory of experiences with
regulated and deregulated policies abroad. Netherlands Ministry of
Transport, Public Works and Water Management.

Fingleton, J. Evans J. and Hogan, O. 1998
The Dublin taxi market: Re-regulate or stay queuing? Department of
Economics, Trinity College, Dublin.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 87



Page 247

Fischer, A. J. & al . 1992
The market for taxi-cab licences: An experimental analysis.
International Journal of Transport Economics XIX(3), 329-353.

Frankena, M. W. and Pautler, P. A. 1984
An economic analysis of taxicab regulation. Federal Trade Commission.

Gallick, E. C. and Sisk, D. E. 1987
A reconsideration of taxi regulation. Journal of Law, Economics, and
Organisation 3(1), 117-128.

Gaunt, Clive. 1996
Information for regulators, the case of taxicab licence prices.
International Journal of Transport Economics XXIII(3), 331-345.

Gaunt, Clive; Black, Terry. 1994
The Unanticipated Effects of the Industry Commission's
Recommendations on the Regulation of the Taxi Cab Industry.
Economic Analysis and Policy. September 1994; 24(2): 151-70.

Gaunt, Clive; Black, Terry. 1996
The Economic Cost of Taxicab Regulation: The Case of Brisbane.
Economic Analysis and Policy. March 1996; 26(1): 45-58.

Goodbody. 2001a
Review of the taxi and hackney market, 2001 (demand and supply).
Goodbody Economic Consultants.

Goodbody. 2001b
Study of the impacts of liberalisation on the Dublin taxi market.
Goodbody Economic Consultants.

Hackner, Jonas; Nyberg, Sten. 1995

Deregulating Taxi Services: A Word of Caution. Journal of Transport
Economics and Policy. May 1995; 29(2): 195-207.

Halsbury's Laws of England, Vol 40(2) Road Traffic, Butterworths,
London 2000.

Halsbury's Statutes, Volume 38, Road Traffic, Butterworths, London
2001.

Manski, C F and Wright, D J. 1976
Nature of equilibrium in the market for taxi services. Transportation
Research Record 619, 11-15.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



Page 248

Rometsch, Stefan; Wolfstetter, EImar 1993
The Taxicab Market: An Elementary Model. Journal of Institutional and
Theoretical Economics. September 1993; 149(3): 531-46.

Schaller,-Bruce. 1999
Elasticities for Taxicab Fares and Service Availability. Transportation.
August 1999; 26(3): 283-97.

Shreiber, C. 1975
The economic reasons for price and entry regulation of taxicabs.
Journal of Transport Economics and Policy 9(3), 268-293.

Shreiber, C. 1977
The economics reasons for price and entry regulations of taxicabs: A
rejoinder. Journal of Transport Economics and Policy 11(3), 198-204.

Shreiber, C. 1981
The economic reason for price and entry regulation of taxicabs: A
rejoinder. Journal of Transport Economics and Policy 15(1), 81-83.

Soon, Jason. 1999

Taxi!! Reinvigorating Competition in the Taxi Market. Policy. Winter
1999; 15(2): 13-19.

Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles: Transport Committee, Fourth Report of
Session 1993-94,

HC 239 I, Report of Minutes and Proceedings.

Taylor,-D-Wayne 7989
The Economic Effects of the Direct Regulation of the Taxicab Industry
in Metropolitan Toronto. Logistics and Transportation Review. June
1989; 25(2): 169-82.

Teal, R F and Berglund, M. 1987
The impacts of taxicab deregulation in the USA. Journal of Transport
Economics and Policy 21(1), 37-56.

Toner, J. 1996
English experience of deregulation of the taxi industry. Transportation
Review 16(1), 79-94.

Toner, J. 1997
Towards optimal regulation in the taxi industry. Leeds, UK.
International Conference on Competition and Ownership in Land
Passenger Transport.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 89



Page 249

Toner, J and Mackie, P J. 1992
The economics of taxicab regulation: A welfare assessment.
Transport Policies - Selected Proceedings of the Sixth World
Conference on Transport Research 3.

Vany, Arthur S. de
Capacity Utilisation under alternative regulatory constraints: An
analysis of taxi markets. The Economics of Transport.

Yang,-Hai, et-al. 2000

A Macroscopic Taxi Model for Passenger Demand, Taxi Utilization and
Level of Services. Transportation. Summer 2000, 27(3): 317-39.

The regulation of licensed taxi

and PHV services in the UK November 2003



10

Page 250

REFERENCES

Cabinet Office: Regulatory Reform, The Government’s Action Plan 2002.

Department for Transport: Disability Discrimination Act 1995, The
Government’s Proposals for Taxis, 1997.

Department for Transport: Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles: A
Consultation Paper on the Future of Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle
Services in England and Wales, 1993.

Department for Transport: Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles in England and
Wales, 2001-2002, June 2003.

Department for Transport: Travel by taxi and PHV in GB, January 2003.
Diamond, P. 1971

A model of price adjustment, Journal of Economic Theory 3, p156-168.
Grundy, E., Ahlburg, D., Ali, M., Breeze, E. and Sloggett, A. 1999

Disability in Great Britain: Results from the 1996/97 Disability Follow-Up
to the Family Resources Survey, DSS Research Report 94 and the
Employers Forum on Disability.

MORI: Attitudes of Disabled People to Public Transport, 2002.
National Statistics, Consumer Trends, Quarter 1 2003.
National Statistics, Family Spending, 2001-02.

NATPHLEO: Taxi Regulation in England, 2000.

Pratt, E. A. 1912
A History of Inland Transport and Communication in England, Kegan Paul,
Trench, Trubner & Co Ltd. London.

Petterson, Geraldine. 1999,
Taxi Users: Their views in Brighton and Hove.

Shreiber, C. 1975
The economic reasons for price and entry regulation of taxi cabs, Journal
of Transport Economics and Policy 9, p268-279.

The Office of Fair Trading ‘ 91



Page 251
Appendix 11

Department for

Transport

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING:

BEST PRACTICE GUIDANCE

March 2010


AA571T
Typewritten Text

AA571T
Typewritten Text
Appendix 11


Page 252

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING: BEST PRACTICE GUIDANCE

Table of contents Para Nos
Introduction 1-5
The role of taxis and PHVs 6-7
The role of licensing: policy justification 8-10
Scope of the guidance 11
Consultation at the local level 12
Accessibility 13-25
Vehicles 26-44
Quantity restrictions of taxi licences 45-51
Taxi fares 52-54
Drivers 55-76
PHV operators 77-81
Repeal of the PHV contract exemption 82-83
Enforcement 84-88
Taxi Zones 89-91
Flexible transport services 92-95
Local transport plans 96-97

Annex A - Useful questions when assessing quantity controls

Annex B - Sample notice between taxi/PHV driver and passenger

Annex C — Assessing applicants for a taxi or PHV driver licence in accordance
with C1 standard



Page 253

INTRODUCTION

1. The Department first issued Best Practice Guidance in October 2006 to assist
those local authorities in England and Wales that have responsibility for the regulation of
the taxi and private hire vehicle (PHV) trades.

2. It is clear that many licensing authorities considered their licensing policies in the
context of the Guidance. That is most encouraging.

3. However, in order to keep our Guidance relevant and up to date, we embarked on
a revision. We took account of feedback from the initial version and we consulted
stakeholders in producing this revised version.

4. The key premise remains the same - it is for individual licensing authorities to
reach their own decisions both on overall policies and on individual licensing matters, in
the light of their own views of the relevant considerations. This Guidance is intended to
assist licensing authorities but it is only guidance and decisions on any matters remain a
matter for the authority concerned.

5. We have not introduced changes simply for the sake of it. Accordingly, the bulk of
the Guidance is unchanged. What we have done is focus on issues involving a new policy
(for example trailing the introduction of the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups legislation);
or where we consider that the advice could be elaborated (eg enforcement); or where
progress has been made since October 2006 (eg the stretched limousine guidance note
has now been published).

THE ROLE OF TAXIS AND PHVs

6. Taxis (more formally known as hackney carriages) and PHVs (or minicabs as
some of them are known) play an important part in local transport. In 2008, the average
person made 11 trips in taxis or private hire vehicles. Taxis and PHVs are used by all
social groups; low-income young women (amongst whom car ownership is low) are one
of the largest groups of users.

7. Taxis and PHVs are also increasingly used in innovative ways - for example as
taxi-buses - to provide innovative local transport services (see paras 92-95)

THE ROLE OF LICENSING: POLICY JUSTIFICATION

8. The aim of local authority licensing of the taxi and PHV trades is to protect the
public. Local licensing authorities will also be aware that the public should have
reasonable access to taxi and PHV services, because of the part they play in local
transport provision. Licensing requirements which are unduly stringent will tend
unreasonably to restrict the supply of taxi and PHV services, by putting up the cost of
operation or otherwise restricting entry to the trade. Local licensing authorities should
recognise that too restrictive an approach can work against the public interest — and can,
indeed, have safety implications.



Page 254

9. For example, it is clearly important that somebody using a taxi or PHV to go home
alone late at night should be confident that the driver does not have a criminal record for
assault and that the vehicle is safe. But on the other hand, if the supply of taxis or PHVs
has been unduly constrained by onerous licensing conditions, then that person’s safety
might be put at risk by having to wait on late-night streets for a taxi or PHV to arrive; he or
she might even be tempted to enter an unlicensed vehicle with an unlicensed driver
illegally plying for hire.

10.  Local licensing authorities will, therefore, want to be sure that each of their various
licensing requirements is in proportion to the risk it aims to address; or, to put it another
way, whether the cost of a requirement in terms of its effect on the availability of transport
to the public is at least matched by the benefit to the public, for example through
increased safety. This is not to propose that a detailed, quantitative, cost-benefit
assessment should be made in each case; but it is to urge local licensing authorities to
look carefully at the costs — financial or otherwise — imposed by each of their licensing
policies. It is suggested they should ask themselves whether those costs are really
commensurate with the benefits a policy is meant to achieve.

SCOPE OF THE GUIDANCE

11.  This guidance deliberately does not seek to cover the whole range of possible
licensing requirements. Instead it seeks to concentrate only on those issues that have
caused difficulty in the past or that seem of particular significance. Nor for the most part
does the guidance seek to set out the law on taxi and PHV licensing, which for England
and Wales contains many complexities. Local licensing authorities will appreciate that it is
for them to seek their own legal advice.

CONSULTATION AT THE LOCAL LEVEL

12. Itis good practice for local authorities to consult about any significant proposed
changes in licensing rules. Such consultation should include not only the taxi and PHV
trades but also groups likely to be the trades’ customers. Examples are groups
representing disabled people, or Chambers of Commerce, organisations with a wider
transport interest (eg the Campaign for Better Transport and other transport providers),
womens’ groups or local traders.

ACCESSIBILITY

13.  The Minister of State for Transport has now announced the way forward on
accessibility for taxis and PHVs. His statement can be viewed on the Department’s web-
site at: http://www.dft.gov.uk/press/speechesstatements/statements/accesstotaxis. The
Department will be taking forward demonstration schemes in three local authority areas to
research the needs of people with disabilities in order to produce guidance about the
most appropriate provision. In the meantime, the Department recognises that some local
licensing authorities will want to make progress on enhancing accessible taxi provision
and the guidance outlined below constitutes the Department’s advice on how this might
be achieved in advance of the comprehensive and dedicated guidance which will arise
from the demonstration schemes.



http://www.dft.gov.uk/press/speechesstatements/statements/accesstotaxis

Page 255

14.  Different accessibility considerations apply between taxis and PHVs. Taxis can be
hired on the spot, in the street or at a rank, by the customer dealing directly with a driver.
PHVs can only be booked through an operator. It is important that a disabled person
should be able to hire a taxi on the spot with the minimum delay or inconvenience, and
having accessible taxis available helps to make that possible. For PHVs, it may be more
appropriate for a local authority to license any type of saloon car, noting that some PHV
operators offer accessible vehicles in their fleet. The Department has produced a leaflet
on the ergonomic requirements for accessible taxis that is available from:
http://www.dft.gov.uk/transportforyou/access/taxis/pubs/research

15. The Department is aware that, in some cases, taxi drivers are reluctant to pick up
disabled people. This may be because drivers are unsure about how to deal with
disabled people, they believe it will take longer for disabled people to get in and out of the
taxi and so they may lose other fares, or they are unsure about insurance arrangements if
anything goes wrong. It should be remembered that this is no excuse for refusing to pick
up disabled people and that the taxi industry has a duty to provide a service to disabled
people in the same way as it provides a service to any other passenger. Licensing
authorities should do what they can to work with operators, drivers and trade bodies in
their area to improve drivers’ awareness of the needs of disabled people, encourage them
to overcome any reluctance or bad practice, and to improve their abilities and confidence.
Local licensing authorities should also encourage their drivers to undertake disability
awareness training, perhaps as part of the course mentioned in the training section of this
guidance that is available through Go-Skills.

16. In relation to enforcement, licensing authorities will know that section 36 of the
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 (DDA) was partially commenced by enactment of the
Local Transport Act 2008. The duties contained in this section of the DDA apply only to
those vehicles deemed accessible by the local authority being used on “taxibus” services.
This applies to both hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.

17.  Section 36 imposes certain duties on drivers of “taxibuses” to provide assistance to
people in wheelchairs, to carry them in safety and not to charge extra for doing so.

Failure to abide by these duties could lead to prosecution through a Magistrates’ court
and a maximum fine of £1,000.

18.  Local authorities can take action against non-taxibus drivers who do not abide by
their duties under section 36 of the DDA (see below). This could involve for example
using licence conditions to implement training requirements or, ultimately, powers to
suspend or revoke licences. Some local authorities use points systems and will take
certain enforcement actions should drivers accumulate a certain number of points

19. There are plans to modify section 36 of the DDA. The Local Transport Act 2008
applied the duties to assist disabled passengers to drivers of taxis and PHVs whilst being
used to provide local services. The Equality Bill which is currently on its passage through
Parliament would extend the duties to drivers of taxis and PHVs whilst operating
conventional services using wheelchair accessible vehicles. Licensing authorities will be
informed if the change is enacted and Regulations will have to be made to deal with
exemptions from the duties for drivers who are unable, on medical grounds to fulfil the
duties.


http://www.dft.gov.uk/transportforyou/access/taxis/pubs/research

Page 256

Duties to carry assistance dogs

20. Since 31 March 2001, licensed taxi drivers in England and Wales have been under
a duty (under section 37 of the DDA) to carry guide, hearing and other prescribed
assistance dogs in their taxis without additional charge. Drivers who have a medical
condition that is aggravated by exposure to dogs may apply to their licensing authority for
an exemption from the duty on medical grounds. Any other driver who fails to comply with
the duty could be prosecuted through a Magistrates’ court and is liable to a fine of up to
£1,000. Similar duties covering PHV operators and drivers have been in force since 31
March 2004.

21.  Enforcement of this duty is the responsibility of local licensing authorities. It is
therefore for authorities to decide whether breaches should be pursued through the courts
or considered as part of the licensing enforcement regime, having regard to guidance
issued by the Department.
http://www.dft.gov.uk/transportforyou/access/taxis/pubs/taxis/carriageofassistancedogsint
a6154?page=2

Duties under the Part 3 of the DDA

22.  The Disability Discrimination Act 2005 amended the DDA 1995 and lifted the
exemption in Part 3 of that Act for operators of transport vehicles. Regulations applying
Part 3 to vehicles used to provide public transport services, including taxis and PHVs, hire
services and breakdown services came into force on 4 December 2006. Taxi drivers now
have a duty to ensure disabled people are not discriminated against or treated less
favourably. In order to meet these new duties, licensing authorities are required to review
any practices, policies and procedures that make it impossible or unreasonably difficult for
a disabled person to use their services.

23.  The Disability Rights Commission, before it was incorporated into the Equality and
Human Rights Commission, produced a Code of Practice to explain the Part 3 duties for
the transport industry; this is available at
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/uploaded_files/code_of practice_provision_and_use
_of_transport_vehicles_dda.pdf. There is an expectation that Part 3 duties also now
demand new skills and training; this is available through GoSkills, the sector skills council
for road passenger transport. Go-Skills has also produced a DVD about assisting
disabled passengers. Further details are provided in the training section of this guidance.

24.  Local Authorities may wish to consider how to use available courses to reinforce
the duties drivers are required to discharge under section 3 of DDA, and also to promote
customer service standards for example through GoSkills.

25.  In addition recognition has been made of a requirement of basic skills prior to
undertaking any formal training. On-line tools are available to assess this requirement
prior to undertaking formal training.


http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/uploaded_files/code_of_practice_provision_and_use
http://www.dft.gov.uk/transportforyou/access/taxis/pubs/taxis/carriageofassistancedogsint

Page 257

VEHICLES

Specification Of Vehicle Types That May Be Licensed

26. The legislation gives local authorities a wide range of discretion over the types of
vehicle that they can license as taxis or PHVs. Some authorities specify conditions that in
practice can only be met by purpose-built vehicles but the majority license a range of
vehicles.

27. Normally, the best practice is for local licensing authorities to adopt the principle of
specifying as many different types of vehicle as possible. Indeed, local authorities might
usefully set down a range of general criteria, leaving it open to the taxi and PHV trades to
put forward vehicles of their own choice which can be shown to meet those criteria. In
that way there can be flexibility for new vehicle types to be readily taken into account.

28. Itis suggested that local licensing authorities should give very careful
consideration to a policy which automatically rules out particular types of vehicle or
prescribes only one type or a small number of types of vehicle. For example, the
Department believes authorities should be particularly cautious about specifying only
purpose-built taxis, with the strict constraint on supply that that implies. But of course the
purpose-built vehicles are amongst those which a local authority could be expected to
license. Similarly, it may be too restrictive to automatically rule out considering Multi-
Purpose Vehicles, or to license them for fewer passengers than their seating capacity
(provided of course that the capacity of the vehicle is not more than eight passengers).

29. The owners and drivers of vehicles may want to make appropriate adaptations to
their vehicles to help improve the personal security of the drivers. Licensing authorities
should look favourably on such adaptations, but, as mentioned in paragraph 35 below,
they may wish to ensure that modifications are present when the vehicle is tested and not
made after the testing stage.

Tinted windows

30. The minimum light transmission for glass in front of, and to the side of, the driver is
70%. Vehicles may be manufactured with glass that is darker than this fitted to windows
rearward of the driver, especially in estate and people carrier style vehicles. When
licensing vehicles, authorities should be mindful of this as well as the large costs and
inconvenience associated with changing glass that conforms to both Type Approval and
Construction and Use Regulations.

Imported vehicles: type approval (see also “stretched limousines”, paras 40-44

below)

31. It may be that from time to time a local authority will be asked to license as a taxi or
PHV a vehicle that has been imported independently (that is, by somebody other than the
manufacturer). Such a vehicle might meet the local authority’s criteria for licensing, but
the local authority may nonetheless be uncertain about the wider rules for foreign vehicles
being used in the UK. Such vehicles will be subject to the ‘type approval’ rules. For




Page 258

passenger cars up to 10 years old at the time of first GB registration, this means meeting
the technical standards of either:

- a European Whole Vehicle Type approval,

- a British National Type approval; or

- a Individual Vehicle Approval.

Most registration certificates issued since late 1998 should indicate the approval status of
the vehicle. The technical standards applied (and the safety and environmental risks
covered) under each of the above are proportionate to the number of vehicles entering
service. Further information about these requirements and the procedures for licensing
and registering imported vehicles can be seen at
www.businesslink.gov.uk/vehicleapprovalschemes

Vehicle Testing

32. There is considerable variation between local licensing authorities on vehicle
testing, including the related question of age limits. The following can be regarded as
best practice:

e Frequency Of Tests. The legal requirement is that all taxis should be subject to an
MOT test or its equivalent once a year. For PHVs the requirement is for an annual
test after the venhicle is three years old. An annual test for licensed vehicles of
whatever age (that is, including vehicles that are less than three years old) seems
appropriate in most cases, unless local conditions suggest that more frequent tests
are necessary. However, more frequent tests may be appropriate for older
vehicles (see ‘age limits’ below). Local licensing authorities may wish to note that a
review carried out by the National Society for Cleaner Air in 2005 found that taxis
were more likely than other vehicles to fail an emissions test. This finding, perhaps
suggests that emissions testing should be carried out on ad hoc basis and more
frequently than the full vehicle test.

e Criteria For Tests. Similarly, for mechanical matters it seems appropriate to apply
the same criteria as those for the MOT test to taxis and PHVs*. The MOT test on
vehicles first used after 31 March 1987 includes checking of all seat belts.
However, taxis and PHVs provide a service to the public, so it is also appropriate
to set criteria for the internal condition of the vehicle, though these should not be
unreasonably onerous.

*A manual outlining the method of testing and reasons for failure of all MOT tested items
can be obtained from the Stationary Office see
http:www.tsoshop.co.uk/bookstore.asp?FO=1159966&Action=Book&From=SearchResults
&ProductlD=0115525726

e Age Limits. Itis perfectly possible for an older vehicle to be in good condition. So
the setting of an age limit beyond which a local authority will not license vehicles
may be arbitrary and inappropriate. But a greater frequency of testing may be
appropriate for older vehicles - for example, twice-yearly tests for vehicles more
than five years old.


http:www.tsoshop.co.uk/bookstore.asp?FO=1159966&Action=Book&From=SearchResults
www.businesslink.gov.uk/vehicleapprovalschemes

Page 259

e Number Of Testing Stations. There is sometimes criticism that local authorities
provide only one testing centre for their area (which may be geographically
extensive). So it is good practice for local authorities to consider having more than
one testing station. There could be an advantage in contracting out the testing
work, and to different garages. In that way the licensing authority can benefit from
competition in costs. (The Vehicle Operators and Standards Agency — VOSA —
may be able to assist where there are local difficulties in provision of testing
stations.)

33.  The Technical Officer Group of the Public Authority Transport Network has
produced Best Practice Guidance which focuses on national inspection standards for
taxis and PHVs. Local licensing authorities might find it helpful to refer to the testing
standards set out in this guidance in carrying out their licensing responsibilities. The
PATN can be accessed via the Freight Transport Association.

Personal security

34. The personal security of taxi and PHV drivers and staff needs to be considered.
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires local authorities and others to consider crime
and disorder reduction while exercising all of their duties. Crime and Disorder Reduction
Partnerships are also required to invite public transport providers and operators to
participate in the partnerships. Research has shown that anti-social behaviour and crime
affects taxi and PHV drivers and control centre staff. It is therefore important that the
personal security of these people is considered.

35. The owners and drivers of vehicles will often want to install security measures to
protect the driver. Local licensing authorities may not want to insist on such measures, on
the grounds that they are best left to the judgement of the owners and drivers themselves.
But it is good practice for licensing authorities to look sympathetically on - or actively to
encourage - their installation. They could include a screen between driver and
passengers, or CCTV. Care however should be taken that security measures within the
vehicle do not impede a disabled passenger's ability to communicate with the driver. In
addition, licensing authorities may wish to ensure that such modifications are present
when the vehicle is tested and not made after the testing stage.

36. There is extensive information on the use of CCTV, including as part of measures
to reduce crime, on the Home Office website (e.g.
http://scienceandresearch.homeoffice.gov.uk/hosdb/cctv-imaging-technology/CCTV-and-
imaging-publications) and on the Information Commission’s Office website
(www.ico.gov.uk). CCTV can be both a deterrent to would-be trouble makers and be a
source of evidence in the case of disputes between drivers and passengers and other
incidents. There is a variety of funding sources being used for the implementation of
security measures for example, from community safety partnerships, local authorities and
drivers themselves.

37.  Other security measures include guidance, talks by the local police and conflict
avoidance training. The Department has recently issued guidance for taxi and PHV
drivers to help them improve their personal security. These can be accessed on the
Department’s website at: http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/crime/taxiphv/.



http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/crime/taxiphv
www.ico.org.uk
http://scienceandresearch.homeoffice.gov.uk/hosdb/cctv-imaging-technology/CCTV-and

Page 260

In order to emphasise the reciprocal aspect of the taxi/PHV service, licensing authorities
might consider drawing up signs or notices which set out not only what passengers can
expect from drivers, but also what drivers can expect from passengers who use their
service. Annex B contains two samples which are included for illustrative purposes but
local authorities are encouraged to formulate their own, in the light of local conditions and
circumstances. Licensing authorities may want to encourage the taxi and PHV trades to
build good links with the local police force, including participation in any Crime and
Disorder Reduction Partnerships.

Vehicle Identification

38.

Members of the public can often confuse PHVs with taxis, failing to realise that

PHVs are not available for immediate hire and that a PHV driver cannot be hailed. So itis
important to distinguish between the two types of vehicle. Possible approaches might be:

a licence condition that prohibits PHVs from displaying any identification at all apart
from the local authority licence plate or disc. The licence plate is a helpful indicator
of licensed status and, as such, it helps identification if licence plates are displayed
on the front as well as the rear of vehicles. However, requiring some additional
clearer form of identification can be seen as best practice. This is for two reasons:
firstly, to ensure a more positive statement that the vehicle cannot be hired
immediately through the driver; and secondly because it is quite reasonable, and in
the interests of the travelling public, for a PHV operator to be able to state on the
vehicle the contact details for hiring;

a licence condition which requires a sign on the vehicle in a specified form. This
will often be a sign of a specified size and shape which identifies the operator (with
a telephone number for bookings) and the local licensing authority, and which also
has some words such as ‘pre-booked only’. This approach seems the best
practice; it identifies the vehicle as private hire and helps to avoid confusion with a
taxi, but also gives useful information to the public wishing to make a booking. It is
good practice for vehicle identification for PHVs to include the contact details of the
operator.

Another approach, possibly in conjunction with the previous option, is a
requirement for a roof-mounted, permanently illuminated sign with words such as
‘pre-booked only’. But it can be argued that any roof-mounted sign, however
unambiguous its words, is liable to create confusion with a taxi. So roof-mounted
signs on PHVs are not seen as best practice.

Environmental Considerations

39.

Local licensing authorities, in discussion with those responsible for environmental

health issues, will wish to consider how far their vehicle licensing policies can and should
support any local environmental policies that the local authority may have adopted. This
will be of particular importance in designated Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAS),
Local authorities may, for example, wish to consider setting vehicle emissions standards
for taxis and PHVs. However, local authorities would need to carefully and thoroughly



Page 261

assess the impact of introducing such a policy; for example, the effect on the supply of
taxis and PHVs in the area would be an important consideration in deciding the
standards, if any, to be set. They should also bear in mind the need to ensure that the
benefits of any policies outweigh the costs (in whatever form).

Stretched Limousines

40. Local licensing authorities are sometimes asked to license stretched limousines as
PHVs. It is suggested that local authorities should approach such requests on the basis
that these vehicles — where they have fewer than nine passenger seats - have a
legitimate role to play in the private hire trade, meeting a public demand. Indeed, the
Department’s view is that it is not a legitimate course of action for licensing authorities to
adopt policies that exclude limousines as a matter of principle and that any authorities
which do adopt such practices are leaving themselves open to legal challenge. A policy of
excluding limousines creates an unacceptable risk to the travelling public, as it would
inevitably lead to higher levels of unlawful operation. Public safety considerations are best
supported by policies that allow respectable, safe operators to obtain licences on the
same basis as other private hire vehicle operators. The Department has now issued
guidance on the licensing arrangements for stretched limousines. This can be accessed
on the Department's web-site at
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/taxis/stretchlimousines.pdf.

41. The limousine guidance makes it clear that most operations are likely to fall within
the PHV licensing category and not into the small bus category. VOSA will be advising
limousine owners that if they intend to provide a private hire service then they should go
to the local authority for PHV licences. The Department would expect licensing authorities
to assess applications on their merits; and, as necessary, to be proactive in ascertaining
whether any limousine operators might already be providing an unlicensed service within
their district.

42. Imported stretched limousines were historically checked for compliance with
regulations under the Single Vehicle Approval (SVA) inspection regime before they were
registered. This is now the Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) scheme. The IVA test
verifies that the converted vehicle is built to certain safety and environmental standards. A
licensing authority might wish to confirm that an imported vehicle was indeed tested by
VOSA for IVA before being registered and licensed (taxed) by DVLA. This can be done
either by checking the V5C (Registration Certificate) of the vehicle, which may refer to
IVA under the "Special Note" section; or by writing to VOSA, Ellipse, Padley Road,
Swansea, SA1 8AN, including details of the vehicle's make and model, registration
number and VIN number.

43.  Stretched limousines which clearly have more than 8 passenger seats should not
of course be licensed as PHVs because they are outside the licensing regime for PHVs.
However, under some circumstances the SVA regime accepted vehicles with space for
more than 8 passengers, particularly where the precise number of passenger seats was
hard to determine. In these circumstances, if the vehicle had obtained an SVA certificate,
the authority should consider the case on its merits in deciding whether to license the
vehicle under the strict condition that the vehicle will not be used to carry more than 8
passengers, bearing in mind that refusal may encourage illegal private hire operation.


http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/taxis/stretchlimousines.pdf

Page 262

44.  Many councils are concerned that the size of limousines prevents them being
tested in conventional MoT garages. If there is not a suitable MoT testing station in the
area then it would be possible to test the vehicle at the local VOSA test stations. The local
enforcement office may be able to advise (contact details on http://www.vosa.gov.uk).

QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS OF TAXI LICENCES OUTSIDE LONDON

45.  The present legal provision on quantity restrictions for taxis outside London is set
out in section 16 of the Transport Act 1985. This provides that the grant of a taxi licence
may be refused, for the purpose of limiting the number of licensed taxis ‘if, but only if, the
[local licensing authority] is satisfied that there is no significant demand for the services of
hackney carriages (within the area to which the licence would apply) which is unmet'.

46. Local licensing authorities will be aware that, in the event of a challenge to a
decision to refuse a licence, the local authority concerned would have to establish that it
had, reasonably, been satisfied that there was no significant unmet demand.

47.  Most local licensing authorities do not impose quantity restrictions; the Department
regards that as best practice. Where restrictions are imposed, the Department would
urge that the matter should be regularly reconsidered. The Department further urges that
the issue to be addressed first in each reconsideration is whether the restrictions should
continue at all. It is suggested that the matter should be approached in terms of the
interests of the travelling public - that is to say, the people who use taxi services. What
benefits or disadvantages arise for them as a result of the continuation of controls; and
what benefits or disadvantages would result for the public if the controls were removed?
Is there evidence that removal of the controls would result in a deterioration in the amount
or quality of taxi service provision?

48. In most cases where quantity restrictions are imposed, vehicle licence plates
command a premium, often of tens of thousands of pounds. This indicates that there are
people who want to enter the taxi market and provide a service to the public, but who are
being prevented from doing so by the quantity restrictions. This seems very hard to

justify.

49. If a local authority does nonetheless take the view that a quantity restriction can be
justified in principle, there remains the question of the level at which it should be set,
bearing in mind the need to demonstrate that there is no significant unmet demand. This
issue is usually addressed by means of a survey; it will be necessary for the local
licensing authority to carry out a survey sufficiently frequently to be able to respond to any
challenge to the satisfaction of a court. An interval of three years is commonly regarded
as the maximum reasonable period between surveys.

50. Asto the conduct of the survey, the Department’s letter of 16 June 2004 set out a
range of considerations. But key points are:

e thelength of time that would-be customers have to wait at ranks. However,
this alone is an inadequate indicator of demand; also taken into account should
be...


http://www.vosa.gov.uk

Page 263

e waiting times for street hailings and for telephone bookings. But waiting
times at ranks or elsewhere do not in themselves satisfactorily resolve the question
of unmet demand. It is also desirable to address...

e |atent demand, for example people who have responded to long waiting times by
not even trying to travel by taxi. This can be assessed by surveys of people who
do not use taxis, perhaps using stated preference survey techniques.

e peaked demand. Itis sometimes argued that delays associated only with peaks
in demand (such as morning and evening rush hours, or pub closing times) are not
‘significant’ for the purpose of the Transport Act 1985. The Department does not
share that view. Since the peaks in demand are by definition the most popular
times for consumers to use taxis, it can be strongly argued that unmet demand at
these times should not be ignored. Local authorities might wish to consider when
the peaks occur and who is being disadvantaged through restrictions on provision
of taxi services.

e consultation. As well as statistical surveys, assessment of quantity restrictions
should include consultation with all those concerned, including user groups (which
should include groups representing people with disabilities, and people such as
students or women), the police, hoteliers, operators of pubs and clubs and visitor
attractions, and providers of other transport modes (such as train operators, who
want taxis available to take passengers to and from stations);

e publication. All the evidence gathered in a survey should be published, together
with an explanation of what conclusions have been drawn from it and why. If
guantity restrictions are to be continued, their benefits to consumers and the
reason for the particular level at which the number is set should be set out.

e financing of surveys. Itis not good practice for surveys to be paid for by the
local taxi trade (except through general revenues from licence fees). To do so can
call in question the impartiality and objectivity of the survey process.

51. Quite apart from the requirement of the 1985 Act, the Department’s letter of 16
June 2004 asked all local licensing authorities that operate quantity restrictions to review
their policy and justify it publicly by 31 March 2005 and at least every three years
thereafter. The Department also expects the justification for any policy of quantity
restrictions to be included in the Local Transport Plan process. A recommended list of
guestions for local authorities to address when considering quantity controls was attached
to the Department’s letter. (The questions are listed in Annex A to this Guidance.)

TAXI FARES

52. Local licensing authorities have the power to set taxi fares for journeys within their
area, and most do so. (There is no power to set PHV fares.) Fare scales should be
designed with a view to practicality. The Department sees it as good practice to review
the fare scales at regular intervals, including any graduation of the fare scale by time of
day or day of the week. Authorities may wish to consider adopting a simple formula for



Page 264

deciding on fare revisions as this will increase understanding and improve the
transparency of the process. The Department also suggests that in reviewing fares
authorities should pay particular regard to the needs of the travelling public, with
reference both to what it is reasonable to expect people to pay but also to the need to
give taxi drivers sufficient incentive to provide a service when it is needed. There may well
be a case for higher fares at times of higher demand.

53. Taxifares are a maximum, and in principle are open to downward negotiation
between passenger and driver. It is not good practice to encourage such negotiations at
ranks, or for on-street hailings; there would be risks of confusion and security problems.
But local licensing authorities can usefully make it clear that published fares are a
maximum, especially in the context of telephone bookings, where the customer benefits
from competition. There is more likely to be a choice of taxi operators for telephone
bookings, and there is scope for differentiation of services to the customer’s advantage
(for example, lower fares off-peak or for pensioners).

54. There is a case for allowing any taxi operators who wish to do so to make it clear —
perhaps by advertising on the vehicle — that they charge less than the maximum fare;
publicity such as ‘5% below the metered fare’ might be an example.

DRIVERS

Duration Of Licences

55. Itis obviously important for safety reasons that drivers should be licensed. But it is
not necessarily good practice to require licences to be renewed annually. That can
impose an undue burden on drivers and licensing authorities alike. Three years is the
legal maximum period and is in general the best approach. One argument against 3-year
licences has been that a criminal offence may be committed, and not notified, during the
duration of the licence. But this can of course also be the case during the duration of a
shorter licence. In relation to this, authorities will wish to note that the Home Office in April
2006 issued revised guidance for police forces on the Notifiable Occupations Scheme.
Paragraphs 62-65 below provide further information about this scheme.

56. However, an annual licence may be preferred by some drivers. That may be
because they have plans to move to a different job or a different area, or because they
cannot easily pay the fee for a three-year licence, if it is larger than the fee for an annual
one. So it can be good practice to offer drivers the choice of an annual licence or a three-
year licence.

Acceptance of driving licences from other EU member states

57.  Sections 51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
as enacted stated that an applicant for a taxi or private hire vehicle (PHV) driver's licence
must have held a full ordinary GB driving licence for at least 12 months in order to be
granted a taxi or PHV driver's licence. This requirement has subsequently been amended
since the 1976 Act was passed. The Driving Licences (Community Driving Licence)
Regulations 1996 (Sl 1996 No 1974) amended sections 51 and 59 of the 1976 Act to
allow full driving licences issued by EEA states to count towards the qualification



Page 265

requirements for the grant of taxi and PHV driver's licences. Since that time, a number of
central and eastern European states have joined the EU and the EEA and the
Department takes the view that drivers from the Accession States are eligible to acquire a
taxi or PHV driver's licence under the 1976 Act if they have held an ordinary driving
licence for 12 months which was issued by an acceding State (see section 99A(i) of the
Road Traffic Act 1988). To complete the picture, the Deregulation (Taxis and Private Hire
Vehicles) Order 1998 (SI 1998 No 1946) gave equal recognition to Northern Ireland
driving licences for the purposes of taxi and PHV driver licensing under the 1976 Act (see
section 109(i) of the Road Traffic Act 1988, as amended).

Criminal Record Checks

58. A criminal record check is an important safety measure particularly for those
working closely with children and the vulnerable. Taxi and PHV drivers can be subject to
a Standard Disclosure (and for those working in “Regulated Activity” to an Enhanced
Disclosure) through the Criminal Records Bureau. Both levels of Disclosure include
details of spent and unspent convictions, cautions reprimands and final warnings. An
Enhanced Disclosure may also include any other information held in police records that is
considered relevant by the police, for example, details of minor offences, non-conviction
information on the Police National Computer such as Fixed Penalty Notices and, in some
cases, allegations. An Enhanced Disclosure is for those working in Regulated
Activityl.and the Government has produced guidance in relation to this and the new
“Vetting and Barring Scheme” which is available at www.isa-
gov.org.uk/default.aspx?page=402. [The Department will issue further advice as the new SVG scheme develops.]

59. In considering an individual’s criminal record, local licensing authorities will want to
consider each case on its merits, but they should take a particularly cautious view of any
offences involving violence, and especially sexual attack. In order to achieve
consistency, and thus avoid the risk of successful legal challenge, local authorities will
doubtless want to have a clear policy for the consideration of criminal records, for
example the number of years they will require to have elapsed since the commission of
particular kinds of offences before they will grant a licence.

60. Local licensing authorities will also want to have a policy on background checks for
applicants from elsewhere in the EU and other overseas countries. One approach is to
require a certificate of good conduct authenticated by the relevant embassy. The
Criminal Records Bureau website (www.crb.gov.uk) gives information about obtaining
certificates of good conduct, or similar documents, from a number of countries.

61. It would seem best practice for Criminal Records Bureau disclosures to be sought
when a licence is first applied for and then every three years, even if a licence is renewed
annually, provided drivers are obliged to report all new convictions and cautions to the
licensing authority.

1 “Regulated Activity” is defined in The Safeguarding VVulnerable Groups Act 2006 (Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2009


www.crb.gov.uk

Page 266

Notifiable Occupations Scheme

62. Under this Scheme, when an individual comes to the notice of the police and
identifies their occupation as a taxi or PHV driver, the police are requested to notify the
appropriate local licensing authority of convictions and any other relevant information that
indicates that a person poses a risk to public safety. Most notifications will be made once
an individual is convicted however, if there is a sufficient risk, the police will notify the
authority immediately.

63. Inthe absence of a national licensing body for taxi and PHV drivers, notifications
are made to the local licensing authority identified on the licence or following interview.
However, it is expected that all licensing authorities work together should they ascertain
that an individual is operating under a different authority or with a fraudulent licence.

64. The police may occasionally notify licensing authorities of offences committed
abroad by an individual however it may not be possible to provide full information.

65. The Notifiable Occupations Scheme is described in Home Office Circular 6/2006
which is available at
http://www.basingstoke.gov.uk/CommitteeDocs/Committees/Licensing/20070710/3%20yr
%20licences-
update%200n%20hants%20constab%20procedures%20re%20Home%200ffice%20circ%
206:;2006-%20Appendix%202.pdf. Further information can also be obtained from the
Criminal Records Team, Joint Public Protection Information Unit, Fifth Floor, Fry Building,
2 Marsham Street, London SW1P 4DF; e-mail Samuel.Wray@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk.

Immigration checks

66. The Department considers it appropriate for licensing authorities to check on an
applicant’s right to work before granting a taxi or PHV driver’s licence. It is important to
note that a Criminal Records Bureau check is not a Right to Work check and any enquires
about the immigration status of an individual should be addressed to the Border and
Immigration Agency. Further information can be found at
www.bia.homeoffice.gov.uk/employingmigrants. More generally, the Border and
Immigration Agency’s Employers' Helpline (0845 010 6677) can be used by licensing staff
to obtain general guidance on immigration documentation, although this Helpline is not
able to advise on individual cases. The authority can obtain case specific immigration
status information, including whether a licensing applicant is permitted to work or details
of work restrictions, from the Evidence and Enquiry Unit, Floor 12, Lunar House,
Wellesley Road, Croydon CR9 2BY . Further details on the procedures involved can be
obtained by contacting the Unit (020 8196 3011).

Medical fitness

67. Itis clearly good practice for medical checks to be made on each driver before the
initial grant of a licence and thereafter for each renewal. There is general recognition that
it is appropriate for taxi/PHV drivers to have more stringent medical standards than those
applicable to normal car drivers because:


www.bia.homeoffice.gov.uk/employingmigrants
http://www.basingstoke.gov.uk/CommitteeDocs/Committees/Licensing/20070710/3%20yr

Page 267

e they carry members of the general public who have expectations of a safe journey;
e they are on the road for longer hours than most car drivers; and
e they may have to assist disabled passengers and handle luggage.

68. Itis common for licensing authorities to apply the “Group 2” medical standards —
applied by DVLA to the licensing of lorry and bus drivers — to taxi and PHV drivers. This
seems best practice. The Group 2 standards preclude the licensing of drivers with insulin
treated diabetes. However, exceptional arrangements do exist for drivers with insulin
treated diabetes, who can meet a series of medical criteria, to obtain a licence to drive
category C1 vehicles (ie 3500-7500 kgs lorries); the position is summarised at Annex C to
the Guidance. It is suggested that the best practice is to apply the C1 standards to taxi
and PHYV drivers with insulin treated diabetes.

Age Limits

69. It does not seem necessary to set a maximum age limit for drivers provided that
regular medical checks are made. Nor do minimum age limits, beyond the statutory
periods for holding a full driver licence, seem appropriate. Applicants should be assessed
on their merits.

Driving Proficiency

70.  Many local authorities rely on the standard car driving licence as evidence of
driving proficiency. Others require some further driving test to be taken. Local authorities
will want to consider carefully whether this produces benefits which are commensurate
with the costs involved for would-be drivers, the costs being in terms of both money and
broader obstacles to entry to the trade. However, they will note that the Driving Standards
Agency provides a driving assessment specifically designed for taxis.

Lanqguage proficiency

71.  Authorities may also wish to consider whether an applicant would have any
problems in communicating with customers because of language difficulties.

Other training

72.  Whilst the Department has no plans to make training courses or qualifications
mandatory, there may well be advantage in encouraging drivers to obtain one of the
nationally-recognised vocational qualifications for the taxi and PHV trades. These will
cover customer care, including how best to meet the needs of people with disabilities.
More information about these qualifications can be obtained from GoSkills, the Sector
Skills Council for Passenger Transport. GoSkills is working on a project funded by the
Department to raise standards in the industry and GoSkills whilst not a direct training
provider, can guide and support licensing authorities through its regional network of
Regional Managers.



Page 268

73.  Some licensing authorities have already established training initiatives and others
are being developed; it is seen as important to do this in consultation with the local taxi
and PHYV trades. Training can cover customer care, including how best to meet the needs
of people with disabilities and other sections of the community, and also topics such as
the relevant legislation, road safety, the use of maps and GPS, the handling of
emergencies, and how to defuse difficult situations and manage conflict. Training may
also be considered for applicants to enable them to reach an appropriate standard of
comprehension, literacy and numeracy. Authorities may wish to note that nationally
recognised qualifications and training programmes sometimes have advantages over
purely local arrangements (for example, in that the qualification will be more widely
recognised).

Contact details are:
GoSkills, Concorde House, Trinity Park, Solihull, Birmingham, B37 7UQ.

Tel: 0121-635-5520
Fax: 0121-635-5521

Website: www.goskills.org
e-mail: info@gqgoskills.org

74. It is also relevant to consider driver training in the context of the 2012 Olympic and
Paralympic Games which will take place at a number of venues across the country. One
of the key aims of the Games is to “change the experience disabled people have when
using public transport during the Games and to leave a legacy of more accessible
transport”. The Games provide a unique opportunity for taxi/PHV drivers to demonstrate
their disability awareness training, and to ensure all passengers experience the highest
quality of service.

Topographical Knowledge

75.  Taxi drivers need a good working knowledge of the area for which they are
licensed, because taxis can be hired immediately, directly with the driver, at ranks or on
the street. So most licensing authorities require would-be taxi-drivers to pass a test of
local topographical knowledge as a pre-requisite to the first grant of a licence (though the
stringency of the test should reflect the complexity or otherwise of the local geography, in
accordance with the principle of ensuring that barriers to entry are not unnecessarily
high).

76. However, PHVs are not legally available for immediate hiring in the same way as
taxis. To hire a PHV the would-be passenger has to go through an operator, so the driver
will have an opportunity to check the details of a route before starting a journey. So it
may be unnecessarily burdensome to require a would-be PHV driver to pass the same
‘knowledge’ test as a taxi driver, though it may be thought appropriate to test candidates’
ability to read a map and their knowledge of key places such as main roads and railway
stations. The Department is aware of circumstances where, as a result of the repeal of
the PHV contract exemption, some people who drive children on school contracts are
being deterred from continuing to do so on account of overly burdensome topographical


mailto:info@goskills.org
http:www.goskills.org

Page 269

tests. Local authorities should bear this in mind when assessing applicants' suitability for
PHV licences.
PHV OPERATORS

77. The objective in licensing PHV operators is, again, the safety of the public, who will
be using operators’ premises and vehicles and drivers arranged through them.

Criminal Record Checks

78.  PHV operators (as opposed to PHV drivers) are not exceptions to the
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, so Standard or Enhanced disclosures cannot be
required as a condition of grant of an operator’s licence. But a Basic Disclosure, which
will provide details of unspent convictions only, could be seen as appropriate, after such a
system has been introduced by the Criminal Records Bureau. No firm date for
introduction has yet been set; however, a feasibility study has been completed; the
Criminal Records Bureau is undertaking further work in this regard. Overseas applicants
may be required to provide a certificate of good conduct from the relevant embassy if they
have not been long in this country. Local licensing authorities may want to require a
reference, covering for example the applicant’s financial record, as well as the checks
outlined above.

Record Keeping

79. Itis good practice to require operators to keep records of each booking, including
the name of the passenger, the destination, the name of the driver, the number of the
vehicle and any fare quoted at the time of booking. This information will enable the
passenger to be traced if this becomes necessary and should improve driver security and
facilitate enforcement. It is suggested that 6 months is generally appropriate as the length
of time that records should be kept.

Insurance
80 It is appropriate for a licensing authority to check that appropriate public liability

insurance has been taken out for premises that are open to the public.

Licence Duration

81. Arequirement for annual licence renewal does not seem necessary or appropriate
for PHV operators, whose involvement with the public is less direct than a driver (who will
be alone with passengers). Indeed, a licence period of five years may well be appropriate
in the average case. Although the authority may wish to offer operators the option of a
licence for a shorter period if requested.



Page 270

Repeal of the PHV contract exemption

82.  Section 53 of the Road Safety Act 2006 repealed the exemption from PHV
licensing for vehicles which were used on contracts lasting not less than seven days. The
change came into effect in January 2008. A similar change was introduced in respect of
London in March 2008. As a result of this change, local licensing authorities are
considering a range of vehicles and services in the context of PHV licensing which they
had not previously licensed because of the contract exemption.

83. The Department produced a guidance note in November 2007 to assist local
licensing authorities, and other stakeholders, in deciding which vehicles should be
licensed in the PHV regime and which vehicles fell outside the PHV definition. The note
stressed that it was a matter for local licensing authorities to make decisions in the first
instance and that, ultimately, the courts were responsible for interpreting the law.
However, the guidance was published as a way of assisting people who needed to
consider these issues. A copy of the guidance note can be found on the Department's
web-site at: http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/taxis/rsa06privatehirevehicles As a result of
a recent report on the impact of the repeal of the PHV contract exemption, the
Department will be revising its guidance note to offer a more definite view about which
vehicles should be licensed as PHVs. The report is also on the Department’s web-site at:
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/taxis/phvcontractexemption/.

ENFORCEMENT

84. Well-directed enforcement activity by the local licensing authority benefits not only
the public but also the responsible people in the taxi and PHV trades. Indeed, it could be
argued that the safety of the public depends upon licensing authorities having an effective
enforcement mechanism in place. This includes actively seeking out those operators who
are evading the licensing system, not just licensing those who come forward seeking the
appropriate licences. The resources devoted by licensing authorities to enforcement will
vary according to local circumstances, including for example any difficulties with touting
by unlicensed drivers and vehicles (a problem in some urban areas). Local authorities will
also wish to liaise closely with the police. Multi-agency enforcement exercises (involving,
for example, the Benefits Agency) have proved beneficial in some areas.

85.  Local licensing authorities often use enforcement staff to check a range of licensed
activities (such as market traders) as well as the taxi and PHV trades, to make the best
use of staff time. But it is desirable to ensure that taxi and PHV enforcement effort is at
least partly directed to the late-night period, when problems such as touting tend most
often to arise. In formulating policies to deal with taxi touts, local licensing authorities
might wish to be aware that the Sentencing Guidelines Council have, for the first time,
included guidance about taxi touting in their latest Guidelines for Magistrates. The
Guidelines, which came into effect in August 2008, can be accessed through the SGC’s
web-site - www.sentencing-guidelines.gov.uk.

86. Some local licensing authorities employ taxi marshals in busy city centres where
there are lots of hirings, again perhaps late at night, to help taxi drivers picking up, and
would-be passengers queuing for taxis.


www.sentencing-guidelines.gov.uk
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/taxis/phvcontractexemption
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/taxis/rsa06privatehirevehicles

Page 271

87.  As part of enforcement, local licensing authorities will often make spot checks,
which can lead to their suspending or revoking licences. They will wish to consider
carefully which power should best be used for this purpose. They will note, among other
things, that section 60 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
provides a right of appeal for the licence-holder, whereas section 68, which is also
sometimes used, does not; this can complicate any challenge by the licence-holder.

88.  Section 52 of the Road Safety Act 2006 amended the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 such that local authorities can now suspend or
revoke a taxi or PHV driver's licence with immediate effect on safety grounds. It should be
stressed that this power can only be used where safety is the principal reason for
suspending or revoking and where the risk justifies such an approach. It is expected that
in the majority of cases drivers will continue to work pending appeal and that this power
will be used in one-off cases. But the key point is that the law says that the power must be
used in cases which can be justified in terms of safety. The Department is not proposing
to issue any specific guidance on this issue, preferring to leave it to the discretion of
licensing authorities as to when the power should be used.

TAXI ZONES

89. The areas of some local licensing authorities are divided into two or more zones for
taxi licensing purposes. Drivers may be licensed to ply for hire in one zone only. Zones
may exist for historical reasons, perhaps because of local authority boundary changes.

90. The Department recommends the abolition of zones. That is chiefly for the benefit
of the travelling public. Zoning tends to diminish the supply of taxis and the scope for
customer choice - for example, if fifty taxis were licensed overall by a local authority, but
with only twenty five of them entitled to ply for hire in each of two zones. It can be
confusing and frustrating for people wishing to hire a taxi to find that a vehicle licensed by
the relevant local authority is nonetheless unable to pick them up (unless pre-booked)
because they are in the wrong part of the local authority area. Abolition of zones can also
reduce costs for the local authority, for example through simpler administration and
enforcement. It can also promote fuel efficiency, because taxis can pick up a passenger
anywhere in the local authority area, rather than having to return empty to their licensed
zone after dropping a passenger in another zone.

91. It should be noted that the Government has now made a Legislative Reform Order
which removed the need for the Secretary of State to approve amalgamation resolutions
made by local licensing authorities The Legislative Reform (Local Authority Consent
Requirements)(England and Wales) Order 2008 came into force in October 2008.
Although these resolutions no longer require the approval of the Secretary of State, the
statutory procedure for making them — in paragraph 25 of schedule 14 to the Local
Government Act 1972- remains the same.

FLEXIBLE TRANSPORT SERVICES

92. ltis possible for taxis and PHVs to provide flexible transport services in a number
of different ways. Such services can play a valuable role in meeting a range of transport



Page 272

needs, especially in rural areas — though potentially in many other places as well. In
recent years there has been a significant increase in the provision of flexible services, due
partly to the availability of Rural Bus Subsidy Grant and Rural Bus Challenge Support
from the Department.

93.

The Department encourages local licensing authorities, as a matter of best

practice, to play their part in promoting flexible services, so as to increase the availability
of transport to the travelling public. This can be done partly by drawing the possibilities to
the attention of taxi and PHV trade. It also should be borne in mind that vehicles with a
higher seating capacity than the vehicles typically licensed as taxis (for example those
with 6, 7 or 8 passenger seats) may be used for flexible services and should be
considered for licensing in this context.

94.

95.

The main legal provisions under which flexible services can be operated are:

Shared taxis and PHVs — advance bookings (section 11, Transport Act 1985):
licensed taxis and PHVs can provide a service at separate fares for up to eight
passengers sharing the vehicle. The operator takes the initiative to match up
passengers who book in advance and agree to share the vehicle at separate fares
(lower than for a single hiring). An example could be passengers being picked up
at home to go to a shopping centre, or returning from the shops to their homes.
The operator benefits through increased passenger loadings and total revenues.

Shared taxis —immediate hirings (section 10, Transport Act 1985): such a
scheme is at the initiative of the local licensing authority, which can set up
schemes whereby licensed taxis (not PHVs) can be hired at separate fares by up
to eight people from ranks or other places that have been designated by the
authority. (The authority is required to set up such a scheme if holders of 10% or
more of the taxi licences in the area ask for one.) The passengers pay only part of
the metered fare, for example in going home after a trip to the local town, and
without pre-booking, but the driver receives more than the metered fare.

Taxibuses (section 12, Transport Act 1985): owners of licensed taxis can apply
to the Traffic Commissioner for a ‘restricted public service vehicle (PSV) operator
licence’. The taxi owner can then use the vehicle to run a bus service for up to
eight passengers. The route must be registered with the Traffic Commissioner and
must have at least one stopping place in the area of the local authority that
licensed the taxi, though it can go beyond it. The bus service will be eligible for Bus
Service Operators Grant (subject to certain conditions) and taxibuses can be used
for local authority subsidised bus services. The travelling public have another
transport opportunity opened for them, and taxi owners have another business
opportunity. The Local Transport Act 2008 contains a provision which allows the
owners of PHVs to acquire a special PSV operator licence and register a route with
the traffic commissioner. A dedicated leaflet has been sent to licensing authorities
to distribute to PHV owners in their area alerting them to this new provision.

The Department is very keen to encourage the use of these types of services.

More details can be found in the Department’s publication ‘Flexible Transport Services’
which can be accessed at:.
http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/buses/bol/flexibletransportservices


http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/regional/buses/bol/flexibletransportservices

Page 273

LOCAL TRANSPORT PLANS

96. The Transport Act 2000 as amended by the Transport Act 2008, requires local
transport authorities in England outside London to produce and maintain a Local
Transport Plan (LTP), having regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State.
The latest guidance published in July 2009 will cover the next round of LTPs from 2011.
LTPs set out the authority’s local transport strategies and policies for transport in their
area, and an implementation programme. 82 LTPs covering all of England outside
London have been produced and cover the period up to 2011. From 2011 local authorities
will have greater freedom to prepare their LTPs to align with wider local objectives.

97.  All modes of transport including taxi and PHV services have a valuable part to play
in overall transport provision, and so local licensing authorities have an input to delivering
the LTPs. The key policy themes for such services could be availability and accessibility.
LTPs can cover:

e (uantity controls, if any, and plans for their review;

licensing conditions, with a view to safety but also to good supply of taxi and PHV
services;

fares;

on-street availability, especially through provision of taxi ranks;

vehicle accessibility for people with disabilities;

encouragement of flexible services.



Page 274

Annex A

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING: BEST PRACTICE GUIDANCE

Useful guestions when assessing guantity controls of taxi licences

Have you considered the Government's view that quantity controls should be removed unless
a specific case that such controls benefit the consumer can be made?

Questions relating to the policy of controlling numbers

Have you recently reviewed the need for your policy of quantity controls?
What form did the review of your policy of quantity controls take?
Who was involved in the review?
What decision was reached about retaining or removing quantity controls?
Are you satisfied that your policy justifies restricting entry to the trade?
Are you satisfied that quantity controls do not:
- reduce the availability of taxis;
- increase waiting times for consumers;
- reduce choice and safety for consumers?
What special circumstances justify retention of quantity controls?
How does your policy benefit consumers, particularly in remote rural areas?
How does your policy benefit the trade?
If you have a local accessibility policy, how does this fit with restricting taxi licences?

Questions relating to setting the number of taxi licences

When last did you assess unmet demand?
How is your taxi limit assessed?

Have you considered latent demand, ie potential consumers who would use taxis if more were
available, but currently do not?

Are you satisfied that your limit is set at the correct level?
How does the need for adequate taxi ranks affect your policy of quantity controls?

Questions relating to consultation and other public transport service provision

When consulting, have you included etc
- all those working in the market;
- consumer and passenger (including disabled) groups;
- groups which represent those passengers with special needs;
- local interest groups, eg hospitals or visitor attractions;
- the police;
- a wide range of transport stakeholders eg rail/bus/coach providers and
traffic managers?
Do you receive representations about taxi availability?
What is the level of service currently available to consumers (including other public transport
modes)?



Page 275

Annex B

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING: BEST PRACTICE GUIDANCE

Notice for taxi passengers - what you can expect from the taxi trade and what the

taxi trade can expect from you

The driver will:

Drive with due care and courtesy towards the passenger and other road
users.

Use the meter within the licensed area, unless the passenger has agreed to
hire by time.

If using the meter, not start the meter until the passenger is seated in the
vehicle.

If travelling outside the licensed area, agree the fare in advance. If no fare
has been negotiated in advance for a journey going beyond the licensing
area then the driver must adhere to the meter.

Take the most time-efficient route, bearing in mind likely traffic problems and
known diversions, and explain any diversion from the most direct route.

The passenger will:

Treat the vehicle and driver with respect and obey any notices (e.g. in
relation to eating in the vehicle).

Ensure they have enough money to pay the fare before travelling. If wishing
to pay by credit card or to stop on route to use a cash machine, check with
the driver before setting off.

Be aware of the fare on the meter and make the driver aware if it is
approaching the limit of their financial resources.

Be aware that the driver is likely to be restricted by traffic regulations in
relation to where s/he can stop the vehicle.



Page 276

Notice for PHV passengers - what you can expect from the PHV trade and what the
PHV trade can expect from you

The driver will:

e Ensure that the passenger has pre-booked and agrees the fare before setting
off.

e Drive with due care and courtesy towards the passenger and other road
users.

e Take the most time-efficient route, bearing in mind likely traffic problems and
known diversions, and explain any diversion from the most direct route.

The passenger will:

e Treat the vehicle and driver with respect and obey any notices (eg. in relation
to eating in the vehicle).

e Ensure they have enough money to pay the fare before travelling. If wishing
to pay by credit card or to stop on route to use a cash machine, check with
the driver before setting off.

e Be aware that the driver is likely to be restricted by traffic regulations in
relation to where s/he can stop the vehicle.



Page 277

Annex C

TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE LICENSING: BEST PRACTICE GUIDANCE

Assessing applicants for a taxi or PHV driver licence in accordance with C1
standard

Exceptional circumstances under which DVLA will consider granting licences for vehicles
over 3.5 tonnes or with more than 8 passenger seats.

Insulin treated diabetes is a legal bar to driving these vehicles. The exceptional
arrangements that were introduced in September 1998 were only in respect of drivers
who were employed to drive small lorries between 3.5 tonnes and 7.5 tonnes (category
Cl). The arrangements mean that those with good diabetic control and who have no
significant complications can be treated as "exceptional cases" and may have their
application for a licence for category C1 considered. The criteria are

e To have been taking insulin for at least 4 weeks;

e Not to have suffered an episode of hypoglycaemia requiring the assistance of another
person whilst driving in the last 12 months;

e To attend an examination by a hospital consultant specialising in the treatment of
diabetes at intervals of not more than 12 months and to provide a report from such a
consultant in support of the application which confirms a history of responsible diabetic
control with a minimal risk of incapacity due to hypoglycaemia;

e To provide evidence of at least twice daily blood glucose monitoring at times when C1
vehicles are being driven (those that have not held C1 entitlement in the preceding 12
months may provide evidence of blood glucose monitoring while driving other
vehicles);

e To have no other condition which would render the driver a danger when driving C1
vehicles; and

e To sign an undertaking to comply with the directions of the doctor(s) treating the
diabetes and to report immediately to DVLA any significant change in condition.



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 12

Amendments to the Table of Fares — Timeline

Date Type Action

8™ June 2011 Licensing Committee Approves amendment to the table of fares to increase each zone by 10% with effect
from 14™ June 2011. Request made that Officers produce a further report in relation
to potential harmonisation of fares

16" January 2012 Licensing Committee Report produced in relation to the potential harmonisation of fares. Publication of

notices to move the Congleton and Macclesfield zones to the Crewe and Nantwich
zone table of fares.

19" March 2012

Licensing Committee

Objections considered (18 individual and two petitions with 201 signatures) and
Officers instructed to produce a further report following further consultation

Meetings with the trade

Officers meet with representatives from Congleton and Macclesfield zones. No
representations from Crewe and Nantwich zone. Invitations sent to drivers from all
zones

29" May 2012

Licensing Committee

Interim report considered

Mail shot

Officers forward the proposals from the meeting with Congleton and Macclesfield
zones to all drivers. All drivers invited to meeting on 27" July 2012 to discuss the
matter

27™ July 2012

Meeting with the trade

Drivers from the Congleton and Macclesfield zones present, but no members of the
Crewe and Nantwich zone. Approximately 25 attendees, meeting chaired by Mr D
Hawkes. Agreement reached on the following:

i A harmonised structure based on a fixed rate for first mile or part thereof

ii. The subsequent mile rate to be £0.22 per 1/10™ mile or part thereof

iii. Tariff 2 to operate from 9pm to 12am at the flag rate plus a set percentage

iv. Tariff 3 to operate from 12am to 7am at the flag rate plus 50%

V. Soling charge to be £50.00

Vi. Additional agreements were reached regarding Sundays, public holidays and
Christmas and the rates that are applicable

Agreement regarding the rate of the flag/first mile rate was not reached.

6. abed



5" November 2012

Licensing Committee

Areas of agreement reported and Committee who are given several options for the
flag rate and additional % for tariff 2. Committee resolve that Cabinet Member be
recommended to consult with the trade at a flag rate of £3.50 and tariff 2 at 20%.

7™ January 2013 Portfolio Holder meeting | Cabinet Member considers the information presented and the recommendation from
Licensing Committee and approves a six week consultation with trade based on their
recommendation.

March 2013 Mail shot Consultation letter sent to 1201 licence holders (duplicates removed) providing a

copy of the proposed changes.

March/April 2013

Consultation

6 week consultation on proposed tariff runs from 18™ March 2013 to 29™ April 2013
(proposals also published on website)

28™ April 2014

Portfolio Holder meeting

Cabinet Member considers the consultation responses and authorises Public
Notices to be published

May 2014 Mail shot Letters sent to the trade informing them that public notices are to be placed in local
newspapers. Copies of the Notices included with the letter.

May 2014 Public Notices Public Notices published in local newspapers

4™ June 2014 Period for objections Objections received to the proposals that need to be consider at a further Portfolio

ends

Holder meeting.

08¢ abed



	Agenda
	4 Variation to the Hackney Carriage Table of Fares
	App 1.1 - Decision Notice
	App 1.2 - Proposed  Fare Card
	Appendix 2 title page
	App 2 - Congleton Zone Responses
	Appendix 3 title page
	App 3 - Crewe and Nantwich Zone Responses
	Appendix 4 title page
	App 4 - Macclesfield Zone Responses
	Appendix 5 title page
	App 5 - Trade Organisation
	Appendix 6 title page
	App 6 - Public Responses
	Appendix 7 title page
	App 7.1 - Public Petition
	App 7.2 - Driver Petition
	App 8 - CELVA Membership
	App 9 - Rates Comparison
	App 10 - The regulation of licensed taxi and PHV services in the UK
	App 11 - DFT Guidance
	INTRODUCTION
	THE ROLE OF TAXIS AND PHVs
	THE ROLE OF LICENSING: POLICY JUSTIFICATION
	SCOPE OF THE GUIDANCE
	CONSULTATION AT THE LOCAL LEVEL
	ACCESSIBILITY
	QUANTITY RESTRICTIONS OF TAXI LICENCES OUTSIDE LONDON
	TAXI FARES
	DRIVERS
	PHV OPERATORS
	ENFORCEMENT
	TAXI ZONES
	FLEXIBLE TRANSPORT SERVICES
	LOCAL TRANSPORT PLANS
	ANNEX A
	ANNEX B
	ANNEX C

	App 12 - Time Line of events




